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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Corporate Information (Continued)
NAIE R (@)
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Financial Summary

BT H5 1 2

(In RMB'000 unless otherwise stated) (=& 750 AN R FLIR)

RESULTS E
For the year ended 31 December
H§E+-BA=+—-HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C T CZZZZF ZZT-hNEF ZE-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFR AR%®ETT ARE®ETT AR%®ETT ARETR
Continuing operations BEGEER
Revenue WA 465,037 608,074 492 589 694,023 633,432
Cost of sales HERA (411,164) (486,390) (485,241) (685,401) (565,082)
Gross profit EH 53,873 121,684 7,348 8,622 68,350
Other revenue LN 15,826 15,783 17,626 19,855 9,479
Other net gain/(loss) Hip A/ (B8 FE 1,980 8,435 (39,416) 4,692) (179,887)
Selling and distribution expenses BERDHEEY (35,533) (46,860) (21,721) (25,556) (22,166)
Administrative expenses THREY (48,028) (62,155) (57,269) (47,614) (47,695)
Reversal of /(Provision of) expected £ RIEEMEHEE
credit loss on financial assets BEZEE/ (&) 5,752 2,529 (3,933) (12,774) (642)
Finance costs BEMAR (1,013) (1,245) (162) 407 (8,895)
Share of profits and losses of AEEE AR 28Kk
associates BB - - (287) (1,815) 282
(Loss)/Profit before tax from REFELEELN
continuing operations BB (BR), R F (7,143) 38,171 (97,814) (63,573) (181,174)
Income tax credit/(expenses) FEHEs,/ (A%) 359 10,153 4119 (168) (2,135)
(Loss)/Profit for the year from REFELEEBER
continuing operations FN(BE) /5 (6,784) 48,324 (93,695) (63,741) (183,309)
R ARG RAE

TR CFFR



Financial Summary (continued)
BB E (5

(In RMB'000 unless otherwise stated) (=& 750 AN R FLir)

For the year ended 31 December
BET-A=+—-ALFEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
“$-CF -—T--f C—FT-FF —T-NF —F)\F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERBTR ARBTT ARBTT AREBTT ARET:E

Discontinued operation BIERE
Loss for the year from a RELLEBNFRER

discontinued operation - 612) (587) (730) (1,622)
Gain on de-registered of B A AR

a subsidiary, net Wz 388 - - 1,183 - -
(Loss)/Profit for the year from RELEBHFR

a discontinued operation (B8B)/ &7 - 612) 596 (730) (1,622)
(Loss)/Profit for the year AEE (BB),/ &F (6,784) 47712 (93,099) (64,471) (184,931)

RMB RVB RVB RMB RVB
AR® ARHE N4 ARH ARH

(Loss)/Earnings per share attributable A2 B & BARIER A A

to ordinary equity holders of B2k (E8)/
the Company (note) A (P EE)
Basic: B
(Loss)/Profit for the year REE (B8)/5H (0.008) 0.057 (0.128) (0.104) (0.299)
(Loss)/Prafit from continuing SENEEBNEATE
operations (E58),/ w7 (0.008) 0.058 0.129) (0.103) (0.296)
Diluted: B
(Loss)/Profit for the year AEE (BR)/ %7 (0.008) 0.057 (0.128) (0.104) (0.299)
(Loss)/Profit from continuing SRNEEBNREE
operations (EB8),/ &7 (0.008) 0.058 (0.129) (0.103) (0.296)

Note: On 22 October 2019, the Company has effected a share consolidation of every — ffit: RZZ—AF+A=Z+=8 A2ARCHESERBRHE

five shares into one consolidated share. Earnings per share for the comparative PR —RE MRS - LR ERAFERE AR A
periods have been adjusted on a basis of five shares into one consolidated share —IRE IR Ry B AT T I EE ©
accordingly.
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Financial Summary (continued)
B E ()

(In RMB'000 unless otherwise stated) (=& 750 AN R FLIR)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE BERER
As at 31 December
®+=B=+-8H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
~E_C T CZZZZF ZZT-NEF ZE-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AREFTT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
Total Assets BEHRE 1,016,591 989,375 878,878 981,445 1,167,881
Total Liabilities BEBE 136,214 113,983 66,276 95,812 217,333
Total Non-Controlling Interest FRRERAE 884 5,520 - - -
Total Equity ExeE 879,493 869,872 812,602 885,633 950,548
FRAEYERERA T

TR CFFR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IE [ 5 e B 0 AT

BUSINESS REVIEW
Segment review

The Group’s core business segments are comprised of
manufacturing and sales of wooden products; retail sales of outdoor
wooden products; and manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products. During the Year, the Group discontinued its operation of
retail sales of outdoor wooden products. The performance of our
business segments are as follows:

FE O

7> HB [l A

AEERZLEBRIATOEM EERFEERH
mTEPIHIRES NEFINKEMARE 2B
BAEMHEBERRER RAFE KEE
BRIETZEPHIRERZEE RIS BED
Bz RBEMT:

Segment revenue % to total segment
derived from external revenue derived from  Reportable segment
customers Change  external customers (loss)/profit
HFERIBERZ 2RSS
FEMBERZABERA E-1 ) HABRABESL (ER) /8% (1)
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F —E-C —ZE--% Z8ZZ —E-—F
RMB'000 RMB'000 % % % RMB'000 RMB'000
AEB®TRT ARETT BAL Bol BAl ARWFTR ARETR
Continuing operations BHEBEER
Manufacturing and sales of HEERBERER
wooden products 460,742 601,968 (23.4) 99.1 99.0 (11,548) 57,104
Manufacturing and sales of HERHEEFHWR
renewable energy products Em 4,295 6,106 (29.7) 0.9 10 970 (2,209
465,037 608,074 (23.5) 100.0 100.0 (10,578) 54,895
Discontinued operation #IEEH
Retail sales of outdoor wooden ~ ZEFEIARES
products - - NATER NAFER NATER - (612)
465,037 608,074 (235 100.0 100.0 (10,578) 54,283

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

B A EE 0T (

=

ne=

)

During the Year, the distribution of revenue from our global markets
are as follows:

RABE - HFIREZHERHH 2 WD MM T

% to total
Revenue Change Revenue
KA -] HHERFALL

2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-- —E-—F —E-C —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000 % % %
ARBTRE ARBTT Bt Bok Btk
The PRC H 85,487 87,938 -2.8% 18% 14%
Australasia BAFFEE 328,919 438,912 -25.1% 71% 72%
North America JEEM 12,756 40,953 -68.9% 3% 7%
Europe BOM 34,037 29,777 14.3% 7% 5%
Asia Pacific exclusive of the (PRC) AR (TEERE) 3,838 10,494 -63.4% 1% 2%
465,037 608,074 -23.5% 100% 100%

Manufacturing and sales of wooden products remains to be the
Group's largest business segment, contributing 99.1% of the Group's
revenue. The revenue derived from such business decreased by
23.4%.

Manufacturing and sales of wooden products is the principal
segment of the Group. Since 2020, the Group has taken a progressive
approach towards the Australasian markets and have successfully
expanded its market reach to Australia. However, market demand
from the Australasian markets for the Group’s products has shown
significant decline in the second half of 2022. As a result, revenue
from manufacturing and sales of wooden products to decrease
23.4% to RMB460.7 million (2021: RMB602.0 million). Aggressive
pricing strategy has also led to a reportable segment loss of RMB11.5
million (2021 a reportable segment profit of RMB57.1 million).

The Group's renewable energy business focuses on the recycling of
leftover sawdust from the production of our wooden products into
biomass pellet fuel. Revenue from the renewable energy business
decreased 29.7% to RMB4.3 million during the reporting year, with
a profit of approximately RMB1.0 million (2021: revenue of RMB6.1
million and loss of RMB2.2 million).

HERHEABBNEARERANEBEDE
HAREBIRAR. % - IREPTF WA LT
23.4% °

AURHERHERAERAZIEEK B
TEEFE SEBEREFTERANAENS I
BT T 55 i 75 4% R 22 0 AT - SR KR 78 3B

MEEEREEMNTSERAE_T_—_F T+
FHRBETE B AmBERIFEERA

BA234A%TE AR TBEBE T (Z T - — 4
ARB20BETT)  HENTERBEEH D
HEEBARENSEEBL(ZE=—F: 5375

HAARESIIBETT) °

AEEFEREREFRS FREIBARREER
BREENERE RAESEELAEME BN
MR AEIR AR ERH B ERREB RS KA
TE297%EM ANREIIEE T MERENAA
RE10BBT(ZE=—F : am s/ ARK6
BETREEARARB22BEET) °

PRAEMERERAE

TR CFFR



10

I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EREREIT 0

FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt %5 [E1 i
Revenue by product category REmMERE » ks
Revenue
KA
2022 2021
= —Eq-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT ARBFT
Timber houses and their related ARE N EAE R BB R
parts and structures 412,893 535,761
Leisure household products KEREE®D
Outdoor and indoor furniture ERIMRIEE & 17,145 19,079
Recreational products T2 AEE o 12,877 28,939
Landscape garden products B & 58 E m 17,456 17,343
Pet-home designs EVMEEM 371 846
47,849 66,207
Renewable energy products BARE 4,295 6,106
Total #et 465,037 608,074

Revenue from timber houses and their related parts and structures
remained the largest income stream of the Group during the Period.
Revenue from such category decreased by 22.9% to RMB412.9
million (2021: RMB535.8 million), representing 89% of total sales for
the reporting year (2021: 88%), mainly attributable to the decrease in
sales to the Australasian markets.

Overall revenue from the leisure household products decreased by
27.7% to RMB47.8 million (2021: RMB66.2 million) mainly because of
the decreases in the sales in recreational products and outdoor and
indoor products.

During the Period, the Group's revenue from the renewable energy
business decreased by 29.7% to approximately RMB4.3 million (2021:
RMB6.1 million), due to the decrease in demand from the domestic
renewable energy market.

R EF AN ARE & H B R B R AN
BAEEE AR RIRZ D ER ST B
22.9%%F AEMMNE%%L;:—E AR
#5365 8AEIT) M EFNAEHETERL% (=
T —F:88%) FEZAHMNBEAMAEHEE
TRRFTEL

KEREEROBIATEIIRE ANREEATS
BEL(ZT-_—F: ARK2BEE L) =2
AR AEEERERNIMREERZHE T
FrE -

BREFAN AEEREFEERELHRAH
REIRNB AR SR &SI INm T #%29.7% 2
WMARBASEE (ZE-_—F: ARKIEE
JL) °
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l\/lanagement Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B3R B R A B AT ()

Gross profit and gross margin

Gross profit dropped to approximately RMB53.9 million (2021:
RMB121.7 million) as a result of the decrease of gross profit margin
in the reporting year to 11.6% (2021: 20.0%), mainly because of the
unfavorable pricing condition of construction materials.

Other income
During the Year, other income was RMB15.8 million (2021: RMB15.8

million) mainly represented by bank interest income and government
subsidies received during the Year.

Other gains, net
The Group recorded other gains, net of RMB2.0 million for the Year

(2021: RMB8.4 million), which was mainly derived from net foreign
exchange gain and write-off of other payables during the Year.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses incurred during the Year were
RMB35.5 million (2021: RMB46.9 million) which was a result of the
decrease in turnover and number of shipments during the reporting
year.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses incurred during the reporting year
amounted to RMB48.0 million (2021: RMB62.2 million). The decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in research and development costs
during the Year.

Finance costs

Our finance costs was approximately RMB1.0 million (2021: RMB1.2
million), which mainly represented by interest on bank borrowings
during the Year.

ER R ERE
MEFANAEBEFNETURE1M6D (2T =—
F20.0%)  HEEF THRERHARKESZIHE
T(ZE-—F: ARE1217887T) TEH
REEM B EBIEHFAPTER

H AU A

WA E MM L EARBISSERT (=
B —F: ARBISSEET) TBREFN
BUKER 2 84T 8RB A B 8 »

Hofth Yo 2575 58

AR ERHRREE b FEAR Y208 8
(=T —F: ARMBABET) - B MWK
To e B 55 U 2 % At A R 5

HEMDHEAX
RAPEEENHEERDHEHAZABARKISS
BEL(ZZE-_—F: ARBWIAEE L) £E
HESMHERNE T KT

TR
AEERMNTRALAARBIBOEET (=
To - ARME2EET) - FREE@AR
BB SR D B

BEE AR
REHBERTNDAREIOTBIT(ZF=—
F:ARMIIEET)  EERRBITEREN
fEshRg .

Income tax credit FrEHE R

The Group recorded an income tax credit of RMB0.3 million (2021: HMHFAEHRE R BARKIIEET(ZZ

RMB10.2 million). Z—F: AR®10288TT) ©
¢ﬂ¢m?hﬁm@1
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EI1EE S oA (@)

Liquidity and capital resources

The Group principally meets its working capital and other liquidity
requirements through operating cash flows and proceeds from
bank borrowings. The Group anticipates that it can sufficiently meet
funding needs for working capital and capital expenditure. As at 31
December 2022, the Group had current assets of RMB562.6 million
(31 December 2021. RMB524.3 million), of which cash and cash
equivalents were RMB113.8 million (31 December 2021: RMB61.7
million).

The Group's cash is generally deposited with banks and denominated
mostly in RMB. As at 31 December 2022, total banking facilities
utilised as at 31 December 2022 amounted to RMB100 million (31
December 2021: RMB74 million) and these were mainly denominated
in RMB and USD. All of the Group’s banking facilities were subject to
the fulfilment of certain covenants, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions.

As at 31 December 2022, the current ratio and quick ratio were
4.3:1 and 3.6:1 respectively (31 December 2021: 4.9:1 and 3.7:1
respectively).

Pledge of assets

As detailed in note 17 to this announcement, the Group pledged its
land use rights, buildings, other financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and pledged deposits to secure for certain banking
facilities.

Capital expenditure

During the Year, the Group's total expenditure in respect of property,
plant and equipment and non-current deposit for acquisitions of
property, plant and equipment amounted to RMB7.2 million (2021:
RMB17.8 million).

AEBMEIEFBEERSRRBITEROFAE
FERCEBEESRHEMESRT K -AEHTE
HEAASMREBEASREARZI 2 EST
kR B —_HF+_A=+—H K&EBH
ERBEEARBEL(ZE-_—F+=
A=+—H: AR®52435&8 L)  EFRITK
BEEBEBYWAARBIBSEE T (ZE-—F
FTZA=FT—H: ARBOTEET) °

AEENBEE —BFERRITERBOUAR
BB RZTZZFt+ZA=+—HB RZZE
T+ A=+ B - AEBECHARITE
BHEEAARBI0OEEL(ZEZ—F+=A
T —H ARBMBET)LFZUARER
ENE-ASEEMARITHEBERES
MR EERPER 285

R-EBE-—F+-_A=+—H0 K#L X RZ&R
FHEH R AL3IN3ET (ZE-—F+ A
=+—0: 951 A49:1%37:1) ¢

BE R
BIAREH E7ARL ARERERE
EAR BT RATFEFARSZ K S BE
ERBEATHURBETRITBEEE -

BEARMAE

RAFE AEEEBEME  BREMEENERH
YREBEEYE - BERERENIENHTES
BARBI2ZEB L (ZE=_—F: ARK1788
BIL) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

B 1R [E 5 am B o AT (@)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

The Group’s sales are mainly denominated in AUD, USD and
RMB while our cost of sales and operating expenses are mainly
denominated in RMB. Therefore, the Group's profit margin would be
affected if RMB appreciates against AUD and USD as the Group may
not be able to reflect the appreciation in selling prices to overseas
customers that were determined in AUD and USD. In response to this,
the Group manages fluctuations in the exchange rate of RMB against
AUD and USD by entering into foreign currency forward contracts
mainly denominated in AUD, USD and RMB with banks when sales
contracts were entered with overseas customers.

At 31 December 2022, the Group had foreign currency forward
contracts with their fair values recognised as derivative financial
instruments (assets) of RMB42,000 (2021: RMB5,077,000) and
derivative financial instruments (liabilities) of RMB18,000 (2021:
RMB896,000). The changes in fair value of the foreign currency
forward contracts were recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. All of the foreign currency forward contracts are to be
settled within one year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, we employed a total of 149 (2021: 383) full-
time employees, mainly in the PRC and Hong Kong which included
management staff, product designers, technicians, salespersons and
workers. The Group has been consistently increasing production
process automation, strengthening the training of staff with an
emphasis on high-technique processing with a mission on the
continuous development and enhancing of competitiveness.
The Group offered highly competitive salary packages, as well as
discretionary bonuses and contribution to social insurance to its
employees.

BERERE

AEBEMHEETZRT XL RARKHE
MPEEXRRREERTMEENAREFE-
HRAREREELZERBIEPHER K
AR MBI R ITTHFHE R BR LR T R 3
TEENEET WMAREE EHEEZ
FE R NREBERBIEPITLHERLD
BRERBEBERITIZERNRTRETRA
RESHENERIMNEANAEEARKE LRT
Ko 6 TTH E FOR B

RZE-_—F+_A=+—H AEEIIEER
HAOHRAFERTESRTA (EE) AR
42,0007T (ZF = —4 : AR¥5,077,0007T) &7
EERTE(BE) ARKI8000T (=T = —
Fr ARMES6,0007) R AN IR BHAHMA
FEEHINGEERRPRER - IANEE
HErE—FREE -

ABEIR

RZZEZ—F+-_A=+—H8 AEERF
NEBHEBI9OL (T - —F:3834) 28
BT BEHFREEEAE ELRTAE Bl
AE HEABRIA-AEE—EFBRaL
FrEEE MEE THEIIURF TS HMMNI
HBFEEINFRETRERESEIREN AL
ELAEERBEAZFNNGMES LTAEWE
EALA R & REEHMT SRR EK

PRAEMERERAE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EI1EE S oA (@)

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated based on the
performance of individual employee which will be reviewed
periodically. Apart from the provident fund scheme (operation in
accordance with the provisions of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for Hong Kong employees) or social insurance
(including retirement pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, injury insurance and maternity insurance
for the PRC employees), discretionary bonuses are also awarded to
employees and directors according to the assessment of individual
performance. Since the adoption of the share option scheme on
15 June 2012 and up to 31 December 2022, no options have been
granted.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The Group has no material events after the reporting year.

AREEOFHBECEE IR E SR B R RBMHIET -
Wi B AT - Br A TE R 5T & (RIS S AT
SREEPIMIE REBE BT St gR
R (BRETFEEENRREEZRE BHERR.
KERB THERBREBERR)IN AEEITS
HIREEHENEEXRENFEMEERESE
MEIEEL -BERET IR T —=F<A
+RABRMAUARE_ZE__F+=_A=+—
B iE - 755 B BT AR 4% 4 f) B AR AR o

BERREE
RIEF R SEBEmEAER -
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Corporate Governance Report
TEREAHRE

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. The Board believes that a high standard of corporate
governance will provide a framework for the Company to formulate
its business strategies and policies, and manage and lower the
associated risks through effective internal control procedures. It will
also enhance the transparency of the Company and strengthen the
accountability to its shareholders and creditors.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and certain
recommended best practices. The Company has complied with all
the applicable code provisions in the Code throughout the Year
except for the deviations disclosed under the sections headed “The
Board” and “Accountability and Audit” in this report.

THE BOARD

The Board oversees the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Directors are accountable for making decisions
objectively in the best interest of the shareholders as a whole.

The Board is responsible for making decisions on all major aspects of
the Company'’s affairs, including the approval and monitoring of key
policy matters, overall strategies, business plans and annual budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material transactions,
major capital expenditure, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

The Board may delegate aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management. In particular, the
day-to-day management of the Company is delegated to the chief
executive officer of the Group, Mr. Wu Zheyan, and his management
team.

The Company has throughout the Year met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or related financial management expertise.
At all times during the Year, the independent non-executive Directors
represent at least one-third of the Board.

EFZEARHERRKRKINEEER-EFEM
B BKFHNEEERBRARBRHIER U
il E E ZE TR A N BUR - A B R A AR B i A
FEEREEMBRRE RSARRNERE
WL HBRR REEANEE

ARARCERMBEMARIMBRARESR L
MAAN ([ =R A ) BT s 14Pr 86 (b X B IR <P
AN (TR BTG EE TERRER
BR-MAFE ARE—BHETTRRNMEE
AT ERAHRE [EF2 I RIAER
Bz —HRENREERIN

EEEARAEBREHENER -EFR
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The Board is expected to meet regularly and at least four times a
year. The Directors have full access to the information of the Group
and independent professional advice at all times whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors.

With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and
an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days
prior to the meeting. For other meetings, the Directors are given as
much notice as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances.

Details of directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Committee
meetings and 2022 Annual General Meeting held during the year are
set out in the following table:

EXgATHETER USFELHTHR-
EENERERR/VENBR TR 2EES
AEBEMMBIBREERR -

HREFZENTEHEEAMNS EFHRERANE
PUBRRIEFENEREN XREH TR
CHEGERRHAEFTE N -REMER
ME EFEBREBERTEBEERYEAT
H B A

TRITEEENAFELRFEZTEEH &
ERZEgERN S _FRREFAREN

15

Meeting attendance/number of meetings

SHHEREEHAY
2022 Risk
Annual Audit Remuneration  Nomination —Management
General Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors EXER k- Jonben #FHERE FHZRE RE2ZRE RREEZRE
BRBEXE EFeel -4 el -4 -4
Executive Directors BITER

Ms. Xie Qingmei (Cairiady) HEELL(2E) 1N 22 N/A T N/A T3 N/A i N/A T3
M. Wu Zheyan (Chief Execuive Officer)  REERE (170 45) 01 22 NATER NATEE NATEE NATEE

Independent non-executive BUEURTES

Directors

Mr. Lam Hin Chi ERBLE 01 212 212 212 212 212
Prof. Jin Zhongwei EAYR 01 22 22 22 22 22
Prof. Su Wengiang B R 01 22 22 22 22 22
Mr. Tse Kwok Hing, Henry HERLE on 02 02 02 02 02

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the Code, the Board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. The Board only held two regular meetings during the Year to
approve the interim results of 2022 and annual results of 2021 whilst
other matters of the Board were dealt with by written resolutions or
ad hoc Board meetings.

BEFHZTHBXEAIG EFEE85E
BFARELI TR ROBE-R-KXFE &
FeEARMAEHNERUAME_T_—_Fh
HEER T~ FEEEE MESTHMD
FHANEARZRIBRETEEREIE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board has carried out its duties and responsibilities as set out in
code provision D.3 in the Code, including the development of policies
and practices on corporate governance, monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, reviewing the compliance with the Code, disclosure in
this report and legal and regulatory requirements of the Group.

THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Ms. Xie Qingmei, an executive Director of the Company, is the
chairlady of the Board.

Mr. Wu Zheyan is the chief executive officer of the Company.

Further details are disclosed in the section headed “The Board” of
this report.

DIRECTORS AND COMPOSITION OF THE
BOARD

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of two executive
Directors and three non-executive Directors. Further details of the
composition of the Board are disclosed in the section headed “The
Board" of this report.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in
the fields of accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise
and number in the Board ensure that strong independent views and
judgement are brought in the Board’'s deliberations and that such
views and judgement carry weight in the Board’s decision-making
process. Their presence and participation also enable the Board
to maintain high standards of compliance in financial and other
mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company
and the Company.

Each independent non-executive Director gives the Company an
annual confirmation of his independence. The Company considers
such Directors to be independent under the guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each Director, upon reasonable request, is given access to
independent professional advice in circumstances he may deem
appropriate and necessary for the discharge of his duties to the
Company, at the expense of the Company.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND ROTATION
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
15 June 2021, which may be terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other. Each
of the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors have been appointed for a term of three years commencing
from 15 June 2021. None of the Directors has entered into a service
contract with any member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring
or determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general meeting one-third
of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy for the Nomination
Committee to consider and make recommendations to Shareholders
for election as Directors at general meetings or appoint as Directors
to fill casual vacancies.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

Q)

reputation for integrity;,

accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in;

commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,
professional experience, skills and length of service,

qualifications which include professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

requirement for the Board to have Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with reference to
the independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing
Rules;

Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board; and

such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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Director Nomination Procedure

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognises the need
for an additional Director or a member of senior management, the
following procedure will be followed:

)

The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify potential
candidates based on the criteria as set out in the selection
criteria, possibly with assistance from external agencies and/or
advisors,

The Nomination Committee and/or the Company Secretary of
the Company will then provide the Board with the biographical
details and details of the relationship between the candidate
and the Company and/or Directors, directorships held, skills
and experience, other positions which involve significant time
commitment and any other particulars required by the Listing
Rules, the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and other
regulatory requirements for any candidate for appointment to
the Board;

The Nomination Committee would then make recommendation
to the Board on the proposed candidate(s) and the terms and
conditions of the appointment;

The Nomination Committee should ensure that the proposed
candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the Board, being
particularly mindful of gender balance;

In the case of the appointment of an Independent
Non-executive Director, the Nomination Committee and/
or the Board should obtain all information in relation to the
proposed Director to allow the Board to adequately assess
the independence of the Director in accordance with the
factors set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any
amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from
time to time; and

The Board will then deliberate and decide on the appointment
based upon the recommendation of the Nomination
committee.

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EERAERF
BEAATDEHERMAR ETRAGRE
MEEERAEREFE —REER—AER
ERAS MEAETIIRF:

REZEBER REESRBREIERE
PREIR R E B REAN LA BER S
B R RERA R ;

ARBREBEZERERRATWEHERE
MERFRHEEANBEFE REA
BARNR R/ REFHBERFE Tk
TEERY REEER TERERH
BANEMBAAR EHRA -HEHS
REAVERAEMEEREREES EmiRE
ABROEAMFRE:

RAZEGHREEFREAARERD
R MG MERSROES:

REZBEEEREZREARERES
EREMZ T LEBRIIMERTE:

MER - BBUFATEST RELELEE
/EEEERERERTESFROMN
BER FEFSAMRELTRAEII
i (45 Bt 32 PfT AT BE 1B 4B BB AT ) PR L
ERDHEEFNBILM R

ErERRERBRAZB G ERER
BHRNOREE

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

ALle Abe N =+ L
EEIRWMS (8)

According to the Articles and in the opinion of the Board, Ms. Xie
Qingmei and Mr. Tse Kwok Hing, Henry and Prof. Jin Zhongwei shall
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All of the above
retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the same meeting.

Where vacancies arise at the Board, candidates will be proposed and
put forward to the Board by the Nomination Committee (as defined
below) as set out below under the section headed “Nomination
Committee” of this report.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Remuneration for executive Directors and senior management
is determined in accordance with performance, professional
experiences and the prevailing market practices. The remuneration
of non-executive Directors is subject to regular assessment by the
Remuneration Committee (as defined below).

TRAINING, INDUCTION AND CONTINUING
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment so as
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of
his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of the Directors.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the relevant code
provision. The Company had received from each of the Directors the
record of training the Directors received.
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DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After making
specific enquiry to all the Directors, the Company confirms that all
the Directors have complied with the standards as stipulated in the
Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up four Board committees, namely, the audit
committee, the remuneration committee, the nomination committee
and the risk management committee (collectively the “Board
Committees”), for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's
affairs.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company'’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Hin Chi, Prof. Jin Zhongwei and Prof. Su
Wengiang. Mr. Tse Kwok Hing, Henry is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee shall assist
the Board in fulfilling its corporate governance and overseeing
responsibilities in relation to financial reporting, risk management
and internal control systems and internal and external audit
functions. The Audit Committee is further authorised by the Board to
investigate any activity within its terms of reference, and is tasked
with recommending to the Board appropriate actions emanating from
such investigations. The Audit Committee has unrestricted access to
personnel, records, internal and external auditors, risk assessment
and assurance and senior management, as may be appropriate in
the discharge of its functions.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee discharged its responsibilities

by:

making recommendations to the Board on the reappointment
of the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor,

monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standard, and discussing with the external auditor
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

implementing the Company’s policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

reviewing, and monitoring the integrity of, the financial
statements of the Company and the Company’s interim report
to ensure that the information presents a true and balanced
assessment of the Company’s financial position;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems to ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have effective systems;

reviewing the Company’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor's management letter, material
queries raised by the external auditor to the management, if
any, in respect of the accounting records, financial accounts or
systems of control and the management’s response to such
queries; and

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Code on
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to obtain external

legal

or other independent professional advice and to secure the

attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it
considers necessary in the performance of its functions. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources by the Company
to discharge its duties. The Audit Committee’s specific terms
of reference are available on request to any shareholder of the
Company and are posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website, www.merrygardenholdings.com.
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During the Year, the Audit Committee together with management has
reviewed the Code, the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed the Group's internal control and financial
reporting matters, including a review of the annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and the interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2022, with recommendation to the Board for
approval. The Audit Committee has also recommended to the Board
that CWK CPA Limited (“CWK") be appointed as the external auditors
of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises all independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tse Kwok Hing, Henry, Prof. Jin
Zhongwei and Prof. Su Wengiang. Prof. Jin Zzhongwei is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee.

The major duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(@) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all Directors” and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(c)  to make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

(d) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

(e) to review and approve management’s remuneration proposals
by reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;
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(f)  to review and approve compensation payable to the executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(g to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to

dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

(h)  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration policy and structure of the executive Directors and
senior management of the Company, and offered advice on the
same to the Board. The Remuneration Committee also resolved to
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises all independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Tse Kwok Hing, Henry, Prof. Jin Zhongwei
and Prof. Su Wengiang. Prof. Jin Zzhongwei is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(@ to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;,

(b)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
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—
(@)
N

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

=

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer of the Group.

Where vacancy on the Board exists, the Nomination Committee
will carry out a selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations, and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of candidates
for directorship.

The Nomination Committee’'s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, conducted performance evaluations to
assess whether the non-executive Directors have spent enough
time in fulfilling their duties, assessed the independence of
independent non-executive Directors, and had been keeping under
review the leadership needs of the organisation, both executive and
non-executive, with a view to ensuring the continued ability of the
organisation to compete effectively in the marketplace.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the approach to achieve a sustainable and balanced
development of the Company and to enhance the quality of
performance of the Company. The Policy aims at achieving diversity
on the Board.

Measurable Objectives and Selection

In designing the Board's composition, a number of perspectives
which include race, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, industry experience, technical and professional
experience, knowledge, skills, length of service, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates will be taken
into consideration. The Company will also take into account factors
relating to its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. The ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution that
the candidates will bring to the Board. Candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The Board currently consists of one female member. The Board will
take opportunity to increase the proportion of female members
over time when selecting and making recommendation on suitable
candidates for Board appointments. The Board would ensure that
appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved with reference to
stakeholders’ expectation and international and local recommended
best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing the Board to gender
parity. The Board also aspires to having an appropriate proportion of
Directors who have direct experience in the Group's core markets,
with different ethnic backgrounds, and reflecting the Group's strategy.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
board diversity policy and report to the Board annually.
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Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises all independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tse Kwok Hing, Henry, Prof. Jin
Zhongwei and Prof. Su Wengiang. Mr. Tse Kwok Hing, Henry is the
chairman of the Risk Management Committee.

The major duties of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

@)

to review the Group risk, capital and liquidity management
framework, the Group's risk appetite, its risk policies and
standards, and supporting risk limits, including the parameters
used and the methodology adopted, and the processes used
for identifying and assessing risks;

to review material risk exposures of the Group, including
market, credit, insurance, operational, liquidity, and economic
and regulatory capital risks against the Group's risk
measurement methodologies and management actions to
monitor and control such exposures;

to review the standard for accurate and timely monitoring of
large exposures and certain risk types of critical importance,
and the Group's capability to identify and manage new risk
types;

to receive reports and recommendations from management on
the Group's attitude to and tolerance of risk, including financial
and non-financial risks;

to oversee the Group’s processes and policies for determining
risk tolerance and review management’'s measurement and
effectiveness of, and compliance with, approved Group risk
tolerance levels and policies and standards, and the resultant
action in respect of policy breaches;

to review the risks inherent in strategic transactions and
business plans and provide the Board with input on the risk/
reward trade offs implicit within those plans; and

to review the Group’s capability to identify and manage new
risk types, and the Group's stress tests to ensure they are
rigorous and the Group responds adequately to the results.
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The Risk Management Committee’s specific terms of reference are
available on request to any shareholder of the Company and are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website,
www.merrygardenholdings.com.

During the Year, the Risk Management Committee has evaluated and
assessed the effectiveness and adequacy of the Terms of Reference
of the Risk Management Committee.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Company to ensure that these
financial statements give a true and fair presentation in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards.

The statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is
set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 53 to 60.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Pursuant to Code provision C.1.2, the Management should provide all
members of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the issuer’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and
each Director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter
13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has deviated from C.1.2 in that while the management
has updated most of the Directors on a monthly basis about the
business operation and performance of the Company, not all the
Directors received such updates as the monthly updates were
conducted on-site at the Group’s factory in China. Members of the
Board who did not attend such on-site meetings did not receive the
updates. However, the management would provide detailed updates
to all the Directors on a half-yearly and yearly basis. In the event
there are any significant updates to be provided, the management
will update all the Directors as early as practicable for discussion
and resolution. The Company also has in place a system for every
Director to make enquiries with the senior management about the
business operation of the Group and to give suggestions or feedback
in the event such Director is not able attend the monthly on-site
updates session.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the independent
auditor's independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives a letter from CWK the independent auditor,
confirming their independence and objectivity and holds meetings
with representatives of CWK to consider the scope of its audit,
approve its fees, and the scope and appropriateness of non-audit
services, if any, to be provided by it. The Audit Committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and retention of
CWK.

The remuneration paid or payable to CWK of the Company for audit
services for the Year was approximately HKD898,000.

The remuneration paid or payable to Ascenda Cachet of the
Company for non-audit services for the Year was nil.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged Modern Assurance And Business
Services Limited, an external service provider, and Mr. Wong Wai
Lun has been appointed as the Company’s company secretary.
Its primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Wu Zheyan, an
executive director of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There are no significant changes in the Articles and the memorandum
of association of the Company during the Year.

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, members holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the Year, the Board complied with the Code provisions on
risk management and internal control as set out in the Code. The
Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for the
Group. The systems are designed to manage the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or l0ss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting
records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to
achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the
occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Company's risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review
of the effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted
annually and the systems are considered to be effective and
adequate. The Company also has an internal audit function to carry
out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems, and has procedures in place to keep
information confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of
interest. Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent
the misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.
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The Company has established and maintained procedures and
internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. The Company has adopted a code of conduct for dealing
in the securities of the Company by the Directors in accordance with
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Other employees of the Group who
are likely to be in possession of inside information of the Company
are also subject to dealing restrictions. Any inside information and
any information which may potentially constitute inside information
is promptly identified, assessed and escalated to the Board and for
the Board to decide on the need for disclosure. Inside information
and other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to
the Listing Rules will be announced on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company in due course.

SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD AND
PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETINGS

Shareholders or investors can contact the Company in the following
ways to make enquiry or to provide suggestions:

Tel: (852) 3904 1867

Postal Address: Unit 1909, 19/F, 212 Texaco Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors)

To put forward proposals at a general meeting, the shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed
contact information to the Company's principal place of business
stated above.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group's business and its outlook are set out in
the sections of Chairlady’s Statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis. Certain financial key performance indicators are
provided in the section of Financial Summary. The Group has no
material event affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the Year.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ") for the disclosure of information and corporate
governance. The Group also complies with the requirements of
Employment Ordinance and ordinances relating to occupational
safety for the interest of employees of the Group.

The Group respects the environment and is committed to minimising
its carbon footprint as a socially responsible enterprise. Carbon
footprint is defined as the total amount of direct and indirect
emissions of Green House Gases (GHGS) expressed in terms
of the equivalent amount of Carbon Dioxide of (CO,) emission.
Non-hazardous wastes produced from the Group mainly consist
of used paper such as office papers and marketing materials. To
minimise the impact on carbon footprint and the environment, the
Group implements the following practices to use paper efficiently:

o Duplex printing is set as the default mode for most network
printers;

o Employees are reminded to practice photocopying wisely;,
o Employees are encouraged to use both sides of paper;
o Paper is separated from other waste for easier recycling; and

o Boxes and trays are placed beside photocopiers as containers
to collect single-sided paper for reuse purpose.
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Electricity consumption is identified as having an adverse impact on
the environment and natural resources. A typical commercial building
uses more energy for lighting than for other electric equipment. The
Group is determined to reduce energy consumption and implement
conservation practices to reduce the effect of carbon footprint.
Air conditioning and light zone arrangements reduce unnecessary
electricity usage; employees enforce good practices in maintenance
of lighting and electric equipment to ensure they are kept in good
and proper condition to maximise efficiency.

Key Risk Factors

The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is also subject to government
policy, relevant regulations and guidelines established by the
regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and
requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension of
the business operation by the authorities. The Group closely monitors
changes in government policies, regulations and markets as well as
conducting studies to assess the impact of such changes. As far as
the Board and management are aware, the Group has complied with
all related laws and regulations in all material aspects which may
have significant impact on the Group during the Year.

Third-Party Risks

The Group has been relying on third-party service providers in parts
of business to improve performance and efficiency of the Group.
While gaining the benefits from external service providers, the
management realises that such operational dependency may pose
a threat of vulnerability to unexpected poor or lapses in service
including reputation damage, business disruption and monetary
losses. To address such uncertainties, the Group engages only
reputed third-party providers and closely monitors their performance.
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises the accomplishment of the employees by
providing comprehensive benefit packages career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual needs.
The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all employees.
No strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace accidents occurred
during the Year.

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to
meet our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner.
The departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just manner.
The Group's requirements and standards are also well-communicated
to suppliers before the commencement of a project.

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers through
various means and channels, including usage of market research
to understand customer trends and needs and regular analyse on
customer feedback. The Group also conducts comprehensive tests
and checks to ensure that only quality products and services are
offered to the customers.

RESULTS & DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
pages 61 to 63. Other movements in reserves are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 66.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Year (2021: Nil).
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute
dividends to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
to allow Shareholders to share the Company’s profits and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend
will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter
alia, the Group's financial results, the general financial condition of
the Group, the Group's current and future operations, the level of
the Group's debts to equity ratio, return on equity and the relevant
financial covenants, liquidity position and capital requirement of the
Group, surplus received from the Company’s subsidiaries and any
other factors that the Board deem appropriate. The Company’s ability
to pay dividends is also subject to the requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited and all relevant applicable laws, rules and regulations in
the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong and the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company. The Company does not have any pre-
determined distribution ratio. The Group’s dividend distribution record
in the past may not be used as a reference or basis to determine the
amount of dividends that may be declared or paid by the Company
in the future.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 5 to 7 of
this annual report.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 33(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company's aggregate amounts
of reserves available for distribution were approximately
RMB213,842,000 (2021: RMB219,939,000), of which nil (2021: Nil) has
been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company was
incorporated.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES

Details of the Group's debentures are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the Group's five largest customers accounted for
approximately 49.6% (2021: 52.9%) of the Group’s total revenue
and the Group’ s largest customer for the year accounted for
approximately 15.0% (2021: 14.0%) of the Group's total revenue.
The Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
68.6% (2021: 52.5%) of the Group's total purchases, while the largest
supplier for the year accounted for approximately 23.9% (2021:
52.5%) of the Group's total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates or any of the shareholders of the
Company who owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share
capital has any interest in any of the Group's five largest customers
or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
Throughout the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors
Ms. Xie Qingmei
Mr. Wu Zheyan

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Hin Chi (resigned on 1 September 2022)

Prof. Jin Zhongwei

Prof. Su Wengiang

Mr. Tse Kwok Hing, Henry @ppointed on 1 September 2022)

A description of the Directors is set out in the section headed “Board
of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

Indemnity of Directors

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year.

S
RAEFER BEEGOMEMT

MITES:
BEELL
REERE

BYIFPITES:

EBB R (R E-—FAA—AEHE)
CEE

B BRHIE

HEBSEE (KRB0 —ARE)

EENHBERAFRIEFERAREEE]

—ffe

EXRE
ARBBREFRBELHEENEZTRRBE
BEERBREEREENENEEFBEGRXE
AT RN FRER -

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022



Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEWE @

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein or
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, will be as follows:

EERSRITHRAEBRKRD  HER
DREFHEZRKE

RZEZ_F+-_A=+—H EFHELQH
BRTBABEEARTIREEE LB (TR
BE KBGO EXVE) BIAR G - BB G kE
HHREREBEIES RHAEROIEXVIBETRES
DEMAMERRABRBZAOERRXE (B
FEIRBE S LHAEEROIN A BIECEBHEE
ARBRANRERAE) IBREFFRAE
i PI EE352{5 A 50 A& kPt & s i S iR ¥R £ 7
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Interest in shares It e
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
SRR B
EENs S BaEH"E 378 4= B2 LE(%)
Mr. Wu Zheyan Interest in controlled corporation/ 89,929,482 9.76%
Long position (Note)
REBELE RESEENER TR (M)
Beneficial owner/Long position 17,024,596 1.85%
E=EEAN TR
Ms. Xie Qingmei Beneficial owner/Long position 16,750,684 1.82%
AEFER L ExBEAN TR

Note:  Mr. Wu Zheyan is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Green Seas
Capital Limited, his wholly-owned company.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company had interests or in short positions in the shares,
underlying shares of equity derivatives or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation defined under the SFO
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to divisions 7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he is taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein or which will be required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as at 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or the Controlling Shareholders (as defined below) of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the Year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or their respective close associates has any
competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company), who had interests or short
positions in the shares or the underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to

therein, were as follows:

FERRRARQ T RS RBERS
B S RKR

RoB-—#+=A=+—R THALGEH
FRAARDTHRITHA B RAR TR K48
BRAR (A o0 i 18 0 38 4 T B I S5 XVER 52 %
3D MEXAT REOERIAE  JIREE
%5 B H % DI B3B6 1B RARKIE AT B S
CEET Y

Interest in shares It =
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
SRR B
£1. 98 -1 S BEH"E 378 4= B2 LE(%)
Green Seas Capital Limited Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 1) 89,929,482 9.76%
E=EANTE (Hit1)
Hong Kong Cheng Kun Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 2) 84,720,000 9.19%
Holdings Limited
BEKHIER AR A A E=EBAN TR (Hit2)
Ms. Wong Shun Yi Interest in controlled corporation/ 84,720,000 9.19%
Long position (Note 2)
FELL RESEENER TR (HiE2)
Hong Kong Guoyuan Group Beneficial owner/Long position (Note 3) 140,350,000 15.23%
Capital Holdings Limited
ERETEBRSRITRERAR EBEmnBAA TR (#1i23)
RRHEMIZRBRAF

TR CFFR
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name Capacity/Nature of interest shares interest (%)
¥R 8t ¥
28 e B3 #aK™ Ein 8 E B (%)
EERE T R8BI AR AR Interest in controlled corporation/ 140,350,000 15.23%
Long position (Note 3)
ZEHEEE R TR (MaE3)
Mr. Wang Xin Interest in controlled corporation/ 140,350,000 15.23%
Long position (Note 3)
R EE REGEENER TR (HE3)
Mr. Han Jin Beneficial owner/Long position 97,384,908 10.57%
BeEE EnEBEAN/ TR
Ms. Han Hong Beneficial owner/Long position 99,653,908 10.82%
PR+ EnEBEAN/ TR
Notes: Mst -

The entire issued share capital of Green Seas Capital Limited is legally and
beneficially owned by Mr. Wu Zheyan, who is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Green Seas Capital Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Cheng Kun Holdings Limited is
legally and beneficially owned by Ms. Wong Shun Yi, who is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Hong Kong Run De Holdings Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Hong Kong Guoyuan Group Capital Holdings
Limited is legally and beneficially owned by Fi8HIE) T ¥ R #EERAERA
7). The 98% issued share capital of E/8H18) T ¥ & HEERER AR is legally
and beneficially owned by Mr. Wang Xin, who is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by Hong Kong Guoyuan Group Capital Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any person,
other than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executive's interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above, who had an
interest or short positions in the shares or underlying shares that

were

required to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and

3 of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded pursuant to Section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO as of 31 December 2022.

1. Green Seas Capital Limited#) & 202 1T AR RE Z
LEARERERHER REEKERRBNGreen Seas
Capital Limited#5 45 &) i 0 R #E B i 25 ©
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed by all the shareholders on 15 June
2012, the Company has conditionally adopted the share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of recognising
and acknowledging the contributions the eligible participants had
or may have made to the Group. The Board may, at its discretion,
grant options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to the Directors
(including executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors), the directors of the Company's
subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other persons
(including consultants or advisers) whom the Board considers, in
its absolute discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the
Group. The Directors were authorised to grant options to subscribe
for shares of the Company and to allot, issue and deal with the
ordinary shares pursuant to the exercise of options granted under
the Share Option Scheme and to take all such steps as may be
necessary and/or desirable to implement and give effect to the
Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and under any other share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue
immediately following completion of the Global Offering (as defined
in the Company’s prospectus dated 25 June 2012), being 100,000,000
shares, excluding any shares that may be issued under the options
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme (or any other share option schemes of the Company), unless
otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting and/or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time.
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Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted to an
eligible participant under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue of
the Company within any 12-month period. Any grant of options to a
Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any of their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved by our
independent non-executive Directors. Unless otherwise approved by
the shareholders of the Company in general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules, the number
of shares that may be granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive Director or their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue, having an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised, and the period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, however, no options shall be exercised 10 years after they
have been granted. The subscription price of a share in respect of a
particular option shall be not less than the highest of (a) the official
closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange; (b) the average official closing price of the shares on the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal
value of a share. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the
date it is adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10
years from that date.

From the date that the Share Option Scheme became effective and
unconditional and up to the date of this annual report, no share
options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of ordinary
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
92,137,051, representing 10% of the issued shares of the Company.
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Save as the Share Option Scheme and share award scheme as
disclosed in this report, at no time during the Year was the Company,
its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or and
other body corporate.

Other than the Share Option Scheme and share award scheme as
disclosed in this report, no equity-linked agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares, or that require the Company
to enter into any agreement that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares, have entered into by the Company during the Year or
subsisted at the end of the Year.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company, pursuant to a resolution passed on 14 December
2020, adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”)
for the purpose of (i) to align interests of eligible persons, being
the employees, directors, officers, consultants or advisors of any
member of the Group, with those of the Group through ownership
of ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”), dividends and
other distribution paid on Shares and/or increase in value of the
Shares; and (i) to encourage and retain eligible persons to make
contributions to the long-term growth and profits of the Group.

The aggregate number of shares to be made pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme (the "Award Shares”) will not exceed 20% of the
total number of issued shares capital as at the adoption date of the
Share Award Scheme (i.e. 20% of 741,200,400 Shares). The aggregate
number of Award Shares which may be awarded to a selected
person under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 2% of the
total number of issued Shares as at the adoption date of the Share
Award Scheme.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the board
of directors, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a term of 10 years commencing from the adoption date.

The Award Shares, once issued, will rank equal to all other issued
Shares at that time and are not subject to any vesting condition. The
selected persons will therefore have the right to receive dividends,
dispose of and/or exercise the rights of the Award Shares as per his/
her own wishes once the Award Shares were issued.
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On 14 December 2020, a total of 42,550,000 Award Shares were
issued to 12 eligible persons (the “2020 Selected Persons”). The
Award Shares were settled by way of issue and allotment of new
Shares on 30 December 2020 pursuant to the general mandate. The
42,550,000 Award Shares represented approximately 5.74% of the
total number of issued Shares and approximately 5.43% of the total
number of Shares in issue as enlarged by the issue and allotment
of the Award Shares. The 2020 Selected Persons are (i) senior and
middle management of the Group and (i) staffs who served the
Group for a long period of time.

The 42,550,000 Award Shares had neither any vesting period nor
condition, accordingly, the fair value of 42,550,000 Award Shares
was determined by the closing market price of the Company on
30 December 2020, of which, expenses of HK$6,808,000 (equivalent
to RMB5,777,000) were recognised as expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

On 10 May 2021, a total of 36,970,000 Award Shares were issued to
11 eligible persons (the “2021 Selected Persons”). The Award Shares
were settled by way of issue and allotment of new Shares on 10 May
2021 pursuant to the general mandate. The 36,970,000 Award Shares
represented approximately 4.72% of the total number of issued
Shares and approximately 4.50% of the total number of Shares in
issue as enlarged by the issue and allotment of the Award Shares.
The 2021 Selected Persons are (i) senior and middle management of
the Group and (i) staffs who served the Group for a long period of
time.

The 36,970,000 Award Shares had neither any vesting period nor
condition, accordingly, the fair value of 36,970,000 Award Shares
was determined by the closing market price of the Company on
10 May 2021, of which, expenses of HK$4,990,950 (equivalent to
RMB4,108,000) were recognised as expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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On 4 June 2021, a total of 29,648,016 Award Shares were issued
to Mr. Wu Zheyan and Ms. Xie Qingmei (the “Connected Selected
Persons”). The Award Shares were settled by way of issue and
allotment of new Shares on 4 June 2021 pursuant to the general
mandate. The 29,648,016 Award Shares represented approximately
3.61% of the total number of issued Shares and approximately 3.49%
of the total number of Shares in issue as enlarged by the issue and
allotment of the Award Shares. The Connected Selected Persons are
the Directors of the Company.

The 29,648,016 Award Shares had neither any vesting period nor
condition, accordingly, the fair value of 29,648,016 Award Shares
were determined by the closing market price of the Company on
4 June 2021, of which, expenses of HK$4,328,610 (equivalent to
RMB3,598,000) were recognised as expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2022 and the date of approval of these financial
statements, the Company had 39,072,064 Award Shares available for
awarding to eligible persons under the Share Award Scheme, which
represented approximately 4.59% of the issued Shares as at the
respective dates.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchase, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules requires that at least 25% of an
issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times be held by the
public. Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has maintained sufficiency of public float at all times during the Year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, there was no transaction of the Group constituted
non-exempt continuing connected transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules (2021 Nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in
the normal course of business are provided under note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements, and none of which constitutes
a non-exempt connected transaction as defined under the Listing
Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed
of Non-Competition”) with Mr. Wu Zheyan and Green Seas Capital
Limited (collectively referred to as the “Controlling Shareholders”) on
15 June 2012 so as to better safeguard the Group from any potential
competition and to formalise the principles for the management
of potential conflicts between them and to enhance our corporate
governance in connection with the listing of the Company's shares
on the Stock Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
compliance by the Controlling Shareholders and confirm that
based on confirmations and information provided by each of the
Controlling Shareholders, they were in compliance with the Deed of
Non-Competition during the Year.

The independent non-executive Directors were not required to
review any matter in relation to compliance and enforcement of the
Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No management contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of any business of
the Group were entered into or existed during the Year.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group supported a wide variety of charitable
activities in Hong Kong and the PRC. Donations of approximately
RMB60,000 (2021: RMB5,202,000) were made by the Group to various
charitable organisations.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware that any holders of securities of the
Company are entitled to any tax relief or exemption by reason of
their holding of such securities.

AUDITOR

BDO Limited resigned as auditor of the Company on 5 November
2021 and Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited has been appointed as the
auditor of the Company on 5 November 2021. Ascenda Cachet CPA
Limited resigned as auditor of the Company on 4 November 2022
and CWK CPA Limited has been appointed as the auditor of the
Company on 4 November 2022. There have been no other changes
in auditor during the preceding three years.

CWK CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the reappointment of CWK
CPA Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Xie Qingmei
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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Board of Directors and Senior Management
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Biographies of each member of the board of directors and senior
management team of the Company during the Year and/or as at the
date of this report are set out below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wu Zheyan (Mr. Wu), aged 43, is an executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Wu was appointed as
a Director on 17 October 2011. He joined Fujian Zhangping Kimura
Forestry Products Co. Ltd (“Zhangping Kimura“) as a workshop
director since 1997 and obtained knowledge and experiences in the
timber products industry including the production process, research
and development works and the invention process of new timber
products. Mr. Wu became the general manager in May 2000 and the
director and legal representative of Zhangping Kimura in January
2006.

Mr. Wu graduated from Sichuan University in June 2009 with a
Diploma in business administration (Distance education). Mr. Wu is
the visiting professor of Central South University of Forestry and
Technology and Fujian Agriculture and Forestry University.

Xie Qingmei (Ms. Xie), aged 55, was appointed as an executive
Director on 15 June 2012 and as the Chairlady on 23 May 2016.
Ms. Xie is primarily responsible for procurement matters in respect
of the Group. She has over 20 years of experience in corporate
management and procurement. Ms. Xie joined the Group in 1999,
and she has been a deputy general manager of Zhangping Kimura
since 2001 and a director of Zhangping Kimura since 2006. Ms. Xie
was in charge of the sales department of Zhangping Kimura as well
as supervising procurement from June 1999 to December 2000, and
has been running the procurement department of Zhangping Kimura
since 2003.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tse Kwok Hing Henry ("Mr. Tse"), aged 37, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company since 1
September 2022. Mr. Tse has extensive experience in accounting,
auditing and finance fields. Mr. Tse was the chief financial officer and
company secretary of China Yuanbang Property Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the main board of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (Stock Code: BCD.SI) from April 2016
to May 2018. Mr. Tse obtained a bachelor's degree of Business
Administration in Accounting and Finance from the University of
Hong Kong in 2007. He is currently the company secretary of Moody
Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 1400), a company listed
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Professor Jin zhongwei (Professor Jin), aged 85, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company since 15 June 2012. He is an expert in wood preservation
with over 40 years of experience in wood preservation. Professor
Jin graduated from Nanjing Forestry College in 1961 and majored
in forestry products chemical processing. He studied wood
preservation and modification technologies in the United States as a
government-appointed scholar from 1981 to 1983, and was a visiting
scholar at Oregon State University and Mississippi State University
from 1994 to 1995 respectively.
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Board of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Professor Su Wengqiang (Professor Su), aged 67, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 15 June 2012. Professor Su has more than 30 years of
experience in the research of forestry and timber products. Professor
Su was awarded as Model Member of the Communist Party (1855
ZE# 8 ) from 2006 to 2007, and was appointed as various positions
in timber industry, e.g. - council member of Standing Committee of
the Heilongjiang Province Chemistry Society (2#I4 T 2%
=€) (in December 2004), committee member of Wood Science
Institute of the Chinese Society of Forestry (B E & KRl
&) (in April 2010), member of Board of Experts of Standardisation
Committee of China Timber and Wood Products Distribution
Association Wood Preservation Committee (7 Bl /K #4 82 A 5L &
MBHEAMTREXZESERIEELZEF) (in December
2009), member of Board of Experts Committee of Standardisation
Committee of China Wood Preservation Industry Association ( /B
MIRETEHBEERZEZ) (in October 2011), committee member
of the Wood Preservation Research Committee of the Wood Science
Institute of the Chinese Society of Forestry (B EE & KRl
DERMRENEEZEZES) (in April 2007) and editor of editorial
committee of Biomass Chemical Engineering published by Institute
of Chemical Industry of Forest Products ( & B4k 2 R} £ 81 55 Btk EE
{EETEMREM CEMELETFE) ) (in December 2010). Professor
Su graduated from Northeast Forestry University in July 1982, major
in professional chemical processing of forestry products (#RZE1k
BT THREE) »and obtained a Doctorate Degree in December
2008.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chen Tianfu (Mr. Chen), aged 56, is the chief financial officer
of our Group. Since joining our Group in 2009, Mr. Chen has been
responsible for our Group’s accounting and financial management
affairs. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen was in charge of the
financial departments of Jiangxi Sanhua Real Estate Co. Ltd. (7
=EFH¥EMRAAF)and Fujian Dufeng Sugar Factory ({824 &
I 1% & ) respectively. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of experience in
corporate financial management and possesses the qualifications of
an accountant in the PRC. Mr. Chen graduated from Fujian Quanzhou
Supply and Sales School (@324 F M AL EH ) in 1986 majoring in
financial accounting with a secondary vocational school diploma.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Wai Lun (& f& ), aged 39. He was appointed as the
Company Secretary on 1 July 2021. Mr. Wong Wai Lun obtained a
bachelor degree of commerce from the University of Queensland in
December 2004. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and has over 15 years of experience
in the field of accounting, auditing, corporate finance, financial
management and corporate governance. Mr. Wong Wai Lun is
currently the director of Modern Assurance And Business Services
Limited.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
&N B AN
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA ENVIRONMENTAL
TECHNOLOGY AND BIOENERGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 61 to 204, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

B AZ RS (8)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significant in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter is addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on the matter.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
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Key Audit Matter
RARERER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EENERMIEEZER

Allowance for expected credit loss of the trade receivables

WHEKHAEZ AEREGAZRE

We identified the recognition of expected credit losses
("ECL") on trade receivables as a key audit matter as they
are quantitatively significant to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and there is involvement of
management judgement and estimates in evaluating the
ECL allowance of the Group's trade receivables at the end
of the reporting period.

B EREIEKERNENEEEE ([EHREE
EHEDERBRENZE WHARZEE HEKERR
HeapthiBmicBEEmMs ERBE LEAN MENE &
SRR REARNESERFIBECEREEEER PR
BEIRIE 2 HIER R E -

The carrying amount of the Group's trade receivables was
approximately RMB52,479,000 (net of loss allowance of
approximately RMB12,186,000) as at 31 December 2022.
RZTZZF+ZA=+—H EBEXENEFEKX
I ERE B X A AR E52,479,0007T (R EEEEL A
FR#512,186,0007T ) °

During the year, the Group has reversed allowance on ECL
of trade receivables at approximately RMB5,752,000.
FR BEXEREFEBFENTEHREEEEFED
B4 N R¥E5,752,000T ©

discussing the Group’s policies and procedures
on credit periods given to customers with the
management;

HERENRASEAEG TEPEEHMNBUR
PEEIE

testing the aging of the trade receivables as at 31
December 2022 to the underlying financial —records,
on a sample basis;
HEAREE S —_—F+_A=+—HESE
Ui BR R B B A B 7S S SR O BR AR

evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the external valuer;
AP ERT A B4~ BE DA B

inquiring management for the status of each of
the material trade receivables past due as at 31
December 2022 and corroborating explanations
from management with supporting evidence, such
as understanding on-going business relationship
with the customers based on trading records,
checking historical settlement records;
MERERAMBEZE _T__F+_-_A=1+—HE
BEREBEZEBEFORE AT RHBEEES
BEMRE JINRBERZ Rk TRETPHIFE
XBEE RERLEED S

assessing the appropriateness of the ECL
calculation methodology, adopted by external valuer
by examining the key data inputs on a sample
basis to assess their accuracy and completeness,
and challenging the assumptions, including both
historical and forward-looking Information, used to
determine the ECL allowance.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RARERER EENERMAEREZER

Allowance for expected credit loss of the trade receivables (Continued)
EBEKFEAZ R EERZE ()

For the purpose of performing the assessment of the ECL,
the Directors of the Company engaged an independent
professional valuer to perform a valuation regarding ECL
on trade receivables. The determination of ECL required
significant management judgement to determine the key
assumptions including (i) expected credit loss rates for
each category of trade receivables; (i) aging and overdue
analysis of the trade receivables; (i) information regarding
the ability and intent of the customers to pay and
historical data on default rates; and (iv) shared credit risk
characteristics of trade receivables groups and market
conditions. The Group calibrates the matrix to adjust the
historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB and the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

BREMRBLRE
HEE

PR MR AR

Hi

ESNERRAERELSFRAMBRRER
ﬁﬁ TEFERNRFRERMEBMMERE

AR TEHHEEESERNRUMRE E
$E'<TJ§%5/EAﬂﬂﬂﬁﬂ%AOSﬂ%l‘nﬂ%%ﬁ%Hﬁ%i&%*T\
EEMAZ BEER IR AREONRNTEEM
Hih AT BESEEENEE- 2 EREES
BROZE EREBERERFTENETNER
TETRERBRER B FAEMNEASHRRM -
A AR BRI AT R BR R S SR AR AR A - i fE b S B AR
EEEEHELTAZEERERESEEMK
AR A H A EOEORTE R BIBAR REARHERR

hif[[3

E*E%F%i%%?riﬁﬁu TERAMNERT BF
ERFEXAE REEXREREE - FFI

o FHAIRFEHNRFFHERMEBRE Y
BREGFEEANERRMHRAR R K
WITEN R UEEZERR U RER
EMHENENBRE FAEEEAMNE
Mo mREGFA R R BR RE BEEE
BERR S ERERNBEEMNIER B
bk AR B 3538 B R T 4 B B K SE AR PR
WEB SN REZHERERMERHNEKR
B FR PR st A R B

o THRHEEBEBHOANEE UREE
MEBERRF EXFEEY BEKRERI
EENARMELRER-

s HEEEMRASHBRENREMEREL
SEHEFT MR REN SRS

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022



Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

T8 N Az SRR ()

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

B AZ RS (8)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Chan Lok Hei.

CWK CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Lok Hei
Practising Certificate Number: P06654

Hong Kong
31 March 2023

RHEEFEBBNEFRT BERENLEEY
AHEEMBRENBIRA/EE AMHEX
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EERTERETEBZER
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meEmlkEMEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE—_Z - —F+_-_A=+—HILtFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN & E5)7)

2022 2021
—e_C S
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

i3 AR®FR ARETT

Continuing operations BEBEER
Revenue A 5 465,037 608,074
Cost of sales $H P AR (411,164) (486,390)
Gross profit E ] 53,873 121,684
Other income E A A 6 15,826 15,783
Other gains, net H b Y 5505 58 7 1,980 8,435
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (35,533) (46,860)
Administrative expenses TR (48,028) (62,155)
Reversal of expected credit 0ss TRMEENEBHREEREZ

on trade receivables [o] 23 5,752 2,529
Finance costs B & R 8 (1,013) (1,245)
(Loss)/profit before tax RERBHEEBEEED

FRIRET (B5HR) g% 9 (7,143) 38,171

Income tax credit Frig T 10 359 10,153
(Loss)/profit for the year from RERBEEEEED

continuing operations £ (BE) & (6,784) 48,324
Discontinued operation RIEES
Loss for the year from a RBELIEEBHFAEIR

discontinued operation 14 - 612)
Loss for the year from a RERLEEBHFEASE

discontinued operation - (612)
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE (F5E) B (6,784) 47,712

qﬂﬂiw}""ﬂxﬁffﬁ’z} _J 6 /I
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive INcome (Continued)

Z |:|\/

an\ = ﬁ'ﬁ £ @ H& i‘% =)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #;
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN & #5)

B -_—F+-A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—=E- —Eq-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
bt iF IN:1 5o ARBFT
Other comprehensive income Htht2mka (MRRNE)
(expense), net of tax
Itemn that may be reclassified HiE A e EF 722
subsequently to profit or l0ss: e h)IE A -
Exchange differences on translation BREBINEBI BT
of financial statements of EAREHZERE
foreign operations 12,148 2,521
Item that will not be reclassified HiETSEH S E
subsequently to profit or 10ss: AeA)IE A -
Equity investment designated at ETE BIE AT EFAEAM
fair value through other 2EKREMRAEE
comprehensive income:
— Changes in fair value — N EEE (897) (58)
—Income tax effect —FEHiEE 135 9
Other comprehensive income FREMZERE
for the year, net of tax (MERNIE) 11,386 2,472
Total comprehensive income FRZAEKEEE
for the year 4,602 50,184
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to 1 A& (L 2 NEE
(E18). &7
Owners of the Company ViN/NECIESY =N (6,558) 47,092
Non-controlling interest e i (226) 620
(6,784) 47,712
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable BARRRB AR ZAFE
to owners of the Company (B#E), &R
— from continuing operations -RERBECEER (6,558) 47,704
— from discontinued operation - REEKRIEEE - 612)
(Loss)/profit for the year HELFRFEAREZ
attributable to owners FTEE (BR) E&e
of the Company (6,558) 47,092

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)
meEBmMEMETEWNGRRE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—_Z-—F+_-_H=+—H M:EE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN B #5177 )

2022 2021
—e_C S
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

K it AR®FR ARETT

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to (3 5 I 2R FE (R 2 A F S

non-controlling interest (E518) &

— from continuing operations - REFELCEER (226) 620

— from discontinued operation - REBRIEER = -
(Loss)/profit for the year HIFERBREESRLZEEE

attributable to non-controlling (ER) &%

interest (226) 620

Total comprehensive income/(expense) F A & 7 (L 2 REE

for the year attributable to : 2mElE () BEE:
Owners of the Company KAREB A 4,828 49,564
Non-controlling interest IR R (226) 620
4,602 50,184
Total comprehensive income/(expense) AR Rl#E A AJE(G 2 K&
attributable to owners of the Company E 2@z () 4858
— from continuing operations - RABEKEEL 4,828 50,176
— from discontinued operation - REEKRIEER = (612)
Total comprehensive income HELATRBEAEMLZ
attributable to owners FTEER2EKES (XZH)
of the Company E- k] 4,828 49,564
(Loss)/earnings per share FTAFEERER
attributable to ordinary BEBAREKZ
equity holders of the Company #SBk (&5i&) &% 13
Basic N
— (Loss)/profit for the year —ARFEE (B1E), % H) (0.008) 0.057
— (Loss)/profit from continuing SECEEBNREE
operations (B18),/ & (0.008) 0.058
Diluted i
— (Loss)/profit for the year —AREE (EB),/%F (0.008) 0.057
— (Loss)/profit from continuing —RBECEEBHANTE
operations (E518) & F (0.008) 0.058

qﬂﬂim}""ﬂxﬁﬁﬁ’/} _J 63
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

NS NUR A

At 31 December 2022 A=—ZE=-—F+=-A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN & #5)

2022 2021
—=E- —E-—F
NOQ?S RMB’'000 RMB'OOO
it ARBTT ARETIT
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment EN ] 15 368,519 399,500
Investment properties TEME 16 32,936 30,358
Non-current deposits for acquisitions WEWME  BEREREDN
of property, plant and equipment s 17 220 1,698
Other financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEMEEYE
through other comprehensive income MEMESREE 18 1,445 2,342
Non-current deposit for acquisition WiEEhSRMEEL
of other financial assets JERN BRI & 79 2,500 -
Time deposit TF ERTF R 26 47,000 30,000
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBEE 21 1,378 1,213
Total non-current assets ERBEELRT 453,998 465,111
Current assets mBEE
Inventories GE 22 89,874 133,547
Trade and other receivables B 5 N EME H&%kléi 23 122,955 226,926
Amount due from a related company gk NCIEN 69 61
Amount due from a non-controlling interest & g 3 4% Hﬂ&ﬁz#\ - 2,500
Other financial assets at fair value BATESABRY
through profit or loss Hih e mEE 18 20,122 92,842
Derivatives financial instruments TEEMTA 24 42 5,077
Pledged deposits BEFFR 25 53,578 1,640
Time deposit TEHRTF 3K 26 161,332 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRESEEY 26 113,765 61,671
561,737 524,264
Assets classified as held-for-sale NEAHAGECZEE 20 856 -
Total current assets MEEERT 562,593 524,264
Current liabilities mER R
Trade and other payables 25 R H MR FIE 27 45,226 26,083
Contract liabilities AHAE 29 13,586 9,477
Derivatives financial instruments TES %EIE 24 18 896
Interest-bearing bank borrowings, FHEIRITIER B
secured 28 53,950 54,000
Lease liabilities HEas 30 69 51
Debentures B 31 - 4,376
Amount due to a director JETEE R 32 4,783 11
Tax payables FES IR 11,619 11,649
129,251 106,543
Liabilities associated with assets HEBHFEEE
classified as held-for-sale HENEaE 20 269 -
Total current liabilities mB) B (EREE 129,520 106,543
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
e AR R (8)

At 31 December 2022 R-—ZE=-—&#+-A=+—8H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN & E5)7)

2022 2021
—=E-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’'000 RM B'000
Biat AR®TR ARETIT
Net current assets mBEERE 433,073 417,721
Total assets less current HWEERTHAR
liabilities 887,071 882,832
Non-current liabilities ERBIRE
Other payables H b & 5UR 27 4,290 4,630
Deferred tax liabilities EEMRIBEE 21 2,404 2,760
Total non-current liabilities R B ERT 6,694 7,440
NET ASSETS EESE 880,377 875,392
EQUITY wa
Share capital A& A 33(a) 38,462 35,345
Reserves (i 841,031 834,527
879,493 869,872
Non-controlling interest I HE A 884 5,520
TOTAL EQUITY i E=F k] 880,377 875,392

These consolidated financial statements on pages 61 to 204 were  ARNES1E04B 2 A KBRERAEEFEN - F

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 — == A=+ —B#ELEEHERF W H A
March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: TATHKRERS:
Wu Zheyan Xie Qingmei
REE BiEx
Director Director
EE EF

PRAEMERERAE 65
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

N}

ER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE2—_ZT-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN & #5)

Fair value
reserve Non-
Share Share  Exchange  Statutory (non- Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve recycling) profits Total interest equity
ATEEH
k* EKRER ERKE EERE  (FAHE) REAN B8 FBEHE aed
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETRT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
oie336) (o 330N (ot 0N (note AN rote 330IY)
(WE33)  (WEB00)  (WE3300))  (HE33000)  (KE300)
At 1 January 2021 R-2--%-5-R 3259 688,615 16,481 55,107 81 19,889 812,602 - 812,602
Changes in equity for 2021: ZEC-FEGER:
Profitfor the year ERETl - - - - - 47,092 4709 0 am
Other comprenensive income/(expense) — ERERZENE/ (1)
for the year,net of tax (MBEE) - - 25 - “9) - 272 - 212
Total comprefensive income/fexpense)  ERZENE/ () £E
for the year - - 2521 - ) 47092 49564 620 50,184
Contribution from non-controling interest  JFiRRER AT & - - - - - - - 4900 4900
Shares issued under share award RERDREHIETRE
scheme fnote 40) () 2754 4,952 - - - N 7,706 - 7,706
2,754 4,952 - - - - 7,706 4,900 12,606
At 31 December 2021 and RZBZ-E£+ZA=+-AR
1 January 2022 RZBZZ%-B-H 35,345 693567 19,002 95,107 (130 66,981 869872 5520 875,392
Changes in equity for 2022: CECCEHER:
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - (6558) (6559) (26) (6784
Other comprehiensive incomeexpense) — ERERZERE/ ()
for the year, net of tax (RHA) - - 12,148 - {762 - 11,38 - 11,38
Total comprefiensive income/lexpense)  ERZENE/ (St £
for the year - - 1218 - (762) (6,559) 4,828 (226) 4,602
Capital reduction ina subsidiary frote 431) - —FIHB R 8 2 ARENR (Hz430) - - - - - - - (4410 (4410
Shares isstied upon loan capitalisation REFERETZRG (D)
(e 33) 3117 1,676 - - - - 4793 - 4793
3 1,676 - - - - 4793 (4410 383
At 31 December 2022 RZSZZETZA=+-R 38,462 695,243 31150 95,107 (892) 60423 879,493 884 880,377
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
el eRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZ—_T-_—_F+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN & E5)7)

2022 2021
—=E- —Eq-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
i3 IN:1 5o ARBEFT
Operating activities EgEE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations &4 ¥5H15, (FTA)RE 37 205,049 (35,884)
Income tax (paid)/refunded (B BREH (59) 7
Net cash from/(used in) BEIEHFRE (RA)RE
operating activities RERE 204,990 (35,877)
Investing activities BEEE
Purchase of property, LEEWME - BE &
plant and equipment B EEERN (6,975) (13,203)
Deposit paid for acquisition of WM WERE#H2EE
property, plant and equipment (220) -
Payment for the additions of BLATIL IR BV TR
investment properties 16 - (4,611)
Purchases of other g AT ERA
financial assets at fair value HEemEkamEe
through profit or loss HEM B E 2R (20,000) (62,443)
Deposit paid for acquisition WEEMSRERE 2 1ZS
of other financial assets (2,500) -
Interest received =S 2,938 2,953
Placement of pledged deposits TFAEBFR (53,578) (1,640)
Withdrawal of pledged deposits IREUE RT3 1,640 4,590
Dividend income received 2 A 177 195
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - BE R&E
plant and equipment FriSsA 2,385 439
Proceeds from disposal of other HEZRAFERTA
financial assets at fair value HE2mkase
through profit or loss HithemEE S 92,250 -
Gross cash outflow from derivative PESRTEEEN
financial instruments RemEE (9,340) -
Gross cash inflow from derivative MESBTEEER
financial instruments BemALRE 9,322 -
Repayment from non-controlling interest 38 (8 3F1E i i ek 2 1B 3¢ 1,790 -
Advance to non-controlling interest TSI R - (2,500)
Placement of time deposits TEHIF SR A93E N (178,332) (30,000)
Net cash flows used BRETBFMARERESRHE
in investing activities (160,443) (106,220)
FREYERAERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash FIowS (Continued)
I\\/T\/\Eﬁi 7@%% (nE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z - - —F+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN B #5177 )

2022 2021
—e_C S
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

it AR®FR ARETT

Financing activities M EE
Proceeds from new bank borrowings IS IRITIER 38 53,950 74,407
Repayments of bank borrowings BEBITER 38 (54,000) (20,129)
Interest paid BAIFIE 38 (918) (1,235)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHEAE 38 (105) (27)
Contribution from non-controlling IR AT E

interest - 4,900
Capital reduction in a subsidiary —RM B AT 2 ERER (4,410) -
Advance from/(to) a director ka,/ (A)EBEX 4,936 )
Net cash (used in)/from MEITBFMARERESHE

financing activities (547) 57,914

Net increase/(decrease) in cash HeRBEEEY

and cash equivalents /in, (RD) B8 44,000 (84,183)
cash and cash equivalents R—A—HHBRER
at 1 January ReEEYD 61,671 137,969
Effect of foreign exchange EfgmneE
rate changes 8,243 7,885
cash and cash equivalents R+-A=+—HHR&R
at 31 December HREeEFERY 113,914 61,671
Represented by: K&
Bank balance and cash RITHEBR LIRS 113,765 61,671
Cash and cash equivalents included BEGEEEPHNERE R
in assets classified as held-for-sale ReFEY 149 -
113,914 61,671
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
/\‘/T\ ﬂL 37"7% i& %% IZﬁL FI_II_

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 17 October 2011 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 6 July 2012.
The registered office of the Company is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands and the principal place of business in Hong
Kong is located at Unit 1909, 19/F, 212 Texaco Road, Tsuen
Wan, Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally in (i) manufacturing
and sales of wooden products; and (i) manufacturing and sales
of renewable energy products. As detailed in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group discontinued its
operation of retail sales of outdoor wooden products during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is different from the Company’s
functional currency of Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$").

—REH
RREMERBER AR ([RAAE]RZ
E——F T+ AT LtERERESES AN
FRERADE (=R —FEHIFE3R
Kira kg ERERSTMX L AE
REERAB -ARAIR T —Z_F+
RABEEBBARIMARR A ([H
R ER EMm -ARAEMPEEFR
A Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands - BB X EL XM AT B L EE
T H 2125719121909 =

=+—B ARAR
EW AT(MS%% DZEEXBENE
F&fﬁgﬁi%&& i) 7 R 8 A A B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
I\\/T\ ﬁﬂvq% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (mg

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS")

Amendments to IFRSS that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period beginning
on 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts —

Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards 2018-2020

Amendments to
IFRS Standards

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision(s) of the
committee of the International Accounting Standards Board,
including “Lessor Forgiveness of Lease Payments” (IFRS 9
Financial Instruments and IFRS 16 Leases), which is relevant to
the Group.

The application of the amendments to IFRSs and the
Committee’s agenda decision(s) in the current year had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current year and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

[ iR Bt 5 3 5 26 B0 ( [ I8 R O 5
HEA ) BT 2B

EA$$V§§%| R 2 BB B 7

SRR E

H =~
KiF'ZISEIEJAF’EﬁHTIB"%@EPEQ‘J
ZBg ([BERES /‘iﬁlléaﬁﬂ)?‘%ﬁz
UTBERMEREERER ZFERTH
AEEBE T —F— A BIRFEHH
SRR ARG Bl AR & B TS R

BERMBRERER 2EHIER
S35 2 EFT

EREHEY  DE BER
FIF BT RE-ED

R A2 W

EREHEN  EAAR-E
FURZET ARGRA

BB B s i R BURR B R RS 2R R
ZABE] 2018-2020
2 FE

PN AEEER T EE T ENREES
ZEEMEREAT BIEENEEMEEN
[HHEARKRBEERK] (BRI ®E2E
A 2595k & 3t T A M BB B 75 5 £ A 58
165 E) o

AEEERABERMBREENNETMNE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BRI - AN REST)

[ P Bt 5 e 5 26 B ( [ I8 R O %
WELERA]) BT 2R (2)

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 2.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSS in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

E 3 A0 18 (5] R A 2802 3T B B
s EAFER]
REEKRATER TR EAEMRER
B B2 B 1 4 5 S A MO 97 4T 3T

B 5% B 755 5 25 ZE
F175 (B

IFRS 17 (including the June Insurance Contracts' R E R

2020 and December 2021

Amendments to IFRS 17) ZEZTFARA
NZE_—%
+Z AUER
B 7 s 2R
BT 2AERT)
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BIR B s R KREEFHEEBED
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its £105% K& EIER EREBEREL
Associate or Joint Venture? GEHERFERE EMEELER
15T &2
Amendment to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and BRI EER SRADNIFZHHH
Leaseback? F165R 2 EFT HEBE
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as B @it £RE 1S BEIEARDK
Current or Non-current? Z1E35] FERBP
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Re Rt ERIE1R MmN IERE
Covenants? pACE a1Es
Amendments to IAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting B ERIE1 S BRER
IFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies’ ZAEE] R EIRR
B ISR 45 A
B I5IRE 2257
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Re Rt ERIFEST FRHMAFTHEE'

Amendments to IAS 12

Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction’

! Effective for annual years beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

ZAER]
BIFR &t A
1298 ZERT

1 R-B-_=F—-A-HRBAZRZFEE

RE-RXJELEN
BEKARARM
YR LR T

2 Effective for annual years beginning on or after a date to be determined. 2 REEZ AR Z B2 FEER
3 Effective for annual years beginning on or 1 January 2024 3 RZZE-_NF-—A—BRRZEZFESE

"

AAREFE EABELARK EH
Pt E 57 B R B 75 s o5 2 B S B AT o
SHEAMBRRELEATE -

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to IFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e ISR R M ET ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMENBEBRZEHERNE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EE@IBUR
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(@) Basis of preparation of the consolidated @ FEMBERRERELE
financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been METBRREBIEHER 5%

AR =S M M BN B A5 5 2
IR I 0 - AR Bl AR A BE IS R

prepared in accordance with IFRSS issued by the IASB. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial

statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values

T MREEEHLEEREYE
TERFPHRE RIZEEHEAR
BEERB -MINREMBRES
BEBBARSHMBRARF
ETRAN(TEMWARMDMEER
FERDI 2 Sk F IR ER o

RAPMBRRDIZE L RAEE
wmH - EETERTARSHRE D
R FEFE M IXAEEE

at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the R PR o

accounting policies set out below.

BELRABEER/RBRERM
R maETORENRAEE

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\‘/T\ ﬁﬁ% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (uE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

(@) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continuea)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technigue. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS
36 Impairment of AsSséts.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs
are to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that at
initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

/T\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

B BRI EF (@)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continuea)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from

its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
nﬂ‘ ;T%%i&%EM#HEKmE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMENBEBRZEHERNE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ESHBE#)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuead)
(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) ) ERGETHEE (#)
Basis of consolidation (Continued) RAEE(E)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary:.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

/T\

B BRI EF (@)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuea)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for sales
of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale
when the criteria described above are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in
the relevant subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
/\‘/T\ ﬁﬁ% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (uE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit
for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the
smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or l0ss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MEMBBRZAEHERNE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BEEHEE @

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuea)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) ) ERGETHEE (#)
Impairment of non-financial assets FEeMEERME
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual WETSBERHBAREBE FEE
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than TEFEE (TBEFE BESRIA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e ISR R M ET ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HEMBBRRZEFHNERNE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEHEE

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuea)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) (b)) ERGETHEE (&)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) FERMEERME (F)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting REBREHR BTHREETR
period as to whether there is an indication that previously HETRERERZBEEELXTHRF
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist e ATRER A o LR BB R - A
or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, 2 st e W e B EE - F AT B A
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously INEEBRZBEEE ELAMN
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than ErZEE RSB HFHT
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in LIRS ER TS RBE - AT R
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount BT eeRNHMBEFELERE
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the EERARESENEEE CREE
carrying amount that would have been determined (net (MNBEAITE HH) -BEZR
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss BEEEREEXRMEGT AGEGERR

been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties 2]l
A party is considered to be related to the Company if: ETIERT 5 —HEBERER
NAElBEE
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that @@ EASZEARTIFRELRR T
person’s family and that person: BEE
(i) has control or joint control over the Company;, ()  HAQEES S HERE
Gl
(i) has significant influence over the Company; (i) HEARFTAEAERTE:
or 3%
(i) is a member of the key management (i) AEREHLAKARF
personnel of the Company or of a parent of AMEZEREAS:

the Company;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuea)
Related parties (Continued)

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group; (If the
Group is itself such a plan) and the sponsoring
employers of the post-employment benefit
plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

/\\/T\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

BB ERR N (@)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuea)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBBRZEHERNE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEHBE @
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)
(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) ) ERGETHEE (#)

Revenue from contracts with customers EEAHWE (&)

(Continuea)

() Sale of goods () HEEm

The principal activities of the Group are REEMETEXB REE Y

manufacturing and sales of outdoor wooden
products, retail sales of outdoor wooden products
(discontinued during the year) and manufacturing
and sales of renewable energy products.

The Group's revenue is derived from selling
goods with revenue recognised at a point in time
when control of the goods has transferred to
the customer. This is generally when the goods
are delivered to the customer. There is limited
judgement needed in identifying the point control
passes: once physical delivery of the products to
the agreed location has occurred, the Group no
longer has physical possession, usually will have a
present right to payment (as a single payment on
delivery) and retains none of the significant risks
and rewards of the goods in question. There is
generally only one performance obligation. Invoices
are usually payable within 90 —180 days.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
I\\/T\ ﬁﬂvq% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (mg

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

(i) Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMENBEBRZEHERNE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEHEE
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuead)
(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) (b)) ERGETHEE (&)
Revenue from other sources Hfih 2R WA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease components, and
accounts for the lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments
on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMENBEBRZEHERNE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEIBER (2
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuead)
(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) ) ERGETHEE (#)
Leases (Continuead) HeE (&)
The Group as a lessee AL FHERBATHA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e ISR R M ET ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability,

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received,

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant
and equipment”, the same line item within which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if
they were owned.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBBRZEHERNE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEEE
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)
(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) ) ERGEBEK (&)
Leases (Continued) HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEFEABEAMA (&)
Right-of-use assets EREEE
The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FREEENKN AR :
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e IR R MR (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuea)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.
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After the commencement date, lease liabilities are REAEAAE HEBENEBRE
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments. A EREERNFEITHEE
¢ﬂ¢m?hﬁm@1

—— —

. 85



36

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

re IR R MR (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continueq)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuead)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in
expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
wm ﬁﬁ%i&%%ﬁﬁiEﬁE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBBRZEHERNE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EETEE 2
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)
(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) () ERGEBEE (&)
Leases (Continued) HE (&)
The Group as a lessor KEFER TN
Classification and measurement of leases HENBEKFE

AEBASHBEANEESERR
BREEHE - WS K Hﬂﬁf‘%

BERBEMEONBAED

K EIHEETABEA NG ’]“*E
RBEREE °?ﬁ7ﬁﬁﬁﬂ XN
REEHE

KEK2HENHEHSRARER
ERAREENHANIE SR
R-ERARLHHEEHERMELN
N EERAFAREEERE
B MEBKARERENERA

ShE

KRB B R & H B 88 60 BT 75 e
KE WX HONEE (HNE) EZ%
ERNOMEEE TR AERS
HERNERBEAR NS
HIK - SN DI ER E IR B 1%
RERMEZRSHIGEE - IAINET
BERAABARNIEEEEBE R
AREBEFEZANEANERSE
B ARR - AINE DB IR E 2K
AARKEERBEB T TER
Be-

WE

RNEEEBHERRENRES
BEEEMELAWENZRIINE
EHEME R R RER

PRAEMERERAE

TR CFFR

37/



38

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

/T\

B BRI EF (@)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuea)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at
the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve.

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group's net assets in HK$ to the Group's presentation
currency (i.e. RMB) are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in exchange
reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the
exchange reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or 1oss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMENBEBRZEHERNE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EETBE®)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuead)
(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) () BERGEBEE &)
Borrowing costs EENT®N
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in the consolidated statement of financial position and AEMERE B
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuea)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under “other
revenue”.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all of its employees and a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government for the
employees of the Group's subsidiary which operates
in Mainland China are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &R0 AN R EESIR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
/\‘/T\ ﬁﬁ% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (uE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBBRZEHERNE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEHBE @

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuea)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) ) ERGETHEE (#)
Share-based payments B 13 2 43
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions UBmBERRG T TR E
Shares/Share options granted to employees BTFEBIMRG ERRE
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and RTBIMEMREREURBED

others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share-based payments reserve). At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payments reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

When shares granted are vested, the amount previously
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
I\\/T\ ﬁﬂvq% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (mg

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MEMBBMRZAEHERNE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEHEE

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) (b)) ERGETHEE (&)
Taxation HiE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
/\‘/T\ ﬁﬁ% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (uE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable
to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on
initial recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities are not recognised due to application of
the initial recognition exemption. Temporary differences
arising from subsequent revision to the carrying amounts
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, resulting
from remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease
modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition
exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement
or modification.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMENBEBRZEHERNE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEIBER (2
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuead)
(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) ) ERGETHEE (#)
Taxation (Continued) BB (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e ISR R M ET ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or l0ss.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the Directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMENBEBRZEHERNE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ESBE#)
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuead)
(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) (b)) ERGETHEE (&)
Taxation (Continued) BB (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
/\‘/T\ ﬁﬁ% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (uE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.
To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMENBEBRZEHERNE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ERBER ()
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuead)
(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) () EXSEFIE#E)
Property, plant and equipment BMERZE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

/T\

B BRI EF (@)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuea)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including properties
under construction for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of investment properties over the shorter of (i) the
unexpired term of lease; and (i) their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 20 years after the date
of completion and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. A leased property which is recognised
as a right-of-use asset is derecognised if the Group as
intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as a finance
lease. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make the sale.

cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@ cash, which comprises of cash on hand and
demand deposits, excluding bank balances that are
subject to regulatory restrictions that result in such
balances no longer meeting the definition of cash,
and

(b)  cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than
for investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
Such overdrafts are presented as short-term borrowings
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MEMBBRZAEHERNE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BEEHEE @

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuea)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) ) ERGETHEE (#)
Inventories 78
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net FERKAETERFEMRESD
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined ZRIEEVER - FE 2 KA
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value FEEE - BB FEETE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

/T\

B BRI EF (@)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuea)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continuead)

Bank balances for which use by the Group is subject to
third party contractual restrictions are included as part
of cash unless the restrictions result in a bank balance
no longer meeting the definition of cash. Contractual
restrictions affecting use of bank balances are disclosed
in note 26.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL") are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMENBEBRZEHERNE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BEEHEE @
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuead)
(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) ) ERGETHEE (#)
Financial instruments E@MIT A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

/\\/T\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

BB ERR N (@)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
asset

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuea)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
asset (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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B BRI EF (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuead)

(b) Signi

ificant accounting policies (continuead)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

asset
0]

(Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BRI - AN REST)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuea)
Financial instruments (Continuead)
Financial assets (Continuead)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

asset
(if)

(iif)

(Continued)
Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve; and are not
subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss
on disposal of the equity investments, and will
continue to be held in the fair value reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other revenue” line
item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss includes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the “other net
gain/(loss)” line item.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

BB ERR N (@)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade and other receivables, other financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income,
other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
derivatives financial instruments, time deposits, pledged
deposits and cash and cash equivalents), which are
subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group's historical credit l0ss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MEMBBRZAEHERNE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BEEHEE @
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)
(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) ) ERGETHEE (#)
Financial instruments (Continuea) SRTER (&)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the 10ss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition.

() Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuea)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its
debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuea)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in
full (without taking into account any collaterals held
by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e ISR R M ET ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuead)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuea)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event,

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider,

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\‘/T\

BB ERR N (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuead)

(b) Signi

ificant accounting policies (continuead)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impai

rment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liguidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in
the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over three years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or 10ss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data and forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on trade receivables using a
provision matrix taking into consideration historical
credit loss experience and forward looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e ISR R M ET ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuead)

(b) Signi

ificant accounting policies (continuead)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impai

rment of financial assets subject to impairment

assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

\Y

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

. External credit ratings where available.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e IR R MR (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuea)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or 10ss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
wm ﬁﬁ%i&%%ﬁﬁiEﬁﬁ

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or l0ss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the fair value reserve is not reclassified to
profit or loss, and will continue to be held in the fair value
reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBBRZEHERNE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEHEE

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuea)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) (b)) ERGETHEE (&)
Financial instruments (Continuea) ¢RTA(£Z)
Financial assets (Continued) PERIEE (&)
Derecognition of financial assets BRITERTREE
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the AEBERKBREERSREN
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, ERENERR  HME—EiEE
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially EeMEELNCRMEER E s

j(DB]j AA&@:\F& Zﬂu:ﬁéwui
MEE-

RELERREHEXAFTENS
MEER BEREEEDWNE
WREAMEZENIBETHER -

R TR HXZFIETxé(Z'SE.
EEZERVGEBEMEE K
BAFEFE)R LAEBEM
PEHBEERATEFAEZHER
Rt mSEEIEET S
HEExn HeERBN A ANERE
FREEA -

LB ELER
DEREESER
EHERRATAEZRAENTHLE
UEReMmBERRAIANESR

DESTRAEIER-

BATHE
BATARAEANREBEEL
MREMBERBR ZFGRERN
EAAEH - ARFETHRATA
ABWERB PSS RIBNBR EZ #
TTRAR SRR -

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e IR R MR (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuea)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuea)
Financial instruments (Continuea)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of an
acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3
applies, (i) held for trading or (iii) it is designated as at
FVTPL.

A financial liability is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e ISR R M ET ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuead)

(b) Significant accounting policies (continuea)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading or contingent consideration of an acquirer in a
business combination may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9 permits the
entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
/\‘/T\ ﬁﬁ% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (uE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

For financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL,
the amount of changes in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. For financial liabilities that contain embedded
derivatives, the changes in fair value of the embedded
derivatives are excluded in determining the amount to
be presented in other comprehensive income. Changes
in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit
risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss;
instead, they are transferred to retained profits upon
derecognition of the financial liability.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
debentures, bank borrowings and lease liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. HMENBEBRZEHERNE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BEEHEE @
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continuead)
(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) ) ERGETHEE (#)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRIE(£Z)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e ISR R M ET ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or 10ss
is recognised in profit or loss unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in
which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MEMBBMRZAEHERNE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEHEE
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(b) Significant accounting policies (continued) (b)) ERGETHEE (&)
Financial instruments (Continuead) £RIA (&)
Derivative financial instruments PR TA

TETAVBRRITETEARE
ATERARBEETER LER
EHRBERAABEETRES
E-mtEENKERBRAERR
PHER RIFNTETEREERE
MHE P TR -EEBERT &
18 25 7P R A B A BUR 10 ¥ 0 8

depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. REYEE -
Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability A HEEMTHE E
A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and EHEEAEEERMAAEEET

BWHATHRMNREHECER S
BN SREENSRAEREER
o EFRAEAHMBARRER T
WU HFEEE SR RE
REENEEARK-

the net amount presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
NF ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%EKHHEKmE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Key source of estimation uncertainty

The following is the key assumption concerning the future,
and other key source of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The impairment loss on trade receivables are measured using
ECL model on collective and individual basis which requires the
Group to use judgement and estimates in making assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the ECL model, based on the
number of days that an individual receivable is outstanding as
well as their current repayment ability, and taking into account
information obtained from external valuer specific to respective
customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the debtors operate at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in these assumptions and estimates could materially
affect the result of the assessment and it may be necessary to
make additional loss allowance for impairment loss on trade
receivables.

At 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the trade
receivable was approximately RMB52,479,000 (2021:
RMB97,242,000). During the year ended 31 December
2022, a reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables of
approximately RMB5,752,000 (2021: RMB2,529,000) has been
recognised.

The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade
receivables are disclosed in note 23 and 42(b)(a), respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

/T\

B BRI EF (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
Revenue from contracts with customers

The principal activities of the Group are (i) the
manufacturing and sales of outdoor wooden products;
and (i) manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group discontinued its operation of retail sales of outdoor

(@)

wooden products (note 14).

Revenue from contracts with customers within the scope

of IFRS 15 is as follows:

5 AR DR

@)

EF AR

AEENTEZEBROEENE
EPMARERRINVEERIFE S
ERERER - R_TE=-_—F+=A
=St+—HUEFE FAEEKLETE
EPINRE G 7 EE (F5EE14) o

KBRS BRELERFISHEER
WEFP&HKEMT:

2022 2021

== —E-—F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

continuing operations BIREEER ARBTT ARBTT
Sales of outdoor wooden products SHE P INRERL R 460,742 601,968
Sales of renewable energy products : BERE m 4,295 6,106
465,037 608,074

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BRI - AN REST)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WKARSE2HK 2)
(Continuea)
(@) Revenue from contracts with customers @ BPefWs e
(Continuea)
() Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with ()  KEEFEA N HIE
customers #
In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by TRIEZZTEWEMS FTB2E
primary geographical markets, major products and mm R A TR I i 2 R U ©

timing of revenue recognition.

2022
—m——

— T ——

Manufacturing
Manufacturing and sales of

and sales of renewable
wooden Energy
products products Total
5ER SERME
HEXREL BEmiFES &t
Continuing operations RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
BEREES AR®TR AR®TR AR®TT
Primary geographical FTEMEHH
markets*
The People’s Republic of China REARLRME ([FE])

(the "PRC") (place of domicile) (fEFTiL) 81,192 4,295 85,487
Australasia SBA R AR 328,919 - 328,919
North America JEEM 12,756 - 12,756
Europe BUM 34,037 - 34,037
Asia Pacific (exclusive of the PRC) 2 K& (TEHEFH) 3,838 - 3,838

460,742 4,295 465,037
Major products TEESR
Wooden products REM 460,742 - 460,742
Renewable energy products BERRER - 4,295 4,295
460,742 4,295 465,037
Timing of revenue e A B R2RF R

recognition
At a point in time EnEMENEERER 460,742 4,295 465,037
* The geographical location of customers is based on the * EPHMIEME NERZINE

location at which the goods were delivered. YIEAL E i 7E o

PRAEMERERAE /I 19

TR CFFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
/\\/T\ ﬂL 17-,% i& i‘% IZﬁL FI_II_ (nE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

location at which the goods were delivered.

FREERIE M E

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARDEER #)
(Continued)
(@) Revenue from contracts with customers @ EBFPEAHWE
(Continued)
() Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with ()  KEEFEANa s HIE
customers (Continuea) (&)
2021
—E--F
Manufacturing
Manufacturing and sales of
and sales of renewable
wooden Energy
products products Total
EER EERBE
HEAZR BERRER b
Continuing operations RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BRELEES ARBTT AEBTT ARETT
Primary geographical markets* TEEHR
The People’s Republic of FEAREANE
China (the "PRC") (place of ([HE]) (A
domicile) 81,832 6,106 87,938
Australasia BAFIAL 438912 - 438912
North America JEEM 40953 - 40,953
Europe ] 2,777 - 2,777
Asia Pacific (exclusive of TRE (TRERE)
the PRC) 10,494 - 10,494
601,968 6,106 608,074
Major products TEER
Wooden products REGH 601,968 - 601,968
Renewable energy products BERRER - 6,106 6,106
601,968 6,106 608,074
Timing of revenue AR
recognition
Product transferred at EREBRENEARSEY
a point in time 601,968 6,106 608,074
* The geographical location of customers is based on the BEEZHBUERERNER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
/\‘/T\ ﬁﬂvﬂ% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (nE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARDEER #)
(Continued)
(@) Revenue from contracts with customers @ EF&#HWE
(i) Performance obligations for contract with (i) JERIET

(i)

customers

Information about the Group's performance
obligations is summarised below:

Sales of outdoor wooden products and sales of
renewable energy products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the outdoor wooden products and
renewable energy products. The payment is
generally due within 90-180 days from delivery.
Payment in advance is normally required from its
customers.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The contract liabilities from manufacturing and
sales of wooden products mainly relate to receipt
in advance from customers for goods that have not
yet been transferred to the customers. Included
in the contract liabilities as at 31 December 2021
of RMB5,940,000 has been recognised as revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2022 due to the
fulfilment of orders received before 31 December
2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

/\\/T\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

BB ERR N (@)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(@)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(i) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregated amount
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations under the Group's
existing contracts is RMB13,586,000. This amount
represents revenue expected to be recognised
in the future from completed purchase orders
from customers. The Group will recognise the
expected revenue in future when or as the goods
is transferred to customers, which is expected to
occur in the next 12 months.

(b) Segment reporting

In a manner consistent with how the Group managed
its business and the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’ s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified two
reportable segments, namely (i) manufacturing and sales
of wooden products and (i) manufacturing and sales of
renewable energy products. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group discontinued the operation
of retail sales of outdoor wooden products. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the above
reportable segments.

o Manufacturing and sales of wooden products:
manufacturing and sales of outdoor wooden
products to both domestic and overseas
customers, and trading of timber.

o Manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products: manufacturing and sales of biomass
pellet fuel to both domestic and overseas
customers.

5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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B MR (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

)

Segment revenue and results

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

Reportable segment revenue represents the
revenue derived from the Group's external
customers by manufacturing and sales of
wooden products and manufacturing and sales of
renewable energy products, respectively.

The measure used for reportable segment (loss)/
profit is “(loss)/profit for the year (excluding the
after tax effect of government subsidies)” of
manufacturing and sales of wooden products and
manufacturing and sales of renewable energy
products, respectively.

Segment assets exclude other financial assets,
deferred tax assets, derivative financial instruments,
pledged deposits, time deposit, cash and cash
equivalents, and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial
instruments, interest-bearing bank borrowings,
debentures, tax payables, deferred tax liabilities
and other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

5.

WARDEB2] (2
) DEZFR &)

() DHBBAREE
BIESBRBRREH LR
ARER A EESREEE
AN IE-2 -8 =

GELESE

A E2HmDBBRADRIEEER
HEARRM TEFINAEM
AR A ERHEBEERER
i B 2 S B 51 3R % P A 1S H
Ao

RE2HoE (BE) S5 F
RANAEELREENEE
ARG TEPIRBERARK
SEREEBLERERD
(R (ER) Jaf (TeRE
BT RL 2 IR E) ] -

ABEETREEMESHBE
E-ELHEEE TTEEM
TITHE DEBRER EBER.
BeRBELEFED REMAK
PEBHREERPEELEE B
RZEEAEREBEEE
e

DEEBETBETESRT
B s ERITER-ELF K
NHEBE - EEHEAEREM

APEBRFELEXAR:
ARREaBErEARERAEE
i

PRAEMERERAE

TR CFFR

123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
I\\/T\ ﬁﬂvq% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (n\5>

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. KARDE2HK 2)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continuea) b)) DEBZFR &)
(i) Segment revenue and results (Continued) (i) 2BRAREE(E)
The following is an analysis of the Group's NI RIBEREDBEAEE R
revenue and results from continuing operations by BREEBRAREEN D
reportable segments: ik
2022
—ECCf
Manufacturing
Manufacturing and sales of
and sales of renewable
wooden energy
products products Total
EER
EER HERE
HERRER RiRER Hit
Continuing operations: RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BREEEER AR®TR AR®TR AR®TT
Revenue derived from the Group's REREEINIEPEYA

external customers 460,742 4,295 465,037
Inter-segment revenue 2 EBREIA 5,149 2,900 8,049
Reportable segment revenue AE2RABKA 465,891 7,195 473,086
Reportable segment (loss)/profit 2R EEH/ (FE)

(loss)/profit for the year (ERE7/ (BE)

(excluding government subsidies, net of tax)) (TREBRRECHEYE)) (11,548) 970 (10,578)
Government subsidies, net of tax TR HAS (Fik) 5111
Depreciation charge on leased properties HEMEITE (112)
Unallocated other income ROBEAMBA 1
Unallocated finance cost RATABKA (147)
Unallocated corporate expenses AAOBEERT (1,059)
Loss for the year from RERABERBEZENER

continuing operations (6,784)

1 24 China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e IS EmERMEE (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BRI - AN REST)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARDEER #)
(Continuea)
(b) Segment reporting (continuea) b HEHZ2FRE)
(i) Segment revenue and results (Continued) () IBEE(E
2021
—T-—F
Manufacturing
Manufacturing and sales of
and sales of renewable
wooden energy
products products Total
EER
£ER HERAE
HEARHEG 8RB @ At
Continuing operations: RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BECEER ARBFT ARBFIT ARBTFT
Revenue derived from the REAZENIEP

Group's external customers B A 601,968 6,106 608,074
Inter-segment revenue AEEBA 5,843 3,482 9,325
Reportable segment AMERFBKA

revenue 607,811 9,588 617,399
Reportable segment profit/(oss) 2R PERF/ (BE)

(profit/(loss) for the year (EREF/ (BR)

(excluding government subsidies, net of tax)) (TEEBRAE HEYE)) 57,104 (2,209 54,895
Government subsidies, net of tax BT R (Fik) 5,280
Depreciation charge on leased properties HEMELHE (77)
Unallocated other income ROBEMBA 3,601
Unallocated finance cost RO BEH B A (1,245)
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBEERT (14,130)
Profit for the year from continuing RERERERBZENERT

operations 48,324

RRMEYIERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e ISR R M ET ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARDEER #)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continuea) b PEZ2FRE)
(i) Segment revenue and results (Continued) () BEEE)
2022
—E-C
Manufacturing
Manufacturing and sales of
and sales of renewable
wooden energy
products products Total
EER
EER HERE
HEXRA HRER #it
Continuing operations: RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RREEXR AR®TR ARBTR ARBTT
Depreciation charge on property, NE BEREBEINE
plant and equipment (31,430) (507) (31,937)
Depreciation charge on land use rights BDERFEREEEZ
included in right-of-use assets THERELE (1,919) - (1,919)
Depreciation charge on investment properties REMEZHE (1,526) - (1,526)
Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments  $74 £ g T A A FEK 430 - 430
Fair value loss on other financial assets EmepEELFERE (470) - (470)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (H& %1% « B &R fE 2 W 568 - 568
2021
—E-—F
Manufacturing
Manufacturing and sales of
and sales of renewable
wooden energy
products products Total
KER
EER HERE
HERHR 8RB At
Continuing operations: RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
REREE AREFT ARBFT AREFT
Depreciation charge on property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - E k& E 2N E (32,112) (507) (32,619)
Depreciation charge on land use rights included in BERNERAREEL
right-of-use assets THFERECHE (1,476) - (1,476)
Depreciation charge on investment properties REMETE (3,444) - (3,444)
Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments TESBTANTFEKE 4,637 - 4,637
Fair value gain on other financial assets HitepEAEATEKE 1,225 - 1,225
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  BEREE WS 103 - 103
Impairment of non-current deposits for acquisitions of 4B - BE KR &
property, plant and equipment JEBNER RS RE (1,907) - (1,907)

1 26 China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR ISR M R ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continuead)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Segment assets and liabilities

5.

WARDEHE2H 2

(o)

DEP2 TR (#)

(il PHEEREEHR

Continuing operations TR T
2022 2021
—EZHF T —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Segment assets DEEE
Manufacturing and sales of AEREEARNR D
wooden products 613,640 792,363
Manufacturing and sales of AEREEBRERRERD
renewable energy products 1,129 1,564
Total reportable segment BoBEE
assets 614,769 793,927
Assets classified as held-for-sale D AFERELE 856 -
Corporate and other unallocated 1% N H i R D A& E
assets 400,966 195,448
Total assets HWEE 1,016,591 989,375
Segment liabilities SWEE
Manufacturing and sales of FERIEEARNR M
wooden products 64,898 27,256
Manufacturing and sales of AEREEBRERRED
renewable energy products 598 622
Total reportable segment HoMAaR
liabilities 65,496 27,878
Liabilities relating to assets HAOMARARE
classified as held-for-sale $H MoaE 269 -
Corporate and other unallocated %2 KREMADEEE
assets 70,449 86,105
Total liabilities HER 136,214 113,983
Geographical information (i) IHER
Non-current assets FERE)E E

Over 90% of the Group’s non-current assets
are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no further
geographical information of non-current assets

were disclosed.

FB1B90%H) FE M B B E L X
TFRAORE BIEBEIER S
BENMEERELHE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
I\\/T\ ﬁﬂvq% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (n\5>

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. KARDE2HK 2)
(Continuea)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) b)) DEB2H (2
(iv) Information about major customers (ivy ERETEEFMNER
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of BRFIWABRBBWABE
the total revenue who are from the manufacturing 10% KRB EEKIEEFPINK
and sales of outdoor wooden products, are as Rl AT
follows:
2022 2021
—E_= —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

Customer A XFH 57,490 85,238
Customer B BEL N/A Fiii F* 66,575
Customer C EFA 98,204 65,776
Customer D XRPT 94,953 N/A 3 F *
250,647 217,589
* The corresponding customer did not contribute more than * HEEPR EFANLEFREB
10% of the total revenue of the Group in previous year. B R E A FE10% ©
6. OTHER INCOME 6. Hfug A
2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
Continuing operations RMB’'000 RMB’'000
GHEREXRY AR¥TT ARETT
Interest income on bank deposits TEHFBHA 7,817 3,601
Government subsidies (Note) EM‘%%HE (Hyaz) 5,111 6,212
Dividend income from the equity BT ABRAFERTA
investment designated as fair value H 2l v R E
through other comprehensive BB (K7a£18)
income (note 18) 177 195
Rental income A WA 1,499 1,046
Others HAb 1,222 4,729
15,826 15,783
Note  The Group received unconditional government subsidies of RMB5,111,000 Wiz RBZE-—E2-——F+=-B=+—AILEFE"
(2021: RMB6,212,000) during the year ended 31 December 2022 in respect AR E gt H IR B S ) MU R BT A
of its normal operating activities. There were no unfulfilled conditions or BEARE5111,000c (ZZ2EZ—TF: ARE
contingencies attaching to these government grants. 6,212,0007T ) © 7% 5 BT 44 Bh 37 £ KW 2 80 1K 14
s EFEIHE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/T\

B BRI 5F (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

7. OTHER GAINS, NET 7. HftWz=FE
2022 2021
—E-C ZEZ—F
Continuing operations RMB’'000 RMB'000
BEESES AR®BTRT ARETT
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain PEN (B18) W F58 (1,628) 4,635
Fair value gain on derivative MESRIANTE
financial instruments & 430 4,637
Fair value (loss)/gain on other financial assets b & gh & & A F{&
(E18), e (470) 1,225
Gain on disposal of property, LEME BERZEZ
plant and equipment & 568 103
Impairment of non-current deposits WERYI 2 B MR B
for acquisition of property, JERNERIZ & (A
plant and equipment - (1,907)
Written off of other payables b FE A5 SR AR 4,910 -
Written off of other receivables E A R W R AR (1,315) -
Others Hb (515) (258)
1,980 8,435
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BIBHA
2022 2021
e —E-—F
Continuing operations RMB’'000 RMB'000
BEEEXEE AER®TR ARBTT
Interest expense on bank borrowings IRITIEFAF ERAX 865 1,103
Interest expense on debentures BEHHH SR
(note 31) (#13£31) 95 138
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBGBENFERX
(note 30) (K712#30) 53 4
1,013 1,245
¢ﬂ¢m?hﬁm@1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

/\\/T\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

9.

BB ERR N (@)

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

(Loss)/profit before taxation from continuing operations has
been arrived at after charging (crediting):

(@)

BRBLAT (B51R) T
SEEEN (BR) /BN BETE
(B %EH:

Staff costs (exclude directors’ @ BIXNA(TBEBREESFH
remuneration) )
2022 2021
ZE-F —E-—F
Continuing operations RMB’000 RMB'000
BEEEXRE AER®TT ARBFT
Salaries, wages and other benefits %?/i\ ITERHEAMEF 'J 22,454 23,158
Contributions to defined contribution MR RETEIHE
retirement schemes 2,902 6,936
Equity-settled share award scheme VARR #E 4 EH 0 IR {0 82 B &t 81
expenses (note 34(b)) M (#15E340)) - 4,108
25,356 34,202

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the PRC, the Group's entities in the PRC participate
in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
(the “Schemes”) organised by the local authorities
whereby the entities are required to make contributions
to the Schemes based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries during the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021. Contributions to the Schemes vest
immediately. Under the Schemes, retirement benefits
of existing and retired employees are payable by the
relevant scheme administrators and the Group has no
further obligations beyond the annual contributions.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Group had no forfeited contributions under its retirement
benefit scheme in the PRC and under the MPF Scheme
in Hong Kong which may be used to reduce the existing
level of contributions as described in paragraph 26(2)
of Appendix 16 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange.

R B & A B 8k A ROA AR
REEBNATENEES MM
ERERNTEEEFRKENE
([ZstE) B - E@AEEAR
HE_Z-_FR-FT-_—F+=
A=+ HLEFEZRAEKEEY
B — & B D LL A AT SIE L3R
HZ B EL MR REE R
BEEEE BBERRRKEENR
KEFBBEBETEE BB
BREEHRIIN REBEEE—FE
Fo

HE-Z-—_FR-FT-_—F+=
A=+—BLEE AE@BEFEH
FRAKEFTEMEENRTESE
BT I R R R 3R AT B RVR
JF%“\HUﬁ%iﬂﬂﬁﬂUﬁﬁﬂé%
(2)E% FT it M9 358 K -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
/\‘/T\ ﬂL 37"7% i& %% IZﬁL FI_II_ (nE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 9. PBRBiAT (&58) H5F @)
(b) Other items () HMIAEHE
2022 2021
== —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBFT
Depreciation charge — continuing TE-—FERLEED
operations (note 15) (Hat15)
— Owned property, plant and —BEME BEREE
equipment meEXE 31,937 32,619
- Right-of-use assets: —EREEE:
— Land use rights — T HbfE AR 1,807 1,476
— Leased properties —HEWE 112 77
— Investment properties (note 16) —EWE (Hit16) 1,526 3,444
Depreciation charge — discontinued TE—IRIEER
operation (note 14) (Hit14)
— Owned property, plant and —BEE WELEHE
equipment - 260
Total depreciation charge 4T 35,382 37,876
Cost of inventories recognised as BRARBTFEREZER
expenses (note) (K1a2) 418,041 486,390
Research and development costs B A N 14,671 19,517
Auditors’ remuneration Z BN BN & 777 815

Note: Cost of inventories includes RMB37,632,000 (2021: RMB52,143,000)

et BE_Z-—_F+-A=+—HLFE"

for the year ended 31 December 2022 relating to staff costs and
depreciation, which amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 9(a) for each of
these types of expenses.

FERABEARE37,632,0007T (ZF
Z—%: ARM52,143,0007T) % K B T
KARFE BRSBEREFFARLEX
M EO@A B RZ SR EFRED
BEBEA-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
I\\/T\ ﬁﬂvq% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (/l/\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

132

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT 10. FRISHIER
(@) Taxation represents: @ MiIEds:
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—4F
Continuing operations RMB’000 RMB'000
BIBEEESES AR#®TT AREEFTT
Current tax - PRC corporate EPHARMIE-PELERFR
income tax
Charged for the year FRNEE 27 65
Over-provision in previous years BT EBERE - (10,874)
Deferred tax expense BIERIARMX
(Credited)/charged for the year FR(ERE),BE
(note 21(a)) (Ktzt21(a)) (386) 656
Income tax credit FristiE o (359) (10,153)

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\‘/T\

BB ERR N (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continuec) 10. FREHIER (@)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax credit b)) HERBEFENHIEER
and (loss)/profit before tax at applicable % EBRBAT (BEB) 5T
tax rates: SO

2022 2021
—E-C —T=—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBET T
(Loss)/profit before tax from continuing TR FHE A S R BLAT
operations (E518) /& F (7,143) 38,171
Tax at the statutory rate of 25% RE T R25%:TE 2§18 (1,786) 9,543
Tax concession (notes (iv) & (v)) MBEE (HZEWY)) (872) (5,450)
Tax effect of income non-taxable BAERRIRANR G E
for tax purpose (161) (333)
Tax effect of expenses non-deductible FEHIR S HH RIS s
for tax purpose 307 2,489
Tax effect of bonus deduction for research i Z A ERIBN RS T2
and development expenses (3,668) (2,791)
Tax effect of deductible temporary difference AN E B 14 = BT £ (3,922) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR HIEFBENRB T E 9,863 -
Utilisation of tax losses previously not LA RIT A W 2R 2 B T8 5 48 &0 71 A
recognised = (3,164)
Over-provision in previous years BAFEBEEE - (10,874)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries Efl't\ ﬁﬂ AEEBERAEN
operating in other jurisdictions NETRBERTZE 76 784
Others ﬁﬁﬂ (196) (357)
Income tax credit for the year HFBERKEERBERZERN
(relating to continuing operations) FristiEE 2 (359) (10,153)
FRIAEYIZERBERAT

TR CFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
/\‘/T\ 7f le% i& i‘% IZT—JL III_II_ (nE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 B R5N U R BEZR)

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continuea)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax credit
and (loss)/profit before tax at applicable
tax rates: (continued)

Notes:

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Group did
not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Group's PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC corporate income
tax at the statutory rate of 25% unless otherwise specified.

Fujian Zhangping Kimura Forestry Products Co., Ltd (“Zhangping
Kimura") applied and was approved for the renewal of High and
New Technology Entities ("HNTE") qualification under the PRC
Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant regulations during
2019, and therefore is entitled to the preferential income tax rate
of 15% for a period of four years from 2019 to 2022.

Under the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, the CIT rate applicable
to small-scale enterprises with law profitability that meet certain
conditions including the assessable profits not more than
RMB3,000,000, shall be reduced to 20%. Two of the Company's
subsidiaries (2021: six of the Company’s subsidiaries) have been
designated as small-scale enterprises, pursuant to which, (i) the
first RMB1,000,000 of assessable profits (the “1st Assessable
Profits”) of these subsidiaries are effectively taxable at 2.5% (i.e.
20% on 12.5% of the 1st Assessable Profits); and (i) the remaining
assessable profits not over RMB3,000,000 (the “Remaining
Assessable Profits”) are effectively taxable at 10% (i.e. 20% on 50%
of the Remaining Assessable Profits).

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its relevant
regulations, dividends receivable by non-PRC resident corporate
investors from PRC resident enterprises are subject to withholding
income tax at 10% unless reduced by tax treaties or arrangements,
for profits earned since 1 January 2008.

Since the Group can control the quantum and timing of
distribution of profits of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC,
deferred tax liabilities are only recognised to the extent that
such profits are expected to be distributed through dividend
payment by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries in the foreseeable
future. As at 31 December 2022, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to
overseas holding company amounted to RMB277,171,000 (2021:
RMB206,584,000) and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities of
RMB27,717,000 (2021: RMB20,658,000) have not been recognised.

10. FISHIER &2

(b) r‘*ﬁﬁm ETE R IE R
T HBRF A (BE) a5
E@ﬁ,ﬁﬁ-(,,.,s)

Hyat

BE_FT-__FR-F-_—F+-A
=+ —BIEFE AR EE L ERIUAS
MEBNEHAOEMERBEN 8
EREBMIS BT RRE-

i. A ) B B D7) 78 1R25%)% T B
FHMPBELEMREN SHEAER
Hho

ii. BREETANMEBRAR (DEF
ANDER=ZZT-NAFRETEPERR
BEARERBERREL SRR
i3 ([RHIBAMDE]) HREER -
BR-_FE-NFE_F__FHEFE
HHARZA15%NEERSHBE -

V. BREBGEMSHRE TEETHRE (2
¥E JE R B s 7| 48 38 A R 63,000,000
TIZBMENBREZNEGEBERZ
EEMGH([REMERDHEERE
E220% - AAREF _MHEAR (=
Fo—F:ANHAWNBERARCEEER
PRI B ()ZEHBRAIEAR
#1,000,0007T 2 FE R B M ([ & HLRERR
Biog A1) BRI E2.5% (B11R12.5%
ERFE SRR F) 2 20% ) #18: R (g T
T % AR #3,000,0007T 2 F& SR Bt s A
(MR T RERTOEM ) AR BB E10%
( BNIR50%8R T FERR TR F1) 2 20% ) 1%

V., RBEPELERFREREARBER
FFRERREERTFREREERE
T N\F— A — B REE & A6 R
U B B 72 HR 0% B R i TR HI A - e
B GRAHZ BR1E B2 B S 1Bl o

HAAREBR A AIEHAEBREREN T
AEFESENSEMEER Bt EE
FEEIAREEMFRE T AREAERMER
FBBAR B D BRI AT TR
BEMGHAB R-_T=_=F+=A
=+—RA BAEERBERBERRERD
BRAEEEIMERARE @O ERER
A ANRB277,171,0000 (Z T = — 4 ¢
A R #206,584,0007T ) 2 48 & i FE 7 18
B EARY27,717,0005T (—F - —4F:
AR 20,658,000 ) R FER °

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e IS EmERMEE (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BRI - AN REST)

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation is as follows:

1. EEHM
RIE A A T E383ME A T (3
BEEMRER) BB RESRT &
EHMIMT -

2022
o
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme award
fees in kind bonuses contributions scheme Total
e RER
EEfig Ehila MWL BHHBER RORBHY @i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR IN:T & AR®TR AR®TR
Executive directors BiTES

Wu Zheyan REE 360 1141 - 4 - 1,505
Xie Qingmel EilE 60 5 - - - 65
420 1,146 - 4 - 1,570

Independent non-executive BIFHTES

directors

Lam Hin Chi fnote &) BB (ida) 69 - - - - 69
Prof. Jin Zhongwei PERYK 98 - - - - 98
Prof. SU Wengjiang BRI 98 - - - - 98
Tse Kwok Hing Henry (note by WEHE (Hith) 28 - - - - 28
293 - - - - 293
713 1,146 - 4 = 1,863

Note (@):  Resigned on 1 September 2022

Note (b): Appointed on 1 September 2022

Mit@: WZZZ_FNLA—BEHT

HaE®m) : R-T-_—_FHhAA—BEEE

PRAEMERERAE

TR CFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

/\\/T\ ﬂL ﬂz% i& i‘% IZﬁL FI_II_ (né

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continueq)

1. EEZHFM 2

2021
—EC-F
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme award
fees inkind bonuses  contributions scheme Total
He 2ER
BEzg ENfla WEEAL  RIGEER  RHERE b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTL  AR¥ETR

ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR

Executive directors BITES

Wu Zheyan REE 360 974 - 8 1799 3,141

Xie Qingmei Bl 53 - - 1 1,799 1,853
413 974 - 9 3,598 4,994

Independent non-executive  HAEHTES

directors

Lam Hin Chi B 100 - - - - 100

Prof. Jin Zhongwei TEAYR 100 - - - - 100

Prof. SU Wengiang BRI 100 - - - - 100
300 - - - - 300
713 974 - 9 3598 5294

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there RBEZZEZ_ZFRZFE_—F+=A

were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the Directors
or any of the highest paid individuals set out in note 12 below
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

E+—H¢¢E'$’il¢ﬁiﬂrﬂ§$iﬁzT
X 12PT B AR R B F B A £ 3k
FE R IR (E ARSI REF AR E
IR MBAEERNES  HAERBER
E-RBE_T_—_FR-_F_—F+_
A=1t—BLFE EEMERBEALR
BEME AR BRI AHM -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
/\‘/T\ ﬁﬁ% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (uE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

12. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 12. EEHFMAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, there were %zIAE::EJr —A=t—RILEE-
one (2021: two) directors for the year ended 31 December BEFMALTHR —B (22 —%F:
2022, whose emoluments are disclosed in note 11. The _%)7%§$‘T&#E@%ﬁ@ﬂ\ﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁg"
aggregate of emoluments in respect of the other four (2021: BMTEE(ZEZ—F:=%) AL HB
three) individuals are as follows: LmEaanr
2022 2021
—E=—= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FT ARBTT

Salaries and other emoluments o K& E b 1,231 363
Discretionary bonuses R IEIEAL = -
Equity-settled share award scheme expenses A J% i & & KR 17 22 8
HEIF X - 1,808
Retirement scheme contributions RIRGET IR - 16
1,231 2,187
The emoluments of the four individuals (2021: three individuals) NE(ZEZ—F : =) i ALTH
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands: FMN T TIER:
2022 2021
—=E_ —E-—F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AB N
Nil to RMB1,000,000 =Tz A R%1,000,0007T 4 2
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AE#1,000,001t 2
A R #1,500,0007T - 1
4 3

PRAEMERERAE /I 37

TR CFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

re IR R MR (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

13. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 13.

From continuing operations:

The calculations of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
from continuing operations attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

FREEBERERTEAEMN
2B (BE) 7
KEREEE RS

ARRAE ARG EHERE
RRIE (R BT E HER U
T

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

(Loss)/profit (1)) af
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to RARRRBARLZ
owners of the Company REE (E18) & (6,558) 47,092
Less: loss for the year from a discontinued W REERIEEKZ
operation FNBE - 612
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose K E BB ETERE
of basic (loss)/earnings per share from STEERER (F58)
continuing operations Hﬁl 52 (E518) W (6,558) 47,704
Number of shares
EHn& A
2022 2021
—E-CE T —F
Number of shares B in
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FRAGTEERER (F1E)
for the purpose of basic Az FANE BT
(loss)/earnings per share BB iE T IR 872,349,887 824,549,598

The weighted average of 872,349,887 shares for the year ended
31 December 2022 are derived from 850,368,416 ordinary
shares in issue as at 1 January 2022 after taking into account
the effect of the share issuance of 71,002,000 shares issued
upon loan capitalisation during the year ended 31 December
2022 (note 33(a)).

BHEz_ZT-_—_F+-A=+—HLHF
JE 89 hn#E S 15 #872,349,887/% R B 7 —
T -F— A —HBE#17K850,368,416
RE@BBR Wt RBEZT_2F+=
A=Z+—BLEFEEEERNLETH
71,002,0008% f& 15 89 5228 (M9 5E 33(@) ) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

13. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 13. ARREBEREREEAEMN

From continuing operations (continuea):

The weighted average of 824,549,598 shares for the year ended
31 December 2021 are derived from 783,750,400 ordinary
shares in issue as at 1 January 2021 after taking into account
the effect of the issuance of 66,618,016 award shares under
the share award scheme (note 34(b)) during the year ended 31
December 2021.

From continuing and discontinued operations:

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per
share from continuing and discontinued operations attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

(Loss)/earnings figures are calculated as follows:

ZBREF, (BE) @)
REFELE (#):
HEZZT-_—F+ZA=1+—HLFE
B D0 - 15 1 5824,549,5980% B AR 5 —
g:*ﬁ*ﬂ*EE%ﬁE’WSBBOAOO
EBEKR YTk =-_—F+=A
=+ —BILFERERG ZE S
1766,618,0161% 52 E) I 10 B9 52 & (FfY 5
34(b)) e

KA R E AR R RTS -
RDF A AEE BRI E £
BB RERREE (BE) /BFN
HEB T B

(BR) WREFHENT

2022 2021
= B —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBFT
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to MEATEE (BR),/
owners of the Company for the purpose Bz E &S
of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share  RARal#EAE A2
FE (&E8/),/FIE (6,558) 47,092

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share.

From discontinued operation:

Basic and diluted loss per share for the discontinued operation
is RMB0.001 per share based on the loss for the year ended
31 December 2021 from the discontinued operation of
approximately RMB612,000 and the denominators detailed
above for both basic and diluted loss per share.

The basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share are the same as
the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

FTAE D B8 FXFHRHEARNGES
I (E18) e o BEER -

REDKRIEFER:

RERIEEXBBE_FT_—F+=
A=t BLEFENBBEOARE
612,0007T Ko |3t &5 A AN o S B 1R 6
DERIEREXBOERERLET
FIEAFRARK0.001T

AEBVERBE T -_—_FR_T_—
FH+—AZ+—HUEFEZEHITLER
ERE M ERAE A SRERNREE
(F518) W= Em -

qﬂﬂim}""ﬂxﬁffﬁ’z}j

—— —

139



140

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

NN e b

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) ( BB EETIN AAREST)

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group planned
to focus resources on its manufacturing and sales of wooden
products and renewable energy products business. Accordingly,
the Group ceased its retail sales of outdoor wooden products.
The retail sales of outdoor wooden products were classified as
a discontinued operation and were no longer included in the
note for segment information of the continuing operations.

The results of the discontinued operation for the year ended 31
December 2021 which have been included in the consolidated

14. RIEERE

REE =T =—

F+-A=+—ALEE:

AEEGFEBERETRARMEATBE
ERERNRENHERK B A%

B IEEPINK

S

SEL YV N )

MmN EEEBOERCRIEELEER T
BEREREKEXEB O BEEMES -

BE AR

1B M H AR

& s L AT

EEBBRE_ZT_—F+-_A=1+—BIt

profit or loss and other comprehensive income were presented FEMERWNT:
below:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETIT
Revenue WA - -
Cost of sales SHE A AR - -
Gross profit EH = -
Other income HAA -
Staff costs 8 TR = (309)
Depreciation charge e = (260)
Other administrative expenses HEmiTHAX - (44)
Loss before tax PR ATE 1B - 612)
Loss for the year FNEBE = 612)
Loss for the year from KEKRIEEBNFA
a discontinued operation 518 = (612)
The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operation are RIS ELNIESREFENT
as follows:
2022 2021
ol ook -
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥®TT AREEFT
Operating activities RS = 39
Investing activities BEEE = -
Financing activities BB EE = -
Net cash flows used in HEeEREMAFEEE = (39)

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
/\‘/T\ ﬁﬁ% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (uE)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. YI¥ BERRE

Furniture,
Plantand fittings and Motor Right-of-use
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles  Subtotal assets Total
{8
BF RBEREE RERRE RE Mt ERERE #i
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTT ARBTRT ARBTR ARWTRT AR®TR ARWTI ARRTR
COST 573
At 1 January 2021 R-Z2--%-B—-H 572,861 148,564 6,086 9,344 736,855 83,359 820,214
Additions RE 1,060 11,349 140 654 13,203 - 13,203
Disposals HE - (579) - 83) (662) - (662)
Transfer to investment properties (note 16)  BRZERENE (M#16) (48,315) - - - (48,315) - (48,315)
At 31 December 2021 and RZE--%+ZA=+-HR
1 January 2022 Z2-_"§-f-AH 525,606 159,334 6,226 9915 701,081 83,359 784,440
Additions AE 4,104 1,658 55 2,857 8,674 M7 8,791
Disposals HE - (2,048) (122) - 2,170) (923) (3,093)
Transfer to investment properties (note 16) ~ BEEREME (Hi16) (4,104) - - - (4,104 - (4,104)
Exchange realignment 5 - - - - - 1 1
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZ§+ZAZ+-H 525606 158944 6159 12772 703481 82564 786045
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION RHMERBESR
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
At 1 January 2021 R-Z2--%-B—-H 241,152 76,555 5,300 5,961 328,968 40,986 369,954
Charge for the year ERTH 18,843 12879 91 1,066 32,879 1553 34,432
Elimination on disposals RiLEREH - (247) - 79 (326) - (326)
Transfer to investment properties (note 16) ~ BEZREME (Hi216) (19,124) - - - (19,124) - (19,124)
Exchange realignment B - - - - - 4 4
At 31 December 2021 and RIBZ-%+-A=+-HR
1 January 2022 ZE-”§¥-B-H 240,871 89,187 5,391 6,948 342,397 42,543 384,940
Charge for the year FAXH 17,269 13,584 9 985 31937 1919 3385
Elimination on disposals R EREH - (318) (35) - (353) (923) (1,276)
Exchange realignment ERTEE - - - - - 6 6
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZ§+ZAZ+-H 258140 102453 5455 793 373981 43505 47,5%
NET CARRYING AMOUNT RESE
At 31 December 2022 RZB-Z#+-R=+-H 267,466 56,491 704 4,839 329,500 39,019 368,519
At 31 December 2021 A _B-Z—-%£+ZR=+-H 284,735 70,147 835 2967 358,684 40,816 399,500
RRMEYIERERAT

TR CFFR

141



142

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
/\\/T\ ﬁiﬂ% i&i‘% IZﬁL FI_II_ (nE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. MI¥ WERRE @)

(Continued)

Buildings are held for own use and are situated in the PRC.
At 31 December 2022, buildings with net carrying amount of
RMB108,225,000 (2021: RMB128,427,000) were pledged to
banks for certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note
23).

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

The shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 20 years
after the date of completion

- Buildings

- Plant and machinery 10 years

- Furniture, fittings and 5years
equipment

- Motor vehicles 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

LRPENEFREFEER - RZF
ZZHF+ZAR=+—HB EFEEIFEARA
R 108,225,000 (— T = —4F: AR#E
128,427,00070) 2 F E | T IR1T - {E
AREEERNE TRITREEEZER
(Hi7¥28) °

FrED AR SRR E AR AERF Y
X BERRESERER ZRAMBEEE
BEAE -REAAETEFRMT:

-&F DA A BB fh 5t
A B e & 5t
B (ANKRTAEE
N iHBiB20%)

— B R #Es 105

—&M-KE 5%

e
- 5%

BEMTEHEBRATGEE (WA
SR R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e IS EmERMEE (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continuea)
The Group as lessee

Right-of-use assets (included in property, plant and

15. ¥ -BERRE#)
REBEIEREAMEA

ERAREE (EEBEEYUE BERR

equipment) BEA)
Leased Land use
properties rights Total
HEYE ITERE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AREFT ARBTT
As at 31 December 2022 R-E-__"_HF£+_-_B=+—H
Carrying amount BREFE 60 38,959 39,019
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-—%+-B=+—H
Carrying amount BREFE: 50 40,766 40,816
For the year ended R-E-_—_F+"HA=+—H
31 December 2022 ILEE
Depreciation charge e 112 1,807 1,919
Exchange realignment M 58 B (6) - (5)
107 1,807 1,914
For the year ended B-ZE_—F+"-HA=+—H
31 December 2021 IEEE
Depreciation charge e 77 1,476 1,553
Exchange realignment b H 58 & 4 - 4
81 1,476 1,557
2022 2021
—E—_C ZEZ—F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRE AR®EFT
Total cash outflow for leases ME @8Rt 158 27
Additions to right-of-use assets FREEE LM 117 -

At 31 December 2022, land use rights with an aggregate
carrying amount of RMB7,257,000 (2021: RMB29,632,000) were
pledged as securities for certain banking facilities granted to

the Group (note 28).

R-E-_—F+-_A=+—H8 EEAE
BARE7257,000 (ZE=—F: AR
#29,632,0007C) M L AECIEAR T
AEEMNE FRITREHEE LR (M=
28) ©

qﬂﬂim}""ﬂxﬁﬁﬁ’z}j
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

/T\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

15.

B BRI EF (@)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group as lessee (continuea)

Right-of-use assets (included in property, plant and
equipment) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Land use rights Over the lease term

Leased properties Over the lease term
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group estimates the recoverable amounts of the buildings,
plant and land use rights based on higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. The carrying amount of
the relevant assets does not exceed the recoverable amount
based on fair value less costs of disposal and no impairment
has been recognised for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

15. ¥ -BERSEE 2

NEBEAEBA (£)
ERAEEE (EREEYE BERR
®) (#)
fEREEERN R R A AT ERES (A
B BE) RERETE mT

T fE R REEA

HEMH REHA
WREBERGEEEENER EEE
EARKESKANRBRBEEENTTE I
EARBEENMG I ERFHTE -

MR BB REE (BRERTRE
S ) B R
AEERED A EEREERARERE

BERRaEMGFREEY BERTHER
BB eE - #HE—_T-_—_F+=-A
=t+—BMZZE_—f+ZA=+—Hit
FE-HBEEENEREEBETBREAR
BEREZLEEEREZNA KL HE  KiE
RORE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BRI - AN REST)

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. BEYH
Construction
Buildings  in progress Total
¥ EBIRE At
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERBTT AR%TR AER%TR
COST 3% 3
At 1 January 2021 RZZ-Z—%—f—H - - -
Transfer from owner-occupied property (ote 75 BB RYEEN (H:15) 48,315 - 48,315
Additions NE - 4,611 4,611
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—$+-A=1—H 48,315 4,611 52,926
Transfer from owner-occupied property (note 75 BB RMEE A (H5£15) 4,104 - 4,104
Transfer from construction in progress REETREAN 4,611 (4,611) =
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+ZA=+—H 57,030 - 57,030
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ZHBERBESR
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
At 1 January 2021 Rn-—£-_—-%F—H—H - - -
Transfer from owner-occupied properties (note 15 B RMEEA (H5£15) 19,124 - 19,124
Charge for the year FRYH 3,444 - 3,444
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—5+ZA=+—H 22,568 - 22,568
Charge for the year FAZH 1,526 - 1,526
At 31 December 2022 RZE-Zf+-A=1—H 24,094 - 24,094
NET CARRYING AMOUNT IRERE
At 31 December 2022 R-Z-_—#+-A=1+—H 32,936 - 32,936
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H 25,747 4,611 30,358

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the term of lease

The Directors considered that certain owner-occupied
properties were leased out for earning rental income, therefore,
the properties were reclassified from property, plant and
equipment to investment properties during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021. The Group's investment properties
were stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any.

In addition, the Group incurred a construction cost of
approximately RMB4,611,000 for its investment properties
during the year ended 31 December 2021, which are
transferred to investment properties during the year ended 31
December 2022.

PR EMEREREIRATFRFE:

REEY) FEEEHRA
EEZRp ETERYEC HANURRE

WA EE REE-_E-_—_FK_F
——F+-A=+-—HLEFE ZEWE
BME - BERSEENDEAIRENE -
REBMIREMETIER AR RTITE R
BB (B )R-

BN REBREBEE_T_—F+_H
St -HLEFEREREVEELER
AR AN R 854,611,000 EREZE T
TCFET A=t -RIEFEEAKRED

PRAEMERERAE

TR CFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

16.

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continuea)
Impairment assessment

The recoverable amount is determined based on the fair
value less cost of disposal (i.e. the higher of fair value less
cost of disposal (by using the cost approach) and value in
use). As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the carrying amount
of investment properties does not exceed the recoverable
amount based on fair value less cost of disposal and therefore,
no impairment has been recognised for both years.

NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS FOR
ACQUISITIONS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

The amount mainly represented the prepaid construction cost
for plant and machinery. An analysis of non-current deposits of
construction cost is as follows:

16. BEWE (#)

17.

VAR

e EARATFERLENAER
(BHR A FER L&A (AR AR §)
BEAEEMERNRSEET - RT
ZZF+ZA=t+-—HR=ZZE=_—F+=
A=+—H REURHENEEEET
BBIZARBEREEEERENITRE
S BAEMFEHRERRE-

W BB 2 - BB e R R FE BN AR
rE

ZEEIBERE MR TREMENTRE
FRAS o JERNEA TR AL & DT -

2022 2021
== —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TR AR®ETT

Deposit for other constructions and HMZEURYE BER
property, plant and equipment BRENILS 220 1,698
220 1,698
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

18. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

18. HthtSREE

2022 2021
—E-- T —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFT
Equity investment at fair value through BEAFEFAEMEE
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") Wzt ([BAFERA
(note a) Hip 2 E W) #Y
RAIE (Hiita) 1,445 2,342
Other financial assets at fair value BRATFEFTAER
through profit or loss ("FVTPL") (note b) (MEAFEFAER])
WEMSBEE (#FD) 20,122 92,842
21,567 95,184
Less: Current portion W BN EREL (20,122) (92,842)
Non-current portion JEBNHAER 1,445 2,342

Notes:

The equity investment represents unlisted investment in 5% equity
interests of a PRC local bank in Zhangping City, Fujian Province, the PRC.
The equity investment was irrevocably designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income as the Group considered these investments
to be strategic in nature.

The dividend income received related to the equity investment for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was RMB177,000 (2021: RMB195,000) (note
6).

As at 31 December 2022, other financial assets represent investment
products of PRC banks of RMB20,122,000.

As at 31 December 2021, other financial assets represent (i) investment
products of PRC banks of RMB10,592,000; and (ii) certain debts
instruments with an aggregate principal amount of RMB80,000,000, in
which, the interest payments are linked to the relevant exchange rate
between Euro and United States Dollar. The Debts Instruments were
pledged to secure the Group's interest-bearing bank borrowings. Details
are set out in note 28.

Hiat -

ZBEAREERPERREETH AR
TR EVIE BT BRI 5% o BN IR & T R
Bl E AR A FEFALME2EK SR
REAAEERRZEEEBRIKIEE -

HE-ZT-_—F+-A=+—HLFE BK
B 8% AN B AR R AR B B A R #177,0007T
(ZFT=—%F: AR¥195,0007T) (KizE6) o

RZZEZ=ZF+-A=+-—H8 HtespmaE
A AR#20,122,0007T 6 R BIRTTIR EE & o

——F+ZA=t—R EMEMEE
% s () BISRIT I A BE mm A R #610,592,0007T
)78 & 4258 & A R 180,000,0007T #) %5 FEH L
Hoeh ) 832 {5 62 BR T R SR T 2 R B 4 A B
% B TAWERABRAEEN S
RITIETN - FIEHNAP L8

rﬁ%

i

PRAEMERERAE

TR CFFR

147



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
I\\/T\ ﬁﬂvq% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (mg

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

19. NON-CURRENT DEPOSIT FOR ACQUISITION 19. WigHMSmEE 2 FENHZ
OF OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS €
On 30 November 2022, the Group entered into share transfer RN-ZE-—F+—A=+RH AEEHRE

20.

agreement with Zhangping Hong Sheng Minerals Co., Ltd., a
third party to the Group, to acquire 1.3% equity interest in Fujian
Zhangping Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. The consideration is
RMB8,750,000 of which RMB2,500,000 were paid 10 days after
signing of share transfer agreement.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE

During the year, the Group realigned its business strategies to
close the business of Zhangzhou Xingruixiang Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd. (“Xingruixiang”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. The principal activity of Xingruixiang
is to sell the wooden products to Kimura (“Zhangping Kimura”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The Group entered into a disposal agreement to close its
business upon the completion of existing sales orders, which
are expected to be sold within twelve months. Certain assets
and liabilities have been classified as assets and liabilities
held-for-sale and are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position (see below).

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Xingruixiang as at
31 December 2022, which have been presented separately in

20.

ZHBRFREBEARDART RS R
Tﬁ%iﬁ XEEEETFRENEERTRNE

N A1.3% M4 - B /5 A K 58,750,000
T EEP}\EWZSOOOOOEBCHMEQE%WJ
FHEETIRI0B T -

TRABEREZEE
FRARERBEERE BASARF
SR AN WA AN BB RERE RS
RAF ([EHHE]) LR BBEHEE
EBANERTZAMBRTAN ([E
FAN ) HERRS

AEBAY—HEEHHE NEREGHE
FIESTKRBBARER BASET @
ARBE - ETEENRBEESBAKH
FENBEEMEBE TEKSPBIMREK
FEBNHR(RTX) -

e - —"F+-_A=+—H &EHSE
AR KRPEBY RN EAEGFEEENS

the consolidated statement of financial position, are as follows: BEOEZHBIOT
2022
—E-=
RMB’000
AR®TR
Amount due from non-controlling interest JE W FE 12 s e 2 1B 71
Cash and cash equivalents HekIReEEY 145
Total assets classified as held-for-sale RREEREREZHEE 856
Other payables and total liabilities associated HSEHFEFESEHERZ
with assets classified as held-for-sale HttEGRERERE (269)
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/T\

BB &R R M 5T (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

21. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

21. EER T
BEGAVBHRARFES

BTELEH

HEERABCDHREH - UTEZAUBR
= B EEREFTIS TR ERRRR AT -

2022 2021

—E—— —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETIT

Deferred tax assets LLFE STEE 1,378 1,213
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFFSHAE (2,404) (2,760)
(1,026) (1,547)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets

L‘AT%ZKEE*%DDAWEJ?EE%E’JI%?@E

recognised and movements thereon during the current and FIERaBEmMEE R EE
prior years:
Fair value
adjustments
Unrealised  Unrealised of equity
gain/(loss)  (loss)/gain PRC investment
on other on derivative dividend Impairment  through other
financial financial withholding under ECL comprehensive
assets  instruments tax model income Others Total
EteMEEN TEEMIAN REfER  HARHMRE
FURKR/ FURKR/ HERE  BREX  BANRIRE
(E#) (B#) RO# BE WHATERE il #it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT AREFT AR¥ETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
t 1 January 2021 RZZ2=—-§-A-H 180 (218) (1,707) 831 14 - (900)
(Charged)/Credited to profitor loss (ot 1) st ABHZ (BE) /#e
(Hit10) (606) (409) - 359 - - (656)
Credited to other comprehensive income SAEMZERA - - - - 9 - 9
At 31 December 2021 and RZB-Z-F+ZAZ+-AR
1 January 2022 —Z--%-8-H (@26) (627) (1,707) 1,190 23 - (1,547)
Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss (rote 70) st AB#ZE%/ (1)
(Hiz10) (564) 91 - - - (17 386
Credited to other comprehensive income FAEMZERA - - - - 135 - 135
At 31 December 2022 R=BZZ£+ZA=+-H 5%0) 3 (1,707 1190 18 (1 (1,026)
RRMEYIERERAT

TR CFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
I\\/T\ ﬁﬂvq% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (mg

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

21. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 21. EEHIE (#)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused RS EIR - R BF 4 A R #234,698,000
tax losses of approximately RMB234,698,000 (2021: T (ZEZ—F: AR¥195,247,0007T) &
RMB195,247,000) available for offset against future profits. & FA 7% T8 5 18 AT 8 R 2R Al o B A R 2R
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the R 7 & A BT TEORIME - 30 B BE R B) A B 1A
unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit EiERAELCRIEEE KAERNEEE
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of BIEHARE234,698000T (—F = —45:
approximately RMB234,698,000 (2021: RMB195,247,000) with A B #195,247,0007T ) 9 6598 - L BIEI B 0
expiry dates as disclosed in the following table. T&RMR

2022 2021

e —E-—F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®FT ARBETT

2023 —_Eg-= 20,520 20,520
2024 —ZEZq 81,827 81,827
2025 —ZF—Hh 92,900 92,900
2026 —E-R -

2027 —E -+ 39,451 -
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B BRI 5F (@)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

22. INVENTORIES 22. 78

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETIT

Raw materials R 61,536 79,809
Work in progress TER R 18,334 20,340
Finished goods BURK on 10,004 33,398
89,874 133,547

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EZ R EHMEWFIE

2022 2021

—E- —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETIT

Trade receivables =Y A& e 64,665 115,180
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (12,186) (17,938)
52,479 97,242

Prepayment for raw materials R R FEAST 3R 61,887 104,756
Interest receivables FEUFI B, 4,878 648
Other prepayments and receivables H M8 5IE K e IR 4,959 25,528
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (1,248) (1,248)
70,476 129,684

Total trade and other receivables HoRHEMEKRIERE 122,955 226,926
¢ﬂ¢m?hﬁm@1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &R0 AN R EESIR)

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continves)  23. B 5 R HABEWRIE &)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss allowances)
as of the end of reporting period, based on invoice date, is as
follows:

RBEHR BEHRERE (NHREERE
) iR DT (REEBEPIR)AT

2022 2021

—=E=-— —E-—F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREFIT

Within 1 month REDEEA 28,047 41,536
1to 2 months 12218 A 13,746 38,667
2 t0 3 months 22 31E A 5,841 13,566
Over 3 months 31E A LA E 4,845 3,473
52,479 97,242

As at 1 January 2021, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to RMB55,489,000.

Trade receivables are normally due within 90 days to 180 days
(2021: 90 days to 180 days) from the date of billing.

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group's trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB29,947,000 which are past due as at the
reporting date. Out of the past due balances, RMB8,133,000
has been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in
default.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 42(b)().

R-ZT-—F—A—H BREFPELE
55038 1 N R #E55,489,0007T ©

B 5 EWRIE — R H BB B A ET90
AZE180H (=& = —4%:908 £180H) A
FHe

RZEZZF+=-A=1+—H £x45H
EREFGEFRERORAEAARKE
29,947,0007T B 7 R 45 B i B A R U AR 3K
TE 8 B 64 58 7R - A R #68,133,0007T 71 #90
RKAETRBEL -

B 5 N H b MR IR R E R R B #R P
FH42(b)a) °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

24. DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

. PTEE®MTIA
2022
—EZH
Assets Liabilities
gE =
RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR®FT AR®TR

Foreign currency contracts HNEEG
(notes 42(b) & 42(c)) (K7a42(0) % 42(c)) 42 (18)
2021
T —F
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBEFT
Foreign currency contracts INEES A
(notes 42(b) & 42(c)) (1 aE42(b) 2 42(c)) 5,077 (896)

The derivative financial instruments represented certain
foreign currency forward contracts entered with the financial
institutions, which are not designated for hedge purposes
and are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Changes
in the fair value of non-hedging foreign currency forward
contracts were credited to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss as at end of reporting period. All of the foreign currency
forward contracts are settled within one year.

TTEERMTARKRESBEBETINET
SNERIIA A RF AN RIEERNE
BEy WIRAFEFABREE - JFH
SNEEHANN D FEZBNREHRE
AREBAER BB ERSOTE—
FRE-

qﬂﬂiw}""ﬂxﬁffﬁ’z}j
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
/\\/T\ ﬁiﬂ% i&i‘% IZﬁL FI_II_ (nE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

25. PLEDGED DEPOSITS 25. SEAEN
Pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rates range from B IRITE IR T1.25%24.80%H] [E
1.25% to 4.80% and represent deposits pledged to banks to EMEFHE - BEFGRITUABRAEE
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. ERRITREMNTTR
Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank deposits EHEFRITEFORET G BN T
are set out in note 42(b)(@). 42(b)(@) °

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26. HERBEEEEY
Cash and cash equivalents include short term deposits RehAeEEVEREARTAER

amounted to RMB161,332,000 for the purpose of meeting the

RHREAREMAENEHEFERA

Group'’s short term cash commitments, which carry interest at R #161,332,0000t * & W5 F| &N ?
market rates range from 2.25% to 5.63%. The remaining time 2.25%%5.63%:T B o 82 T E HIF KA

deposits amounted to RMB47,000,000 (2021: RMB30,000,000) 47,000,000t (ZFE=Z—F: AR ﬁ%‘
carry fixed interest rates range from 3.55% to 4% (2021: 4%) 30,000,000713”11.){&%']%” T3.55%%=
per annum with maturity over one year and therefore classified 4% (20214F : 4% ) 51 & - BARR B —4F -

as non-current assets.

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances are set out
in note 42(b)(a).

WD EAEEREBEE-

RITHE SRR B RY 5 S 1B BRI FE42(0)(a) ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. ESRHEMENKIE
2022 2021
—EZHF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFTT
Trade and bills payables (note i) B S ENZRIEREMNEE
(K7ati) 18,531 7,425
Accrued staff costs FHEE IR A 9,037 8,389
Payables for acquisition of property, WWEEMZE BEAEEZ
plant and equipment FE T 3RIE 1,538 1,174
Payables for transportation fee e B & A 3,003 1,484
Other payables and accruals HEMENFIERETER 12,727 7,221
Provision for medical compensation (note i) — B 1E 2 B (AT aEi) 4,680 5,070
49,516 30,763
Less: Provision for medical compensation B SERNERER(D 2
classified as non-current portion BEmE o BE 4,290 4,680
Current portion BB &R 10 45,226 26,083

Notes:

M-

The balance comprises bills payables of RMBNil (2021: RMB102,000),
the related banking facilities were set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

ii. The provision for medical compensation is mainly estimated based on the
assumption including past experience of the medical expenses.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

BHRNFRAMENZREEEENZBEARE
T (=T =—: AR¥102,000) - HERERITE
EREHNGE M B MRME28 -

i. BREMBEEFSTIZENBRREBBEAETNE
EREBMEER-

RBMERR REZEHIN R EHEN
PIERENRENREDTAT

2022 2021

—E-_F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AER®TR AREFIT

Within 1 month MEARA 14,486 4,811

110 2 months 12218 A 1,432 30
2 to 3 months 22 31E A 543

Over 3 months fEB E31E A 2,070 2,584

18,531 7,425

RRHEYIERERAR

TR CFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

BB ERR N (@)

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS,

. FTERITIER BER

SECURED
2022 2021
—E-- —EZ-F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AE%TR ARBETT
Fixed-rate bank borrowings, secured EERITER BER 53,950 54,000
The carrying amounts of the above borrowings NEENERREE:
are repayable:
Within one year —ER 53,950 54,000

The Group entered into certain banking facilities with certain
PRC banks with an aggregate amount of RMB195,050,000
(2021: RMB236,700,000), of which, as to RMB100,295,000
(2021: RMB73,989,000) (including the bank borrowings of
RMB53,950,000 (2021: RMB54,000,000) (note 28)) have been
utilised at the end of reporting dates).

The secured banking facilities are secured by certain of the
Group's land use rights, buildings, other financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and pledge deposits amounting
to approximately RMB7,257,000 (2021: RMB29,632,000) (note
15), RMB108,225,000 (2021: RMB128,427,000) (note 15), RMBNIl
(2021: RMB80,000,000) (note 18(h)) and RMB53,578,000 (2021:
RMB1,640,000) (note 25), respectively.

AEBEETREMRITEILE THRT
REHEE ©B+£%8AAR195050,000
T (ZT=—%F: AR¥236,700,000)
Hh A R#100,295,000C (=& = —
73,989,000) (BEBERAFELEZAEE
FERTTIE FA A R#53,950,0000 =& = —
4 :54,000,000) (Fi7E28) ) e

EEMBOIREREENARAERE T+
ERE - EF RAFESABEZ
ﬁm%@ﬂé?&aﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁ ] #& 1R
“ ANR¥7,257,000T (ZF = E
A R #29,632,000T) (Ki&E15) »
%108,225,000%(:%:—&%&%
128,427,000t ) (MIzE15) - ARBZ T
:%:—E‘AEMSOOOOOOO) (H &%

b)) & A E#53,578,0007t (=& = —
E s AR #1,640,0007T) (FI5E25) ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. EHEE
2022 2021
—E=C —F-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®FT ARBETTT

Contract liabilities BHBE 13,586 9,477
As at 1 January 2021, contract liabilities amounted to RZZEZ—F—A—H 6HE8EARAR
RMBS5,698,000. #5,698,0007T °

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the contract liabilities RZEZZF+ZA=+—Bk=ZF=—
mainly included the receipt in advance from sales of wooden F+tZHA=1T—"RH &6HEBEXTZERBEWK
products. The Group expects that the unsatisfied performance RERBEER - AEEEFRBETHELD
obligations will be recognised within one year form the end of BBBERE BEREN —FNFIER-

the reporting date.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract HERAEHNEESEBERZEN —KX
liabilities recognised are as follows: g T -
When the Group receives a deposit before the delivery of EASEEXNEM ZAIREIZSR &
goods, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a EHRENRBREESHNEE BIE
contract, until the revenue recognised exceeds the amount of REWANBIRIZ S SR %ﬂﬁz%)ﬁ IBHY
the deposit. The amount of the advance from customers, if any, SR (ME)BREABBERAERFIHE
was negotiated on a case by case basis with customers. i 5E °
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FT ARBTT

At 1 January ®n—HA—H 9,477 5,698
Amounts included in contract liabilities that ~ RERER AV ANAE L
was recognised as revenue during the year B &R IR FRIE (5,940) (2,505)

Cash received from sales of wonder products EARIFERBITHEL
not previously recognized as revenue due EEMAREREBWAZ

to unsatisfied performance REHEBEAREEMILE 2
Re 10,037 6,284
Exchange difference EHER 12 -
At 31 December R+—_HA=+—H 13,586 9,477

RRMEYIERERAT /I 57
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

30. LEASE LIABILITIES 30. HE&AE
The Group leases an office premise in Hong Kong and the AEBEEEHE-—BRIAE KXFEZ
movement in lease liabilities during the year is as follows: HEBBEEHBERNT:
2022 2021
—EZCH —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREFT
Lease liabilities payable: EBARARE:
Within one year —F 69 51
Amount due for settlement within 12 months A+ — &8 RE R+ 2 £ 48
show under current liabilities (RRBEETT) 69 51
The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 5%. HAREE AR EE TR E A% -
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A ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BRI - AN REST)

31. DEBENTURES 31. &%

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TRT AREFT

Balance at 1 January R—A— B8 4,376 4,535
Interest expenses (rote 8) FMERZ (H#1:28) 95 138
Interest paid B FE = (132)
Exchange difference EHER 322 (165)
Settlement by share subscription (note 33(@) #& (#7:£33(a)) (4,793) -
Balance at 31 December RTZA=+—H0&E#% - 4,376
Current portion BNHAER 5 = 4,376
The Group entered into agreements with two independent RARFEE ASEEEREBEBIE=T
third parties for issuing unsecured debentures with principal RIN WhaE - LAE 1T N & 48 %8 520,000,000
amounting to HK$20,000,000 in previous vyear. Its outstanding BLTHEERAES RZEZ—F+=
amount was approximately at HK$5,350,000 (equivalent to A=+—B HERZEEINHOR
approximately RMB4,376,000) as at 31 December 2021. The 5,350,000/ 7T (#T4 49 AR #4,376,000) °
debentures bear interest at 3% per annum, unsecured and BEHFEFE3I%T & EER BR_F

repayable on 29 August 2022. —ZENAZTHLBEE-

On 22 August 2022, the Group entered into subscription RZZE-—F N/ -+ -H AEHHER
agreements with two debenture holders which each HEHFFEBALRERZ SHBEAR
of the holders agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of B LARIE(H0.07687 TR E & $£35,501,048
35,501,048 new shares at the subscription price of HK$0.0768 IR (& Sl ARE0.06747T) - B0
(approximately RMB0.0674 per share). The completion of each BROBEARZ__FHLANBTK
of the share subscription took place on 9 September 2022 and REEEFRABNEZHE2EEE-

the outstanding debentures and related interest expense have
been fully settled.

PRAEMERERAE /I 59
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

32. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) A RELATED 32. B (EEN)BBH® S I
PARTY/A NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST/A RER EBEERE
DIRECTOR
Amount due from a related company JE W A BSE 2 R

2022 2021

—E_C —E-—F

RMB'000 RMB'000

Name of party Hre8 Relationship B {& AR®TR AREFT

Green Seas Capital Limited Green Seas Capital Limited A private company controlled
by Wu Zheyan, a director

of the Company 71 63
Less: allowance for creditlosses il : [ B 1B LA —RMREE (RRFA—4%
ER)EH AT (2) 2
69 61
Amount due from a non-controlling interest JE YT FE 12 IR 25 TR IE
2022 2021
—E-C —Eo—-F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Name of party 28 Relationship B {& AR®TR AREFT
Zhangzhou Senyun ENZEEBREHEMRAT  Anon-controlling interest
International Trade FElRER
Co., Limited* - 2,500
The amounts due from a related company and a non- U BRES A T) N2 FEFR AR M 5 TR IE A2 A
controlling interest were unsecured, interest-free and repayable BERZERER
on demand.
* The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official name * ERORNBEEHRSEZ -ZEBBHNEE
of the related party is in Chinese. ZIBRF -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BRI - AN REST)

32. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) A RELATED 32. B (EEN)BEBE A I
PARTY/A NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST/A REREEREE)
DIRECTOR (continued)

Amount due to a director JETEE A
2022 2021
—g_C —E-F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FR ARBTIT

Due to a director B —REEHE 4,783 1
The amount due to a director is unsecured, interest-free, and BN —REBEEREAEEF 2B HE
repayable on demand. ZREE-
33. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 33 EXR-REERRE
(@) Share capital @ R
Authorised and issued share capital EERBBITRA
2022 2021
- St —E--F
Number of Number of
Par Value shares Amount Par Value shares Amount
BpEE K& E &F BiEE LG i
HKS ('000) HKS'000 HKS (000) HK$'000
#T T FHET BT i TAL
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary share EER 0.05 2,000,000 100,000 005 2,000,000 100,000
2022 2021
—E_CHE —E-—F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
BR%E &#F B8 E Exc)
('000) RMB'000 ('000) RMB'000
TR AR®TR T ARETR
Ordinary shares of B (BR0.058TT) -
HK$0.05 each, issued BITRBE:
and fully paid:
At 1 January ®—A—H 850,368 35,345 783,750 32,591
Shares issued upon loan RERER BT ZRG
capitalisation (note 37) (H13231) 71,002 3,117 - -
Shares issued under share award IR IERL (D 2 Eht E1%47
scheme (note 34(b) MG (Braaan) - - 66,618 2,754
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 921,370 38,462 850,368 35,345

¢$4$¢?Er{£7ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ 161

B FFHR



162

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

33. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

)

(i)

(i)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the issue of
the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company would be in a position
to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
71,002,000 shares were issued upon the loan
capitalisation at the subscription price HK$0.0768
(approximately RMB0.0674). The difference between
the par value of the share and the proceeds were
amounted to RMB1,676,000.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
currency differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of the entities with
functional currency other than Renminbi. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 3(b).

Statutory reserve

Transfers from retained profits to PRC statutory
reserve are made in accordance with the relevant
PRC rules and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company’ s subsidiaries
established in the PRC and were approved by the
respective boards of directors.
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33. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

©

(i)

(iv)

Statutory reserve (Continued)

The subsidiaries in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of its after-tax profit, as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to statutory general reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of a dividend to
shareholders.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make
good prior years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into paid-up capital provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25%
of the registered capital.

Fair value reserve (nhon-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises
the cumulative net changes in the fair value of
equity instruments designated as measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
equity instruments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

Distributable reserves

The aggregate amounts of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company were
RMB213,842,000 (2021: RMB219,939,000).

After the end of the reporting period, the Directors
proposed no final dividend (2021: proposed no final
dividend).

o)

©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &R0 AN R EESIR)

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 34. BREGTEIRRGDERE
AWARD SCHEME

(@) Share option scheme (@) HERxHEFTE

Pursuant to a resolution passed by all the shareholders
on 15 June 2012, the Company has conditionally adopted
the share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of recognising and acknowledging the
contributions the eligible participants had or may have
made to the Group. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to the
Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors),
the directors of the Company’s subsidiaries and
employees of the Group and any other persons (including
consultants or advisers) whom the Board considers, in its
absolute discretion, have contributed or will contribute
to the Group. The Directors were authorised to grant
options to subscribe for shares of the Company and to
allot, issue and deal with the ordinary shares pursuant to
the exercise of options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and to take all such steps as may be necessary
and/or desirable to implement and give effect to the
Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and under any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue immediately
following completion of the Global Offering (as defined
in the Company's prospectus dated 25 June 2012),
being 100,000,000 shares, excluding any shares that
may be issued under the options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
(or any other share option schemes of the Company),
unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting and/or such other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time.
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MEE(BRIUTES FNTESF
RBIUFNITES) ARFAMHER
AZEE AEEREENESEER
REBEASLEAGHAKEIFH
BERONEREMAL (BEERE
R ER)RhBRE - EEERE
REBEREARBARRBRNG &
s BHTREEREBRESS
EEEREETEMETHER
B AR RIS BEITREER SR
FEzEBRMERYVBR/LEEH
— R RBBEREE IR
H R B B B RT 81 AT IR T A
BRENKSBROBE AHTE
BBRBEEREE (ERRARA
PR ——FR"A-1+THAH
BRERR) ERIRD BITRMD BB
10%  £1100,000,000 MR - T8
EREMREERES (KARA
ETEMERERE) MIRRE XK
KRB IR Al AT RO B0 R ER
RAIBRRERRAR ESTHAR
s E AR AT S A E MR EE R
bhe

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
/\‘/T\ ﬁﬂvﬂ% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (nE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 34. BREEIRKROEBEE 2

AWARD SCHEME (continueq)

(@) Share option scheme (continuea) (@) HEERRERTE (@)

Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting, the number of shares
that may be granted to an eligible participant under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) shall not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue of the Company within any 12-month period.
Any grant of options to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is required to be approved
by our independent non-executive Directors. Unless
otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules, the number of shares
that may be granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive Director or their respective
associates under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding options) shall not exceed
0.1% of the shares in issue, having an aggregate value in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 34. BREGTEIRBRDERE (&)
AWARD SCHEME (continued)

(@) Share option scheme (continuea) (@) MRS (@)

There is no minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised, and the period during
which an option may be exercised will be determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion, however, no options
shall be exercised 10 years after they have been granted.
The subscription price of a share in respect of a particular
option shall be not less than the highest of (a) the official
closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange; (b) the average official closing
price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of
a share. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from
the date it is adopted and shall remain effective within a
period of 10 years from that date.

From the date that the Share Option Scheme became
effective and unconditional and up to the date of this
annual report, no share options were granted under the
Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
ordinary shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 92,137,051 (2021: 85,036,842), representing
10% of the issued shares of the Company.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 34. BREEIRKROEBEE 2

AWARD SCHEME (continueq)

(b) Share award scheme () R EEEET 2|

The Company, pursuant to a resolution passed on
14 December 2020, adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) for the purpose of (i) to
align interests of eligible persons, being the employees,
directors, officers, consultants or advisors of any member
of the Group, with those of the Group through ownership
of ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
dividends and other distribution paid on Shares and/or
increase in value of the Shares; and (i) to encourage and
retain eligible persons to make contributions to the long-
term growth and profits of the Group.

The aggregate number of shares to be made pursuant to
the Share Award Scheme (the "Award Shares”) will not
exceed 20% of the total number of issued shares capital
as at the adoption date of the Share Award Scheme
(i.e. of 20% of 741,200,400 Shares). The aggregate number
of Award Shares which may be awarded to a selected
person under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed
2% of the total number of issued Shares as at the
adoption date of the Share Award Scheme.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined
by the board of directors, the Share Award Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing
from the adoption date.

The Award Shares, once issued, will rank equal to all
other issued Shares at that time and are not subject to
any vesting condition. The selected persons will therefore
have the right to receive dividends, dispose of and/or
exercise the rights of the Award Shares as per his/her
own wishes once the Award Shares were issued.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 34. BREGTEIRBRDERE (&)
AWARD SCHEME (continued)

(b) Share award scheme (continued) b) M1piZEIETE (&)

31 December 2022
No Award Share was granted during the year.
31 December 2021

On 10 May 2021, a total of 66,618,016 Award Shares
were issued to 13 eligible persons (the “2021 Selected
Persons”), in which, as to (i) 36,970,000 Award Shares
were issued on 10 May 2021 to the Company’'s
employees pursuant to the general mandate; and (ii)
the remaining 29,648,016 Award shares were issued to
certain directors pursuant to the general mandate and as
further approved in the Extraordinary General Meeting on
31 May 2021 and issued on 7 June 2021. The 66,618,016
Award Shares represented approximately 8.50% of the
total number of issued Shares and approximately 7.83%
of the total number of Shares in issue as enlarged by
the issue and allotment of the Award Shares. The 2021
Selected Persons are (i) senior and middle management
of the Group; (i) staffs who served the Group for a long
period of time and (jii) connected persons.

The 66,618,016 Award Shares had neither any vesting
period nor condition, accordingly, the fair value of (i)
36,970,000 Award Shares were determined by the closing
market price of the Company on 10 May 2021, of which,
expenses of approximately HK$4,991,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB4,108,000) and (i) 29,648,016 Award
Shares were determined by the closing market price
of the Company on 7 June 2021, of which, expenses of
approximately HK$4,329,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,598,000) were recognised as expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2022 and the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements, the Company
had 39,072,064 (2021: 39,072,064) Award Shares available
for awarding to eligible persons under the Share Award
Scheme, which represented approximately 4.24% (2021:
5.00%) of the issued shares as at the end of respective
reporting dates.
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases, as lessor, certain of the Group's investment
properties, (note 16) in the PRC were leased out under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was RMB1,499,000
(2021: RMB1,046,000). Details of rental income are set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease rental receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

35. REMERH
RNEB(EAHBANRELEHRER
PBHBACRPENE TIREDE (=
16) cHHKEHR—RERKBE R HAMRE
S AEBMRFRABRZEASRARA
R#1,499,000L (ZZE=Z—F: AR¥
1,046,0007T ) - T8 & U A FF 1B H A B 7% W
=MIFE6 -

RZZEZZF+-A=+—H AEEHIR
R P RIS BN AT & AV R 2R
B R AT IRA ST

2022 2021
—EZHF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR®EFT
Within one year —F R 1,620 1,132
After one year but within two years —FEEMFR 1,281 1,143
After two years but within three years MEZREBE=ZFAN 1,280 1,626
4,181 3,901
36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EREE
2022 2021
—E-C ZEZ—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TT ARBFT
Capital expenditure in respect of FEVBmERP I
the acquisition of other financial HemEEDHER
assets contracted for but not provided REtiRZEARMS H
in the consolidated financial (H1EE19)
statements (note 79) 6,250 6,571
FREYERAERAT

TR CFFR
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37. RECONCILIATION OF (LOSS)/PROFIT
BEFORE TAX TO CASH GENERATED FROM

(USED IN) OPERATIONS

. REREREBRME

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
k=3 AR®TT ARBFT
(Loss)/profit before tax: BRELA (B518),/ @ Fl:
From continuing operations RERELEER (7,143) 38,171
From a discontinued operation REBEER = 612)
Adjustments for; AT & IRMEH 2 :
Interest expense on bank borrowings BITEFRESFE
and debentures 8 960 1,241
Interest expense on lease liabilities HESENHEME 8 53 4
Depreciation on property, ME -BEREEOTE
plant and equipment ) 31,937 32,879
Depreciation on land use right BEEERAELZED
included within right-of-use assets THERECTE 00} 1,807 1,476
Depreciation on leased properties BEEGHEEEN
included within right-of-use assets HEMELME ab) 112 77
Depreciation of investment properties REMENTE 9b) 1,526 3,444
Fair value gain on derivative TELBITEATEE
financial instruments, net W (430) (4,181)
Fair value loss/(gain) on other HihemEER
financial assets NFERE/ (KE) 7 470 (1,225)
Interest income FLSWA 6 (7,817) (3,601)
Dividend income % S WA 6 (177) (195)
Gain on disposal of property, HENR - BE R
plant and equipment Yz 7 (568) (103)
Equity-settled share award PARR HE 45 B 1 B ) B2 B
scheme expenses HERE (BREES
(including director’s remuneration) ) 34(b) - 7,706
Written off of other payables HoAth B SR MR (4,910) -
Written off of other receivables Ho b R IR M AR 1,315 -
Bad debts written off 2,863 -
Reversal of allowance for credit losses on CHEENEHEESR
trade and other receivables ATk (5,752) (2,529)
Impairment of non-current deposits for WHEME R KR ED
acquisition of property, plant and RS RE
equipment 7 - 1,907
Exchange difference EREE 4,605 -
Operating cashflow before movements = @ B AN
in working capital g. @fﬁém; 18,851 74,459
Decrease/(increase) in inventories b,/ () 43,673 (18,413)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and ‘” % &ﬁﬁﬁﬁ WsIE
other receivables b/ ( i"JJD 115,659 (94,878)
Increase in amount due from a JE U B 1 A
related company #mn (12) -
Increase/(decrease) in trade and 25 RhEHMENFIE
other payables i'}JD / ORA) 22,756 (831)
Increase in contract liabilities AHEEEN 4,122 3,779
Cash generated from/(used in) operations REEBHME,/ (A RE 205,049 (35,884)
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38.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in Group's liabilities arising

38. MEEEMELRBNYK

TRAMAEERETDEENABZE

from financing activities. ke
Interest-
bearing bank Amount
borrowings, Lease due to
secured  Debentures liabilities  a director Total
HRBT
& EfES
HER &% HEAR RE b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT  AREFT  AREFTT AREFTRT  ARETR
(note 28) (note 31) (note 30) (note 39)
(H1:228) (H#31) (H1i30) (H#32)
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-—-%-H-H - 4,535 76 13 4,624
Cash flow: Reme:
-Repayment of lease liabilties ~ —EEHREEE - - (27) - (27)
- Interest paid -BRFE (1,103) (132) - - (1,239
- Obtained new bank borrowings — —EVEH R1TE 74,407 - - - 74,407
- Repayment of bank borrowings  —EEHFITER (20,129) - - - (20,129)
- Repayment to a director -MEZEE - - - 2) 2
Non-cash flows: FREME:
- New lease -3 - - - - -
- Interest expenses -MERX 1,103 138 4 - 1,245
— Effects of foreign exchange -EigE (278) (165) 2 - (445)
At 31 December 2021 RZF--F+ZA=1-H
and 1 January 2022 R-Z-_f¥-f-H 54,000 4376 51 11 58,438
Cash flow: Rene:
~Repayment of lease liabilities -EEHEEE - - (158) - (158)
- Interest paid -2HHE (865) - - - (865)
- Obtained new bank borrowings — —EVEHR1TER 53,950 - - - 53,950
~Repayment of bank borrowings  — BB SR1TER (54,000 - - - (54,000)
- Advance from a director -REEENEX - - - 493 4,93
Non-cash flows; FHERE: -
~New lease -$HE - - "7 - 117
- Interest expenses ~-FBRAY 865 95 53 - 1013
- Settlement by share subscription  — bARE{7 3 ff - 4793) - - (4,793)
- Effects of foreign exchange -ERpE - 32 6 (164) 164
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE-Z“§+ZR=+-H 53,950 - 69 4,783 58,802
¢ﬂ$%?hﬁmﬁﬂ

171



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
e ISR R M ET ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

39.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
31 December 2022

On 22 August 2022, the Group has settled all the outstanding
debentures and related interest expenses via issuance of
71,002,096 Shares. Details are set out in note 31.

31 December 2021

During the year ended 31 December 2021, new shares were
issued under the equity-settled share award schemes. Details

40.

IEFRERS
—®2==%+=-A=+-H

E’\\fg::i)\ﬁ +-H AEEE®
% 1771,002,0960% f& 9 /5 B FT B KRB &
o FEIBEAMIFES o

BE_ZT-_-—Ft+t-_A=t—BLFE"
BRAE T ABRAGEE N I ZE T &l

are set out in note 34(b). BITHHROOEZZIFR R0 RIH
B EE34(D)
40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 40. EXRBEHB LR Z REAEE
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
Key management personnel remuneration FEEEREAEF
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AEBTZEEREEASHH (REMEN

including amounts paid to the Company's directors as

R FERDBIRENENARREERE

disclosed in note 11 and certain of the highest paid employees FESHFEENFIA)WNT
as disclosed in note 12, is as follows:
2022 2021
—=E- —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETIT
Short-term employee benefits MEEE R 2,344 1,886
Equity-settled share award scheme VAR #E 45 B 0 IR 10 22D 51 &)
expenses M - 3,598
Retirement scheme contributions IRRET B R 4 21
2,348 5,505

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.

EERIZTHAEBNFMATHEZES
Z2E[MARBAETSBEEE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

41. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. EXERER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the REBEBTEREHEERNURRAEENERK
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while AEERERE FANTEREB(ESKR
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation EamrTFEmARRFRESE R RE
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy Er R E AT m o
remains unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which AEEBNEARBRIEFES & %
includes the borrowings, lease liabilities and amount due to a D RIAMIEE28 - I0RN2FETE 2 B HE
director disclosed in notes 28, 30 and 32, respectively, net of BERENESHIE: ﬂ%&ﬁ%&iﬁ%—r
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of BIEABURARGHEE AEGER (B
the Company, comprising issued share capital, share premium, BBITRA ROEE REEMNREM
retained profits and other reserves. ) -

RIS IR A E

TR CFFR

173



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
I\\/T\ ﬁﬂvq% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (mg

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 42. £ETH
(@ Categories of financial instruments @ =mTHEER
2022 2021
—E-—f —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBTT

Financial assets eMEE

Amortised costs: B

Trade and other receivables “”%&EIWJF‘%Z%KIE\ 66,263 115,413
Amount due from a related company g ) NGRS 69 61
Amount due from a non-controlling interest U JE 22 Hﬂié‘_?ﬂ - 2,500
Time deposits FEHTF 208,332 30,000
Pledged deposits [REEURERN 53,578 1,640
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLFEY 113,765 61,671

Financial assets at fair value through 15Z 52 FEFAEM
other comprehensive income: PERBZEHBEE:
Equity investments AR E 1,445 2,342

Financial assets at fair value through 1 2\FEF A B2 H)

profit or loss: THEE:
Derivative financial instruments PTESMT A 42 5,077
Other financial assets EMmemiE 20,122 92,842
Financial liabilities eMAaR
Amortised costs: LA
Trade and other payables 85 L EHMEMNFIA 35,133 34,067
Amount due to a director N EEHIE 4,783 1
Debentures BEH - 4,376
Interest-bearing bank borrowings, secured 5+ B R1TE R - B K IE 53,950 54,000
Financial liabilities at fair value BRFETAEZH

through profit or loss: THEE:
Derivative financial instruments THEEmMT A 18 896

1 74 China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. EMIT A (@)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and b ZrEkRERBIZENRBER
policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and AEENFZsHIABREES R
other receivables, amount due from a related company, Hib i sk rEUEEE A T8 B

amount due from a non-controlling interest, time
deposits, pledged deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, derivative financial instruments
at fair value through profit or loss, other financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, trade and other
payables, amount due to a director, borrowings and
lease liabilities. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management of the Group manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(@  Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual

WorE R RIE THER - RE
kR ZEEY BHEEMEZE WA
RARBEZRERE BRBERE
AREZTESRIA BRER
RAnEzHMEMEE BEHK
HMENR BNEERIE ERR
HEBE -ZEaRITAFBENIE
ENARE - SZEeRIAEH
Eﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ(f%ﬂ@

FExER) EERRBRREBESR
‘i°T‘X%§§|JQD1—J|3¢1f_E§2§J—LIZﬂE’U
Eﬁ(%f’%ﬁ@mﬁ&%g%%ﬂﬁﬁ'
PATEAR K B 0 75 28050 BRENGE & 48 B

™5 R

@ 1FEmER R EE
FERRERASREZRSY
FAREBTEEMCAEER

obligations resulting in financial losses to the Group. SHBEINGEEEERR -
The Group's credit risk exposures are primarily EENEERREERERANE

attributable to trade and other receivables, amount
due from a related party, amount due from a non-
controlling interest, time deposit, pledged deposit
and bank balance. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover
its credit risk associated with its financial assets.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks is monitored on an
ongoing basis.

%&Emmﬂ&&%%&wguﬂz% it
A RIE  FE MR R R X
BEHEREEETRRE
RITHRE - AEBTIRHAEEM
WA R EAMEEERRE T
YR RESHEERENGE
ERKB-EEENE T EER
BOUWHBEEREEEERR
o) gmir
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continuea)

Market risk (Continued)

@

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Time deposits/Pledged deposits/bank balances

Credit risk on time deposits, pledged deposits
and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit agencies.
The Group assessed 12m ECL for time deposits,
pledged deposits and bank balances by reference
to information relating to probability of default and
loss given default of the respective credit rating
grades published by external credit rating agencies.
Based on the average loss rates, the 12m ECL on
time deposits, pledged deposits and bank balances
is considered to be insignificant and therefore no
loss allowance was recognised.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the
management makes periodic individual assessment
on the recoverability of other receivables and
deposits based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. The
management believes that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12m ECL. For the year ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, the Group assessed
the ECL for deposits are insignificant and thus
no loss allowance is recognised. In respect of
other receivables, impairment loss amounted to
RMB1,248,000 was made for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

42. €@ T H (&)
S REREE B E MR

(o)

(%)

miEmER (&)

@

15 BE b R EF G (&)
TFHFH BTSSR
7TAZER
FEHEN 2B FERMRT
HEHNEARRBER BAR
%ﬁ?ml%%%%%&%
WEERTRNEERIFHR
T REBBE I AR
BN mE M EE R RSN
BENMEMENERERE
g 8RR ERFRA
RITAEERAT L T 1218 A FEHA{E
HAEX -BBRTFHBEEF
HER EHERMBRITHE R
BV121E A 7 Bl E R KR
EMAREN .Jlt/xﬁﬁﬁm
BIRAE o

B b WL

HREMBKZMETS &8
EREELGEHELDE BAL
BUAMAEBEYRFAEEEER
WEEMEMEES  HEAME
W SR FR 8 2 19 AT UK 21 M 4T
THERBFGH - BEERAE
b8 B VIR EREEARR
REREL N REERR12
B ATEMEAIBRTIR T RE
EH-HE_TZ_F+=A
Zt+—HLEFER=-FT=_—F
+ZA=+—BHLtFE &%

B EERERERBATE
KB HERBRER 5
HtElREnNS SE=
T+ A=t—HItFE
;r—E-_—%+-A=+—H
LFEEEHERERBEBARE
1,248,0007T

China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\‘/T\

BB &R R M 5T (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (Continuea)

@

Credlit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Amounts due from a related party and a non-
controlling interest

The Group assessed the loss allowance for amount
due from a related party and non-controlling
shareholder on 12-month ECL basis. In determining
the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical default experience and forward-
looking information as appropriate. There had
been no significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. The Group has considered the
consistently low historical default rate in connection
with payments. For the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021, ECL for amount due from a related
party, amounted to RMB2,000 was made.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Group usually
requires upfront payment for sales of goods to new
customers. For export sales, the Group generally
requests settlement by letters of credit issued by
financial institutions or by wire transfer for certain
customers with good trading history. Individual
credit evaluations are performed on all new
customers requiring credit over a certain amount
and are also performed on existing customers on
a periodic basis. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and may take into
account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. The Group offers
90 days of credit to export sales customers with
good trading history and offers 180 days of credit
to the existing domestic sales customers. Generally,
debtors with significant overdue balances are
requested to settle all outstanding balances before
any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

42. €T H (&)
tREAREEAZIBER

(o)

(%)

miEmE ()

@

1= B R R EF G (&)
TER B 77 ]2 FEFE IR i 2 7K
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AEBZ12EAEHREABL
EEFT L U B 5 IR R
MR RIEM B R EF - RE
EEBERBEXRN AEEE
BHEEEESLENER R
BB R B UIAHERE(E A
ERABEEE M- AEBEEE
BEMRBEAN—SERELE
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=t HALEFER-ZT_—F
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JE Uy BB 7 BB RHRTEHAE A
BLARE2,0007T

JEWBR
NEFERWHENE ~EE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continuea)

Market risk (Continued)

@

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At 31 December 2022, 26.0%
(2021: 13.0%), of the total trade receivables was due
from the Group’s largest trade receivable balance
and 68.7% (2021: 53.5%), was due from the five
largest trade receivable balances.

The Group applies the simplified and general
approach to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected loss provision for trade
receivables.

42. €T R (%)

TRLE R EIE B R REUR

(%)

miEmER (&)

@

1EE R R E G (E)
JEY SRR ()
AEBEMEUENEERR -
FEXESRPMEBNFEAM
FE MAIEREEPITLE
MITESIMEMBER Bt
EAEEEHENEFPNE
REBK SEESESEHH
EERBR R_T__F+=
A=+—RH B5EKFIER
BEARE26.0% (=T =Z—F:
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FHEWGRIE  M68.7% (==
Z—%:535%) Bl AW E X
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continuea)

Market risk (Continued)

@

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables, other receivables, amounts due from a
related company and a non-controlling interest:

@) Trade receivables

As part of the Group's credit risk
management, the Group uses debtors’ aging
to assess the impairment for its customers
because these customers consist of a large
number of small customers with common risk
characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms. The
following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
which are assessed on a collective basis by
using provision matrix within lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired). Debtors with significant
increase in credit risk with gross carrying
amounts of RMB756,000 as at 31 December
2022 (2021: RMB11,107,000) were assessed
individually.

42. €T R (%)

b) = @EREEBIELRBER
()
HBER ()
@ (EEEERAET (F)
TEBIEHAEENE
W HOB - B A R HOB R
LB EET N I
HOB T2 e 3 e PR 3 BB Y
Y
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@) EHIEZ

ERAREERRARE
Bey—®o AREE
BT A B e SR AT AL
BEPHRE BAREL
EFEREABARLAR
RBREB®NINER &
LERHARTERPXMN
P B B IAM BN R
& & R R T &R H®
ARE S EERAER
BB AME R S
FE AR OR R A R A AR
HMEHMERRBLR (R
EERRE) AR
SIS TR
FooFFTZA=T—
AEmRBERARK
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F: AR%11,107,000

T) B 1S RV BR AR E R
IEY R 5 N AT R
fi5 o

PRAEMERERAE

TR CFFR

179



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR R M ET ()

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

42. THTH#®)

TRl EfRE IR B R REK
(&)
TiEEM (F)
EEERE 2R ET ()
@) fENIE ()

As at 31 December 2022
R-B-=%+-A=+—-8H

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)
policies (continuea)

Market risk (Continued)
(@) Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) @)
@) Trade receivables (Continued)

180

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate (%) amount  allowance
AHBEE (%) EEERS BERER
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRT AR®TR
Trade receivables BARBRE
(not credit impaired) (FERRE)
Current BIEA 1.88% 32,025 (601)
Less than 1 month past due HWEDRE A 23.14% 20,966 (4,852)
110 3 months past due EHZE3ME A 20.18% 848 (172)
More than 3 months but less E1HA3ME A DA
than 12 months past due BOR12{E A 54.44% 9,361 (5,096)
More than 12 months past due B2 AL 100% 709 (709)
63,909 (11,430)
Trade receivables with significant R REREZEEND
increase in credit risk JE AR 3K - 756 (756)
64,665 (12,186)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. EMIT A (@)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continuea)

Market risk (Continued)
@  Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
@) Trade receivables (Continued)

b) @ rEREERFENMBER
(%)

miEmEE (&)
@ 1FEmRRBE G (E)
@) B ()

As at 31 December 2021
RZE-—F+-_A=1+—H

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate (%) amount allowance
RHEEX %) HREEAR EERE
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETR

Trade receivables BARBRE
(not credit impaired) (FfERmE)
Current BEA 3.04% 100,136 (3,047)
Less than 1 month past due BEDRE A 40.55% 191 (79
110 3 months past due #H1Z=3E A - - -
More than 3 months but less than ~ #EA3(E A A +
12 months past due BLR12(E A - -
More than 12 months past due B2 AL 98.94% 3,746 (3,706)
104,073 (6,831)
Trade receivables with significant ~ {EF AR FEZE LN
increase in credit risk JEUAR 3K - 11,107 (11,107)
115,180 (17,938)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec) 42. THTH#®)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b SRREREEBEZERBUR
policies (continuea) (%)
Market risk (Continuea) miEEK (&)
(@  Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continuecd) @ (EERREREEF G (&)

@) Other receivables, amounts due from a
related company and non-controlling interest

@) R b JER IR - JEH BT

B2 ARG IR 1

M/TA l;éf_

As at 31 December 2022
R-ZB--%+-R=+-8H

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate (%) amount allowance
RHBRE (%) EEESS BRI
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%®TRE AR®TR

Other receivables H At FE Wy FR IR

12m ECL 1218 A 12.38% 10,079 (1,248)
Amount due from B RBARRE

a related company
12m ECL 1218 A 2.82% A (2)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. EMIT A (@)
b TEEREEBREEREK

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continuea)

Market risk (Continued)
@  Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

(@) Other receivables, amounts due from a
related company and a non-controlling

(%)

miEmEE (&)

@

=B RREF G (B)
@) BRI KR

B2 B R E W IR HE

interest (Continued) mNIE ()
As at 31 December 2021
R-Z-—F+-_A=1+—H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate (%) amount allowance
FHEHEBEX (%) REERS EBERE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T
Other receivables H{th Ul B IS
12m ECL 12{E A 6.43% 19,419 (1,248)
Amount due from B A FRE
a related company
12m ECL 1218 A 3.17% 63 2)
Amount due from e 21t -1 8]
non-controlling interest
12m ECL (note) 1216 A (#72) - 2,500 -

Note: The balance was fully settled subsequent to
the end of reporting period in January 2022,
accordingly, the ECL is immaterial to the
consolidated financial statements.

Hiit: ZHER T _F—
AlmEHARREHME
B ERBEREK
HEAMBHRERTE
*o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continuea)

Market risk (Continued)

@

Crediit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on historical debts
recovery rates over the past 3 years. The rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group's view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

In measuring the expected credit losses, the
trade receivables have been assessed on a
collective basis as they possess shared credit risk
characteristics. They have been grouped based on
the days past due.

Trade receivables are written off (i.e. derecognised)
when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Failure to make payments within 180 days
from the invoice date and failure to engage with
the Group on alternative payment arrangement
amongst other are considered indicators of no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired related to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Debt financial assets other than trade receivables
determine the ECL based on the 12-months ECLS.
The expected loss rates are simply based on the
historical debts recovery rate and adjusted by
forward looking factors including future economy
conditions.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

42. €T R (%)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and b =mREkkEEREBZEREEK
policies (continued) (%)

Market risk (Continued) miEEkE (&)

@  Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continuea) @ 1EEERREEFG (&)
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented BeEERBRELGRS VBN
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in FAMRERREREENS
the consolidated statement of financial position BeMEENEREE A5
after deducting any impairment allowance. The IRt HE R E B R R4
Group does not provide any guarantees which ERCIE7C
would expose it to credit risk.

The following tables show reconciliation of loss FARNE G REWFIE - HAth UL
allowances that has been recognised for trade SRIE - FEUR B EE A R R FEIE AR
receivables/other receivables/amounts due from a R IBREEEYRET
related party and a non-controlling interest.
Lifetime ECL
(not credit
impaired) 12m ECL
2HENY
B8 (3
ERRE) 12f8R
Due from
Trade a related Other
receivables company receivahles Total
RAMERE BERBEAT HUEERE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARBTFT ARBFT ARBTFT
At 1 January 2021 W-Z—_—%—-A—A 20,467 2 1,248 21,717
Reversal of impairment losses ~ FRERERSE2O&  F8E
during the year, net (2,529) - - (2,529)
At 31 December 2021 WZBZ—$+-A=+—H 17,938 2 1,248 19,188
Reversal of impairment losses ~ FREREEB B F8
during the year, net (5,752) - - (5,752)
At 31 December 2022 WZBZZ$+-A=+—H 12,186 2 1,248 13,436
RIS IR A E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continuea)

Market risk (Continueq)

@

(2]

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continuea)

In determining the impairment losses for trade
receivable, amount due from a related company
and other receivables, the Group has made
individual assessment on the recoverability of
trade receivable, amount due from a related
company and other receivables based on historical
settlement records, past experience and forward-
looking information.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities and
derivative instruments. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.
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E%@E’]ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ&%ﬁé?&%é%ﬁ
BT 7T R B ARG B R
‘%ﬂﬁﬁiﬁhﬂﬂ&ﬁﬁﬂu@béﬁ
TR

TRAMKEBE SR EERIT
ATAEMFIGRE QIR AR K
RIE AR B A RE 1 &2 K T Y
EFEHNeRmAERTRR
%umi%ﬁ%ﬂ Hegms BH
ITIBEBRITR R 0y AT Btk
ﬁDTT'ﬁﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ%?ﬂ%?ﬁE’]fE
TEFBREERFTHRKHER
WNeBMIENTESREBENE
HI AR ERER A R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. T HE#®)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b SrREREEBEZERBUR
policies (continuea) (%)
Market risk (Continued) miEEkE (&)
(b)  Liquidity risk (Continuea) b) FTEEzERE (&)
2022
k- -
More than ~ More than Total
Weighted Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but contractual Carrying
average 1 year or less than lessthan  undiscounted ~ amount at
interestrate  on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow 31 December

®+=A

-FhE  BE-FE ficp: ki THRER  =+—BM

miEgFyFE BREX SRZE BOREF  RERERE IRE{E
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTR  AE®TR  ARW®TR ARRTR  AE%TR

Trade and other payables B REMERFE - 35,133 - - 35133 35,133
Amount due to a director ERESHE - 4,783 - - 4,783 4,783
Lease liabilities XET A 5% 72 - - 72 69
Interest-bearing bank borrowings i BF{TET BEE 1.46% 54,342 - - 54,342 53,950
94,330 - - 94,330 93,935
20
—E--%
More than More than Total
Weighted Within 1year but 2 years hut contractual Carrying
average 1 year or less than less than undiscounted amount at
interest rate on demand 2years 5years cashflow 31 December
i
—ERE R BE—F HEEN:E) =t—Af
METHH = REX BIRZE BIRRF ReMERE kAEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR  ARBTR ARETRE  ARETRE  ARETR

Debentures &% 3% 4,464 - . 4464 4376
Trade and other payables B REMERFE - 34,067 - - 34,067 34,067
Amount due to a director ERESEHE - 1 - - 1 1
Lease liabilities HEAE 5% 5 - - 5 51
Interest-bearing bank borrowings i BETET BEE 28% 54,563 - - 54,563 54,000

93,157 - - 93,157 92,505

PRAEMERERAE /I 87
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
I\\/T\ ﬁﬂvq% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (mg

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continuea)

Market risk (Continued)

©

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to pledged deposits, and time deposits
(see note 26), fixed-rate bank borrowings (see note
28) and lease liabilities (see note 30). The Group's
interest rate profile as monitored by management
is set out in (a) below.

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s total borrowings at 31
December 2022 and 2021:

42. €T R (%)
b cmEREEEENRKE

(&)

TIER (4£)

© FIE@EmR
AEETREBDIEAER
*%T*(EW%%%EEE

TEE(BMEN)REES

%(ﬁWExU%A$@ﬂ%
B - & 12 B 550 ¥ 2 & @ A
KRR R T X () °

a.  FIEMRA
TREFVWR ===
rZZZ—F+=A8
T+ —BAEEERE

B F R AR,
2022 2021
—E_C T
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ERfl® &# (YR Ex
% RMB’'000 % RMB'000
ARBTTRT NS
Fixed rate borrowings: ERER:

Unsecured debentures BERES - - 3.13% 4,376
Lease liabilities MHE&E 5% 69 5% 51
Interest-bearing bank borrowings, secured st 8585715 AIEIH 1.46% 53,950 2.8% 54,000
Total borrowings BEFFE 54,019 58,427

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2022 and 2021 the Group's
total borrowings are fixed rate borrowings
therefore sensitivity analysis is considered not
necessary.

b REEDH
RZEZZR=ZFT——
F+=A=+—8 &

EIE’M%?M'?‘%IE?‘NJ
KEF R ERET
BRE DT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continuea)

Market risk (Continued)

@

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases which give rise to
receivables, payables and cash balances that are
denominated in USD, AUD and NZD, currencies
other than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate.

During the years presented, the Group entered
into foreign currency forward contracts with
major state-owned banks in the PRC mainly to
acquire RMB to mitigate against currency risk
on receivables, payables and cash balances
denominated in USD, AUD and NZD. All of the
forward exchange contracts have maturities of less
than one year.

The aggregate contract sums of the foreign
currency forward contracts outstanding as at
31 December 2022, denominated in foreign
currency, were US$1,000,000 (2021: US$3,480,000),
AUD2,000,000 (2021: AUD49,930,000) and NZD
Nil (2021. NZD1,690,000). At 31 December 2022,
these foreign currency forward contracts with
their fair values were recognised as derivative
financial instruments (assets) of RVB42,000 (2021:
RMB5,077,000) and derivative financial instruments
(liabilities) of RMB18,000 (2021: RMB896,000)
(note 24). The changes in fair value of the foreign
currency forward contracts of approximately
RMB24,000 (2021: gain of RMB4,181,000) were
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

42. €T H (&)
tREAREEAZEBEER

(o)

(%)

miEmEE (&)

@

B
AEEHHNEERR 2
RAERIEEIAINEEIR
ME® (KT BRTRHA
M)t EMNHEERRE (B
ERWHIE BNFRBAER S
R MITENERRER -

FIRERER RNEEEGEHY
R BRTFILINEERA
WEAANRBARRIKAET
YR TT N 3 74 B TTRT (B B R UK
B ENFREMEEESRNE
BRk- B EHINES LN
BRI R —FUAR-

WZZE_—_F+_-_A=+—
H KREIB®IINEREE D
NN EBENENBER
1,000,000% 70 (ZF = — &
3,480,000 JT.) 2,000,000
7L (=% = — % : 49,930,000}
TIREFE#EHT(ZE = —
F :1,690,000%7 75 3 7T ) © A
—E-F+ZA=+—8"
ZEINERAE NN R TER
TESMIA(BAE)ARE
42,000 (ZZE=Z—F: AR
#5,077,00070) RAT £ & B T
A (BE) AR18,0007T (=
T = —F: AR¥896,0007T)
R (MiE24) - HE2 T =
F+-—A=+—BLFEE 5
HRHENNRTEZSHHA
R#24,000L (ZE = —F:
Uz A R #4,181,0000T ) T3 12
FEBmEkEMEERERP
TR o

PRAEMERERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continuea)

Market risk (Continued)

@

()

42. €@ T H (&)
(b)

TRLE R EIE B R REUR

(&)
iz (&)
Currency risk (Continued) @ EEELRE (&)
The realised fair value gain on settlement of the FRINERBAENEERE
foreign currency forward contracts during the year BHAFTERZHNAARE
amounted to approximately RMB406,000 (2021: 406,000 (ZE=—F : B
gain RMB456,000). AR #456,0007T) °
Exposure to currency risk ) HEERE
Except for the foreign currency forward Br T A 1R R #y R B ]
contracts as mentioned above, the following RN REIG 4 T &
table details the Group’s exposure at 31 HAAREERR T =
December 2022 to currency risk arising from F+ZRA=+—HEE
recognised assets or liabilities denominated BTGB UINNE
in a currency other than the functional BETERYENDER
currency of the entity to which they relate. AEIBEMEANE
For presentation purposes, the amounts R BHEZY &
of the exposure are shown in Renminbi, REEUAAREDN R - E
translated using the spot rate at the end of FA R4 B9 4 SRS 9 )
reporting period. Differences resulting from EBRE - HEBAARE
the translation of the financial statements of LASNEY T e B HE 51 BR &Y
the entities with functional currency other ERMBHmEREKK
than RMB into the Group’'s presentation SENENEBEED
currency are excluded. ZFEAIBR N
2022
—E-C
usb AUD NzD
E AT MERT
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®TRE AR®TR AR%TR
Assets BE 81,265 121,217 30,451
Liabilities BE (1,228) (14,676) -
Gross exposure arising from BER EF&’% &
recognised assets and liabilities ~ E4£HKE K& 80,037 106,541 30,451
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (Continuea)

@

0

42. €T H (&)
b =rEREIREBZENBEK

(#&)
miEEkE (&)
Currency risk (Continued) @ EEERE(E)
Exposure to currency risk (Continued) () EEE ()
2021
—E-—F
usb AUD NZD
x5 BT AT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETFR
Assets BE 4,302 80,432 8,892
Liabilities afE (1,106) - -
Gross exposure arising from ERRABERERE
recognised assets and liabilities ~ E4 K E K &5 3,196 80,432 8,892

(@

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% (2021: 5%) increase and
decrease in RMB against the relevant foreign
currencies. 5% (2021: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2021: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis also
includes intra-group balances where the
denomination of the intra-group balances
is in a currency other than the functional
currency of the lender or the borrower. A
positive number below indicates an increase
in post-tax loss and other equity where RMB
strengthen 5% (2021: 5%) against the relevant
currency. For a 5% (2021: 5%) weakening
of RMB against the relevant currency, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on
the loss and other comprehensive income
and the amounts below would be negative.

(i) BEEESHT
TRFRTAEEH A
R X FEEINESR (=
T~ —F 5% ) 38 Y
BRRE 5% (- T~ —
F 5% )REMETEE
B A BB ®E SNE R
HEFE A MBRE R
REBEHINEEEKRS
8 Al B B L W RR 1A - B
RS EBEAERN
WINEETEERIEE
WHEREHRAERL R
BEUER (T = —
F 5% ) Ky SN [ R
fb-GEREDTIHEE
Elm e MEER
HEHRAE T SERAD
jjﬁﬁiéiﬁﬂw\\ BHE
B-ATEHERAR
BEBEBESAESYS
(ZE=—F 5% )R
& ESIE R B b A R 1 N o
MBEARELEBREY
BY H5% (=& = — &
5% ) %8 E B H A
BAKWSELRSAR
RHOFE UTE8BE
BAEH-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
I\\/T\ ﬂLT% EF&%% IZﬁL FI_II_ (/\/\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuec)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continuea)
Market risk (Continued)

@

Currency risk (Continued)

()

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

42. THTH#®)
b 2mEAREREBZNEEER
(&)
TiEEM (F)
@ EEmE (&)
() SEEAYT ()

2022 2021
—E-_C-% —E-—F
Decrease/
(increase) in
Increase/ loss after tax Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) and increase (Decrease) (Decrease) in
in foreign (decrease) in foreign  profit after tax
exchange retained exchange and retained
rates profits rates profits
BRR&EER
TFB’/(L3#) PR8I &
SEEE BFZET HNEE i R {RE 4 Fl
E#(FR) LEH/(TE) E£H/(TR) EAH/(TE)
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®BTR ARETT
UsD i 5% 3,001 5% 120
(5)% (3,001) (5)% (120)
AUD BT 5% 3,995 5% 3,016
(5)% (3,995) (5)% (3,016)
NZD MEET 5% 1,142 5% 333
(5)% (1,142) (5)% (333)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continuea)

Market risk (Continued)

©

commodity price risk

(i)

The major raw materials used in the
production of the Group’s products include
fir and pinewood. The Group is exposed
to fluctuations in the prices of these raw
materials which are influenced by the
global market as well as regional supply
and demand conditions. Fluctuations in
the prices of raw materials could adversely
affect the Group's financial performance. The
Group historically has not entered into any
commodity derivative instruments to hedge
the potential commodity price changes. The
Group monitors its commodity price risk by
widening its supply base and performs bulk
purchase when the price of raw materials is
low.

The Group invested in commodity during the
year and is exposed to fluctuations in the
prices of commodity which are influenced by
the gold market. Prices of gold are affected
by a wide range of global and domestic
political and economic factors which are
beyond the control of the Group A decrease
in such prices could adversely affect the

42. €T R (%)

b TEEREEBREEREK

(#&)
miEmEE (&)
© BmEREE
() FAREERNKEERFM
REIERMHBELAXK
R AR o 7R & B B 7%
E R FHE R E) ) A

B M FERMEEE
B 2IRT 5 K
KRR R R
KBHE & 198 ) 7] e ¥ <
SENHBRREET
My REETBET
VEMEmITETAY
FEEEmEREY-
rEEFEBAEHER
R R EHERRIE
RBETHERBEN SR
BB mERER -

AEBRFARERE
e URIWEET S
FENERERRDY
Z2-FoERIEHRK
BABA REERREE

& RNEBEEXREH X
FEBTHRAEHAE
B B 5 AR R K IR

Group's financial performance. The Group will FE-AEEBFFER
keep monitor to its commodity investment. EEmKE-
RIS IR A E

TR CFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
/\\/T\ ﬁiﬂ% i&i‘% IZﬁL FI_II_ (nE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. €@ TH ()
(c) Fair value measurement of financial C &MIEQAAEZE
instruments
Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured WgmEmE - AN EEEE
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating BMTEZAREBEBEGTE L
the fair value, the Group uses market-observable data to REERN ASEEAESHN

=
=

E‘

the extent it is available. For instruments with significant FRAMS A BEREE - HN

m & Y
oS BT
-

unobservable inputs under Level 3, the Group engages E-EBRXTERTABEEHA
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The {EE‘JIE AEEEFE=F6%&
management works closely with the qualified external BEEMETHE- BEEERAE
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques TEONFIEERD B & B AR
and inputs to the model. = G (B B A A A 8 A B -
(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value () BRLFEIRNESRMIA
Fair value hierarchy DT EZRE
The following table presents the fair value of the TREJAREE /T ARR
Group's financial instruments measured at the & B A R IR F I B 5T
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, ENRAFE WL E BB
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy SR E R E135 AFEE
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. EEBEN=—BRATFERE - H
The level into which a fair value measurement NV EFESBRNERTKS
is classified is determined with reference to the ZINTEER A AEARE
observability and significance of the inputs used in MAIBRMEREZMRET

the valuation technigue as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using . E-—RHEE-EFERAS
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted — R A BE (IR E
prices in active markets for identical assets or EHRBEEELEER
liabilities at the measurement date TER TS 2 RIS TR

B EnATE

. Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using . FE_RHE-FRAE=
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which T AN B & (BlREEE
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant HE-—RHABREA
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are FBE)BXWRFEAERKR
inputs for which market data are not available A BRE AHBT =

WAFE T #RE
ABEAETSEEY
& A\ BUR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BRI - AN REST)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. €T H ()
(¢) Fair value measurement of financial © EMTEAREBEZFE
instruments (continued) (%)
(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value () BRLOFEIERNEMIA
(Continued) (#)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RNFEZERGE (FE)
o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using . F=R/HEE-FAEK
significant unobservable inputs TAERBBAEND
FE

31 December 2022
ZBIZF+ZA=+-H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—# -t =8 #it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TE ARBTRT AEBTRT ARBTR

Financial assets at fair value BATEFABREY

through profit or loss SREE

- Derivative financial instruments (ote 24)  —$T4 & BT A (H5324) - 42 - 42

- Other financial assets (1ote 18) ~HEtSREE (H:#18) - 20,122 - 20,122
Financial assets at fair value through BATESALZMZE

other comprehensive income hEmeREE

- Unlisted equity investments (mote 18) —ELMRARE (F1:£18) - - 1,445 1,445

- 20,164 1,445 21,609

Financial liabilities at fair value BRATERARRZ

through profit or loss SEAR

- Derivative financial instruments (lote 24) =TS B I E (Hi24) - 18 - 18

FRIAEYIZERBERAT

TR CFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of financial

instruments (continuea)

(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value

(Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

42. €T R (%)
C &mIAARBEZT=E
(&)

(M

RAFEIBNEBMTA
(#&)
AFEERHE (#)
31 December 2021

“E—%+ZA=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ E-R E=8 Wt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Financial assets at fair value RATEFABRZ
through profit or loss SREE
- Derivative financial instruments —TEERIA
(note 24) (Hizt24) - 5,077 - 5,077
- Other financial assets (1ote 18(b)) —HtweREE (H:#18) - 92,842 - 92,842
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEFAEMEE
other comprehensive income fEmemEaE
- Unlisted equity investments - ¥ ETRARE
(note 18(3)) (H1:t18) - - 2,302 2,342
- 97,919 2,342 100,261
Financial liabilities at fair value RATEFABRZZ
through profit or loss 2REE
- Derivative financial instruments (lote 24) ~ — 415 BIE (H524) - 896 - 896

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

HE_Z_—_FR-_ZT_—F
ToA=Zt+—BLFE F—
MEAE AR T AR EEE
NEEAF=HKEF =RE
e AEBENBE AR RFE
SR ERIERE RS RE
BABBRERGHER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of financial

42. €T R (%)

© =MIARAREBEZFE

instruments (continuea) (%)
(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value () BRATFEIENESMIA
(Continued) (#)
Valuation technigues and inputs used in Level 2 fair BoRRFEFEE AR
value meastirements BT R A B
Fair value as at 31 December Fair value
Financial assets/financial liabilities Assets/(liabilities) hierarchy  Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
R+ZAZ+—-HZLRE REEER
SMEE SMAR ®E/ (Af) HE FEHEREEBA
2022 2021
—E-CF B
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%TR AREFT
Derivative financial instruments 42/(18) 5,077/(896) Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are estimated
fTEeRmIE £ based on forward exchange rates (from observable
forward exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period) and contracted forward rates, discounted at
arate that reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties.
BemR-ARRSRERFRBEE (REREH
AN A ERRBER) & ORRERE TRk
TRARSEFERRABRNERETHE
Other financial assets
HitemEaE
(i) Investment products in PRC bank 20,122 10,592 Level 2 With reference to the net assets value of such investment
) RRBERTZREER FER products as at 31 December 2022 announced by the
PRC bank.
SERBERIAGNZERAEREZE_S-2F
+ZRA=T—-BHEEFE-
(i) Debt instrument - 80,000 Level 2 discounting future cash flow of the principal amount
(i) EHIA E-% and the expected value of the interest payments

arising from the Debts Instruments. The expected
value of the interest payments are calculated with
reference to the forward exchange rate at the maturity
date and the contract exchange rate between Euro
and United States Dollar. The discount rate used
is derived from the relevant government yield curve
as at the end of reporting period.
BRASMATRERENES TEAEENFISIHH
BHEE-B AT SNEELZHHANES
EEMBTAETHENERGE - FEAMBRE
RERRE SRR BBB R R R

PRAEMERERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

I\\/T\ ﬁﬂvq% i&% IZﬁL FI_II_ (nE)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (continuea)

(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair
value measurements

Unlisted equity investments

The fair value of the Group's unlisted equity
securities at 31 December 2022 and 2021 has been
arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by
an independent professional valuer not connected
with the Group. The unlisted equity securities are
categorised into level 3 of fair value measurement.

42. €T R (%)
SRIEAREBEZFTE

(%)

(M

BAVESIRNEMTIR
(%)

RN FlEREEHE
ERM LA BIE

FELEMERAKRE

AEBFLTERAESFN_-F
P e |
:+*EIE’UAJ?TE)3$ETJ§E5%$
SEYEBENBLEEME
BAEITROfEE - JF LT AR
FOBRRAFEFEF =M

Fair value as at 31 December  Fair value Valuation technique(s) significant
Financial assets/financial liabilities Assets/(liabilities) hierarchy and key input(s) unobservable input(s)
R+ZB=+—-RZLhE LFEER
SMEE SRR HE/(AR) HE HEHEREERA FERLRRBA
2022 2021
k- Jofont —E-—F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TR AREFT
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income
BREMPANGRARE CREE
- Unlisted equity investment 1,445 2,342 Level 3 Using the price/book ratios of Discount for lack of
- EmRERE B comparable listed companies marketability of 30%

adjusted for lack of

marketability discount.
FRA ETARMTEER

B EHETETRE.

(2021: 30%).
B2 2 ATE30%
(ZFZ—F:30%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. €T H ()
() Fair value measurement of financial C =MIEARBEIEE

instruments (continuea) (%)

(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value () BRATFEIENESMIA
(Continued) (#)
Valuation technigues and inputs used in Level 3 fair FE=RNFlEFTE ARG
value meastirements (Continuea) EEMREAZE (E)
Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at EREATAEB R AHE
fair value based on significant unobservable inputs (BZOBAFEIEN:
(Level 3) are as follows: BT AEMEROT

Financial assets at FVOCI
BROTFEAEM
2EkSzeMEE
2022 2021
—E- —E - —F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT

Unlisted equity securities: ELEMBRAFES:
At 1 January ®n—H—H 2,342 2,400
Total losses: Wassk BB A
— in other comprehensive —RBR T AT E A
income, net of tax 2HE W= (897) (58)
At 31 December Rn+=—HA=+—H 1,445 2,342
(ii)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (i) XELATFEIENERMEER
not carried at fair value 8ENATE
The carrying values of the Group’s financial N6 B 2 B AN S B S B AR B BR
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are MemTARAEEFESEN
not materially different from their fair values as at TR E - —F+ R
31 December 2022 and 2021. Zt+—HHNAFETEEARE

Bo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
/\\/T\ ﬂL 17-,% i& i‘% IZﬁL FI_II_ (nE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43. FEfE AR &
OF THE COMPANY

Details of the subsidiaries are set out below. The class of shares BB RARMNFEHNNT BB EF
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. BN FTFEEE RIIR 519 A T imAR -

Attributable equity interest

Particulars of held by the Company
Place of incorporation/ issued and paid up/ FOFIFRHEERE
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
EMm/ ERTREEES/
LEER FRIHB BERMEFHEE EE ME FERH
Green Oceans Investment The British Virgin Islands 10 shares of USD1 each 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Limited (the "BVI")
Green Oceans Investment EBRAES 10BR BRI TR 100% - REER
Holdings Limited ([RBExES])
King Wood (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HKD1 each - 100% Sales of outdoor wooden products
Holding Limited
KT (FB)ERER, BB 10,000 SR 1B T AR D - 100% HEPIAER
Fujian Zhangping Kimura Forestry The PRC Registered capital of - 100% Manufacturing and sales of
Products Co,, Ltd. (‘Zhangping Kimura”) RMB660,000,000 outdoor wooden products
(notes () and (i)
BREETANHEERARA ik &7 A K #660,000,0007 - 100% 4HERHEEPIAES
(DETARK]) (HrztpRam)
Merry Garden (Xiamen) Household The PRC Registered capital of RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
Co, Ltd. (notes (i) and //'/'/))
FBZE (EF)ZEBRR e &R AR #5,000,0007 - 00% EEEH
(HramE )

200 China Environmental Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 BRI - AN REST)

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 43. S EfEB AT Z2ER (&)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Attributable equity interest

Particulars of held by the Company
Place of incorporation/ issued and paid up/ FOFIFRHEERE
Name of company establishment registered capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
R/ ERITRBERE/
LFER FR LB BEREFNERE EE Mg TEXEH
Zhangping Merry Garden Import and The PRC Registered capital of RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Sales of outdoor wooden products
Export Co. Ltd. (MG Import and Export”)
(notes (i) and (i)
EYTEBRRELAERAT e &R A R 30,000,000 N 100% HEPIARER
([ZBREEL D)) (H#0z0m)
Merry Garden Holdings Limited (note (1)) - Hong Kong 1 share of HKD1 each - 100%  Investment holding
EEZRERERAR (M) i RERETHRR - 100% REAR
Zhangping Merry Garden Biomass Energy  The PRC Registered capital of RMB20,000,000 - 100% Manufacturing and sales of
Development Ltd. (notes (i) and (i) renewable energy products
EYMEERRENERAE HE &R A K #20,000,000 7T - 100% FERHEBEERER
BRAR (B2 mRm))
Zhangping Ruisheng Wood Structure The PRC Registered capital of RMB3,000,000 - 100% Manufacturing and sales of
Materials Co., Ltd (notes (i) and (i) wooden products
ETRARERHHERAR HE A A AR 3,000,000 T - 100% HERHEAERD
(LM )
Unicreed Holdings Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HKD5,653.39 each - 100%  Investment holding
HNAAEEBRAR i 10,000% & A75,653. 39 T AR 3 - 100% REAR
Unicreed Industry & Trade Co, Ltd. The PRC Registered capital of USD7,850,000 - 100% Manufacturing and sales of
(notes (1) ana (i) outdoor wooden products
HRRARTIEERAR (WFORM)) HE & 77,850,005 7T N 100% 4EREEPIAER
Xingruixiang (motes (i) & (v)) The PRC Registered capital of - 51% Manufacturing and sales of
RMB1,000,000 wooden products
(2021: RMB30,000,000)
BT EREHEEERERAR HE A A AR 1,000,000 - 5% £EREEARM
(Hrakm) (ZZ=—%: AR¥30,00,0007)
# All the percentages of equity attributable to the Company remain N KREBERBAN TEARREEEZA DY
unchanged with the previous year except when otherwise indicated. BREF - MR

PRAEMERERAE

TR CFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

/\\/T\ ﬂL ﬂz% i& i‘% IZﬁL FI_II_ (né )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

(0] These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the
PRC.

(i) These entities are limited liability companies established in the PRC and
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Zhangping Kimura.

(iif) The English translation of the company names is for reference only. The
official names of these companies are in Chinese.

(iv) This entity is a limited liability company established in Hong Kong and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of King Wood (Hong Kong) Holding Limited.

V) This entity was established in the PRC with limited liability during the year
ended 31 December 2021, in which, 51% of equity interest was held by
the Group. On 16 March 2022, the authorised share capital of Xingruixiang
has reduced from RMB30,000,000 to RMB1,000,000. The total issued and
share capital has reduced from RMB10,000,000 to RMB1,000,000.

43. FEMB AT ZER (2

Hfiz

0] ZEBBRNPEKINIIEBEERE-

(ii) ZEBERR/NPEKZOER DA RET AN
ES

(iii) ZF
X

(iv) ZEBARBEBKINERIBRAN (FE)
ERERARNZEMB AR

v) ZEERBE-_T-_—F+=-A=t+—81
FERFBEK L AEREERR REEF
BEEPRNBRE — T _—_F=A+8"
35 £ 4 F iR AN B A R #530,000,0007T 5 2 &=
AR #1,000,0007T c B BT IR AL ER AR
10,000,0007T 73 4> & A K #1,000,0007T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A ISR R M ET (8)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5 B R5N U REZR)

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 44. ARIEEHBR R R R #E

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2022 2021
—E- 5 —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
it ARBTT ARETFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y2 R MR 61 50
Interests in subsidiaries R B AR M= 43 40,488 40,488
40,549 40,538
Current assets mEEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FERNRIE -Ee Kk
receivables E 4t FE UL %XIE 72 85
Amounts due from subsidiaries R CNERN 702,180 642,326
Amount due from a related company JE F%Hﬁ%@ IE 18 17
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFE f,“*f% 548 577
702,818 643,005
Current liabilities mEAE R
Other payables H b~ 5B 654 850
Lease liability HEBE 69 51
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NG e 5,303 3,329
Amount due to a director JERESFIA 4 3
Debentures B - 4,376
6,030 8,609
Net current assets nNEERE 696,788 634,396
Net assets HERE 737,337 674,934
Equity ga
Share capital f& A< 33(a) 38,462 35,345
Reserves ] 33(b) 698,875 639,589
Total equity BaeaE 737,337 674,934

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

31 March 2023.

Wu Zheyan
REE
Director

EFE

MRIE_=F=A=+—RHESZESHE
R T3S o

Xie Qingmei

AR

D/rectar
EZE

qﬂﬂiw}""ﬂxﬁffﬁ’z}j
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

/\\/T\ ﬂL 17-,% i& i‘% IZﬁL FI_II_ (nE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 BRI+ AN R EZTR)

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 44. ARIEEMBEMRRERRFEE @)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
share share  Exchange Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity
B BipEE ER iR 2HEHR HanE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETR
At 1 January 2021 R-E2--%¥-H—-H 32,591 690,042 32,375 (87,585) 667,423
Profit for the year FREF - - - 24,466 24,466
Other comprehensive expense FREMYT HEE
for the year - - (24,667) - (24,661)
Total comprehensive (expense) FA2E (ML) hsBHE
income for the year - - (24,661) 24,466 (195)
Shares issued under share IRERAR ) R EhEt #
award scheme (note 33)) BITR (#7:233)) 2,754 4,952 - - 7,706
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—-%+ZA=+-H
and 1 January 2022 R-E--%—-8-8 35,345 694,994 7,714 (63,119) 674,934
Loss for the year FRERE - - - (882) (882)
Other comprehensive income FREMKRBE
for the year - - 58,492 - 58,492
Total comprehensive income FAZEMNE (L) 8HF
(expense) for the year - - 58,492 (882) 57,610
Shares issued upon loan RERERLEITZ R
capitalisation (note 31) (H1a#31) 3,117 1,676 - - 4,793
At 31 December 2022 R-E__f#+-A=+-H 38,462 696,670 66,206 (64,001) 737,337
45. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 45. Lt &
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to ATHReBEENH»E UFELAFE
conform with the current year’s presentation. HEH T
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